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ContentsSaaSSoftware as a serviceSBCStock Based CompensationSD&PSystems development and programmingSECU.S. Securities and Exchange CommissionSenior NotesThe 2029
Notes and the 2031 NotesSMBSmall and medium-size businessTCJATax Cuts and Jobs ActTriNet Clarus R+DClarus R+D Solutions, LLCTriNet TrustTrust which was created for the
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of ContentsCautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking StatementsFor purposes of this Annual Report on Form 10-K (Form 10-K), the terms &€ceTriNet,a€ d€cethe Company,a€
a€mwe,a€ a€oeusa€ and a€meoura€ refer to TriNet Group, Inc., and its subsidiaries. This Form 10-K contains statements that are not historical in nature, are predictive in nature, or
that depend upon or refer to future events or conditions or otherwise contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements are often identified by the use of words such as, but not limited to, &€ceability,a€
a€ceanticipate,4€ d€cebelieve,a€ a€oecan,a€ d€cecontinue,4€ a€cecould,a€ d€cedesign,a€ d€meestimate,a€ a€oeexpect,a€ a€ceforecast,a€ a€cehope,a€ d€mimpact,a€ a€ceintend,4€
a€mmay,a€ a€oeoutlook,a€ a€ceplan,a€ a€oepotential, &€ a€mepredict,a€ d€eproject,a€ d€mseek,a€ a€mshould,a€ a€cestrategy,a€ a€oetarget,a€ a€cevalue,a€ d€mwill, 4€ d€cewoulda€
and similar expressions or variations intended to identify forward-looking statements. Examples of forward-looking statements include, among others, TriNeta€™s expectations
regarding: our plans and ability to grow our client base; our expectations regarding medical utilization rates by our WSEs and the impact of inflation on our insurance costs; the effect
that our stock repurchase program will have on our business; the impact of planned improvements to our technology platform and whether they will meet the needs of our current
clients and attract new ones; our ability to improve operating efficiencies; our strategic realignment and related restructuring initiatives; the impact of our client service initiatives and
whether they enhance client experience and satisfaction; our continued ability to provide access to a broad range of benefit programs on a cost-effective basis; our expectations
regarding the volume and severity of insurance claims and insurance claim trends; the effectiveness of our risk strategies for, and management of, workers' compensation, health
benefit insurance costs and deductibles, the metrics that may be indicators of future financial performance; the relative value of our benefit offerings versus those SMBs can
independently obtain; the impact that our benefit offerings have for SMBs seeking to attract and retain employees; the principal competitive drivers in our market; our plans to grow
net new clients and manage client attrition; our investment strategy and its impact on our ability to generate future interest income, net income, and Adjusted EBITDA; seasonal trends
and their impact on our business; the payment of dividends of $0.25 per share in the first quarter of 2025; fluctuations in the period-to-period timing of when we incur certain
operating expenses; the impact of increases and decreases in interest rates on our investments and borrowings; the estimates and assumptions we use to prepare our financial
statements; our belief we can meet our present and reasonably foreseeable cash needs and future commitments through existing liquid assets and continuing cash flows from
corporate operating activities; and other expectations, outlooks and forecasts on our future business, operational and financial performance. Important factors that could cause actual
results, level of activity, performance or achievements to differ materially from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements are discussed above and throughout
this Form 10-X, including under Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, and Part II, Item 7. MD&A, and in the other periodic filings we make with the SEC, and including risk factors associated
with: our ability to manage unexpected changes in workersa€™ compensation and health insurance claims and costs by WSEs; our ability to mitigate the unique business risks we face
as a co-employer; the effects of volatility in the financial and economic environment on the businesses that make up our client base; our inability to realize or sustain the expected
benefits from our business realignment initiatives; loss of clients for reasons beyond our control and the short-term contracts we typically use with our clients; the impact of regional or
industry-specific economic and health factors on our operations; the impact of failures or limitations in the business systems and centers we rely upon; the impact of discontinuing our
discretionary credits on our business and client loyalty and retention; changes in our insurance coverage or our relationships with key insurance carriers; our ability to improve our
services and technology to satisfy client and regulatory expectations; our ability to effectively integrate businesses we have acquired or may acquire in the future; our ability to
effectively manage and improve our operational effectiveness and resiliency; our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel; the effects of increased competition and our ability to
compete effectively; the impact on our business of cyber-attacks, breaches, disclosures and other data-related incidents; our ability to comply with evolving data privacy, Al and
security laws; our ability to manage changes in, uncertainty regarding, or adverse application of the complex laws and regulations that govern our business; changing laws and
regulations governing health insurance and employee benefits; our ability to keep pace with changes in technology or provide timely enhancements to our solutions and support; risks
associated with our international operations; our ability to operate a business subject to numerous complex laws; changing laws and regulations governing health insurance and other
traditional employee benefits at the federal, state, and local levels; our ability to be recognized as an employer of worksite employees and for our benefits plans to satisfy all
requirements under federal and state regulations; changes in the laws and regulations that govern what it means to be an employer, employee or independent contractor; the impact of
new and changing laws regarding remote work; our ability to comply with the licensing requirements that govern our solutions; the failure of third-party service providers performing
their functions; the failure to comply with anti-corruption laws and regulations, economic and trade sanctions, and similar laws; the TRINET42024 FORM 10-K BUSINESSTable of
Contentsoutcome of existing and future legal and tax proceedings; fluctuation in our results of operations and stock price due to factors outside of our control; our ability to comply
with the restrictions of our indebtedness and meet our debt obligations; the need for additional capital or to restructure our existing debt; the continuation of our stock repurchase
program; and the impact of concentrated ownership in our stock by Atairos and other large stockholders and the anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents and under
Delaware law. Any of these factors could cause our actual results to differ materially from our anticipated results.Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future
performance, but are based on managementa€™s expectations as of the date of this Form 10-K and assumptions that are inherently subject to uncertainties, risks and changes in
circumstances that are difficult to predict. Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results, performance
or achievements to be materially different from our current expectations and any past results, performance or achievements. Given these risks and uncertainties, readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements.The information provided in this Form 10-K is based upon the facts and circumstances known as of the date
of this Form 10-K, and any forward-looking statements made by us in this Form 10-K speak only as of the date of this Form 10-K. We undertake no obligation to revise or update any of
the information provided in this Form 10-K, except as required by law.The MD&A of this Form 10-K includes references to our performance measures presented in conformity with
GAAP and other non-GAAP financial measures that we use to manage our business, to make planning decisions, to allocate resources and to use as performance measures in our
executive compensation plans. Refer to the Non-GAAP Financial Measures within our MD&A for definitions and reconciliations from GAAP measures.Website DisclosuresWe use our
website (www.trinet.com) to announce material non-public information to the public and to comply with our disclosure obligations under Regulation Fair Disclosure (Reg FD). We also
use our website to communicate with the public about our Company, our services, and other matters. Our SEC filings, press releases and recent public conference calls and webcasts
can also be found on our website. The information we post on our website could be deemed to be material information under Reg FD. We encourage investors and others interested in
our Company to review the information we post on our website. Information contained in or accessible through our website is not a part of this report. TRINET5A 2024 FORM 10-K
BUSINESSTable of ContentsPART I ItemA 1. BusinessTriNet is a leading provider of HR solutions for SMBs. We offer advanced technology-enabled services that include human capital
expertise, employee benefits such as health insurance and retirement plans, payroll and payroll tax administration, risk mitigation, and compliance consulting. Our long-term objective
is to be the premier provider of HR services for a broad range of SMBs through industry-leading benefits, sales distribution excellence, and a world-class services delivery model. Since
our founding in 1988, TriNet has served, and continues to serve, thousands of SMBs. We are the largest publicly traded company in the U.S. that focuses primarily on the PEO
business, in terms of the number of WSEs we serve. In 2024, we processed $73 billion in payroll and payroll taxes for our clients and ended the year with approximately 360,700
WSEs.We aim to differentiate ourselves from other PEOs in three substantive areas. First, we offer a high-quality, integrated service solution that is tailored to high-income, employee-
centric SMBs. Our primary targeted industry verticals include technology, financial services, life sciences, nonprofit, professional services, and main street. Second, we offer our
clients a premium HR advisory experience featuring high-touch services and efficient issue resolution, to yield a high level of customer satisfaction and retention. Finally, we believe
our risk-based model allows our clients to better manage their benefits costs over the long term.Our medium-term strategy includes taking actions to increase revenue growth through
improved benefits options and risk management capabilities, expanded sales force scale, tenure, and productivity, and expanded distribution channels. In addition, we will focus on
cost discipline, operational efficiencies in our service delivery model, and prudent capital allocation, while being strategic with re-investments.Our Service ModelsWe deliver a
comprehensive suite of HCM services that help our clients administer and manage various HR-related needs and functions, such as compensation, benefits, payroll processing, tax
credit support, employee data, health insurance, workers' compensation, EPLI and other employment risk mitigation programs, employee performance management and training, on-
boarding and off-boarding, and other transactional HR needs using our PEO technology platform and benefits and compliance expertise.We deliver our services primarily through our



PEO services that we provide via our co-employment model, and to a lesser extent, through our ASO-only services, which we anticipate will grow in the future. PEO ServicesTriNet has
historically focused almost exclusively on the PEO business, and PEO services remain our core business. Our PEO services offer our clients our most complete HCM solution generally
including all of the services described below. ASO ServicesUntil recently, we offered a SaaS-only solution as the primary offering of our HRIS services. We are however currently
transitioning this SaaS-only solution to offerings that combine the Saa$S solution with a significant service component. We now refer to these offerings as ASO services, and are
marketed as "HR Plus". ASO services include payroll processing, benefits management, HR administration and compliance management to provide HCM solutions that our clients can
tailor dynamically over time based on their needs. Unlike our PEO services, our ASO services do not include co-employment or access to our TriNet sponsored health benefit plans.
However, our ASO clients will have access to our benefits administration platform that can administer third-party benefits and integrates with 401 (k) retirement plans.This transition
from our HRIS offering to our ASO offering will result in not only a significant change in the level of service but also price for our clients currently using HRIS. As a result, we
anticipate significant attrition in our existing HRIS client population during 2025.TRINET6A 2024 FORM 10-K BUSINESSTable of ContentsOur ServicesOur comprehensive HR
solutions include the following capabilities:HR CONSULTING EXPERTISEBENEFITOPTIONSPAYROLL SERVICESRISK MITIGATION TECHNOLOGYPLATFORMCONTRACTOR AND
GLOBAL WORKFORCE SUPPORTHR Consulting ExpertiseWe use the collective knowledge and experience of our teams of HR, benefits, payroll, risk management and compliance
professionals to help our clients navigate many of the administrative, regulatory and practical requirements associated with being employers. We do this by incorporating our
knowledge and experience into our services and our technology platforms and by making our professionals available to consult with clients on a variety of HR needs, including talent
management, retention and terminations, benefits enrollment, immigration and visas, payroll tax credits, employment compliance and regulatory developments and many other
industry-specific and general HR topics. Depending on their needs, our clients have access to varying levels of service and support from our professionals, ranging from call center
support to pooled HR resources. Our professionals also provide additional specialized HR consulting services upon request.Benefit OptionsIn our PEO business, we utilize our scale to
provide our WSEs access to a broad range of TriNet-sponsored employee benefit and insurance programs with features and at costs that we believe many of our clients would be
unable to obtain on their own. We believe that our TriNet-sponsored programs help our PEO clients compete for talent against larger businesses. Our benefit and insurance programs
are designed to comply with federal, state and local regulations, and our benefit and insurance service offerings include plan selection and administration, enrollment management,
leave management, plan document distribution and WSE and client communications. Under these benefit and insurance programs, we pay third-party insurance carriers for WSE
insurance benefits and reimburse insurance carriers or third-party administrators for claims payments within our insurance deductible layer, where applicable. We sponsor and
administer several employee benefit plans for our WSEs through a broad range of carriers, including group health, dental, vision, short- and long-term disability, and life insurance as
an employer plan sponsor under SectionA 3(5) of ERISA. We also provide for other benefit programs to be made available to WSEs, including flexible spending accounts, health savings
accounts, retirement benefits, COBRA benefits, supplemental insurance, and commuter benefits, as well as other programs such as home insurance, critical illness insurance, accident
insurance, hospital indemnity, pet insurance, and auto insurance. For further discussion of our insurance programs, including policies where we reimburse our carriers for certain
amounts relating to claims, refer to Note 1 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10-K.We also offer PEO clients the option to obtain their own
client-sponsored benefits through our OMS product family. Our OMS clients receive PEO services such as HR, payroll, payroll tax, and risk management from TriNet while sponsoring
their own health benefits obtained through a broker.Payroll ServicesWe help our PEO and ASO clients manage their employee compensation by providing multi-state payroll
processing, tax administration and tax credit services and other payroll-related services, such as time and attendance management, time off and overtime tracking, and expense
management solutions. Our clients and WSEs can access payroll and tax information using our various online and mobile tools. Our payroll tax administration and tax credit services
include calculating, withholding, remitting and reporting certain federal, state and local payroll and unemployment taxes on behalf of clients and WSEs. TRINET7A 2024 FORM 10-K
BUSINESSTable of ContentsRisk Mitigation We monitor employment-related legal and regulatory developments at the federal, state, and local levels to help our PEO and ASO clients
comply with employment laws and mitigate many of the risks associated with being an employer. We provide HR guidance on employment laws and regulations, such as those relating
to minimum wage, unemployment insurance, family and medical leave and anti-discrimination. For our PEO clients, our TriNet-sponsored benefit plans are designed to comply with
applicable laws and regulations, such as the ACA, reducing this compliance burden to our clients. Our PEO services provide fully-insured workers' compensation insurance coverage
for our clients and WSEs through insurance policies that we negotiate with third-party insurance carriers. We manage the deductible risk that we assume in connection with these
policies by being selective in the types of businesses that we take on as new clients, and by monitoring claims data and performance of our carriers and third-party claims management
service providers. In addition, we advise clients on workersa€™ compensation best practices, including by performing workplace assessment consultations and assisting with client
efforts to identify conditions or practices that might lead to employee injuries.We also provide EPLI coverage for our PEO clients through an insurance policy that we obtain from a
third-party EPLI carrier. This policy provides coverage for certain claims that arise in the course of the employment relationship, such as discrimination, harassment, and certain other
employee claims, with a per-claim retention amount. The retention amount under this policy, which functions like a deductible, is allocated on a pre-determined basis between the
client and TriNet. Our professionals assist our clients in implementing HR best practices to help avoid and reduce the cost of employment-related liabilities. Our preferred outside
employment law firms defend covered EPLI claims. Technology Platform Our PEO technology platform includes online and mobile tools that allow our clients and WSEs to store, view,
and manage HR information and administer a variety of HR transactions, such as payroll processing, tax administration, tax credits, employee onboarding and termination, employee
performance, time and attendance, compensation reporting, expense management, and benefits enrollment and administration. Our online tools also incorporate workforce analytics,
allowing PEO clients to generate HR, payroll, total compensation and other custom reports. Contractor and Global Workforce SupportTriNet provides clients with a simplified solution
for handling independent contractors with our contractor payments application, featuring a software solution that allows clients to onboard, manage and pay independent contractors.
In addition, for clients with employees outside the U.S., we provide payroll and HR support through international employer of record partners.Our PEO Co-Employment ModelOur PEO
services operate on the basis of a co-employment model, under which employment-related responsibilities are allocated by contract between us and our PEO clients. The co-
employment model allows WSEs to receive the full scope of our services, including providing WSEs with access to TriNet-sponsored employee benefit plan offerings. Each of our PEO
clients enters into a client service agreement with us that defines the suite of services and benefits to be provided by us, the fees payable to us, and the division of responsibilities
between us and our clients as co-employers. WSEs also separately acknowledge the co-employment relationship and the allocation of employment-related responsibilities between
TriNet and the client co-employer. The division of responsibilities under our client service agreements is typically as follows:TriNet Responsibilities We generally assume responsibility
for, and manage certain risks associated with:4€¢payments of salaries, wages and certain other compensation to WSEs from our own bank accounts (based on client reports and
payments), including the processing of garnishment and wage deduction orders,a€¢reporting of wages, withholding and deposit of associated payroll taxes as the employer of
record,a€¢provision and maintenance of workers' compensation insurance and workers' compensation claims processing, TRINET8A 2024 FORM 10-K BUSINESSTable of Contentsa€
¢access to, and administration of, group health, welfare, and retirement benefits to WSEs under TriNet-sponsored benefit plans,a€¢compliance with applicable law for certain TriNet-
sponsored employee benefits offered to WSEs,a€ ¢administration of unemployment claims and post-employment COBRA benefits, anda€¢provision of various HR policies and
agreements, including employee handbooks and worksite employee agreements describing the co-employment relationship.Client Responsibilities Our clients are responsible for
employment-related responsibilities that we do not specifically assume, generally including: 4€¢day-to-day management of their worksites and WSEs,&€¢compliance with laws
associated with the classification of employees as exempt or non-exempt, such as overtime pay and minimum wage law compliance,a€¢accurate and timely reporting to TriNet of
compensation and deduction information, including information relating to hours worked, rates of pay, salaries, wages and other compensation, and work locations,a€¢accurate and
timely reporting to TriNet of information relating to workplace injuries, employee hires and termination, and certain other information relevant to TriNeta€™ s services,a€¢provision
and administration of any employee benefits not provided by TriNet, such as equity incentive plans or nonqualified deferred compensation plans,a€¢compliance with all laws and
regulations applicable to the clients' workplace and business, including work eligibility laws, laws relating to workplace safety or the environment, laws relating to family and medical
leave, laws pertaining to employee organizing efforts and collective bargaining and employee termination notice requirements,a€¢payment of TriNet invoices, which include
reimbursement for salary, wages and other relevant compensation to WSEs and applicable employment taxes and service fees, anda€¢all other matters for which TriNet does not
assume responsibility under the client service agreement, such as intellectual property ownership and protection and liability for products produced and services provided by the client
company to its own clients. As a result of co-employment relationships for PEO services, we are liable for payment of salary, wages and certain other compensation to the WSEs as
reported and paid to us by our client, and we are responsible for providing specified employee benefits to such persons to the extent provided in each client service agreement and
under federal and state law. In most instances, clients are required to remit payment prior to the applicable payroll date by wire transfer or ACH.For our PEO services, we also assume
responsibility for payment and liability for the withholding and remittance of federal and state income and employment taxes with respect to salaries, wages and certain other
compensation paid to WSEs, although we reserve the right to seek recourse against our clients for any liabilities arising out of their conduct. We perform these functions as the
statutory employer for federal employment tax purposes since our clients transfer legal control over these payroll functions to us. The laws that govern the payment of salaries, wages
and related payroll taxes for our WSEs are complex and the various federal, state and local laws that govern such payments can vary significantly. Based on applicable law in any
jurisdiction, we or our client may be held ultimately liable for those obligations if we fail to remit taxes.A Our ASO services do not involve co-employment, and this reduces the
responsibility and liability that we assume when providing these services. For example, while we may facilitate payroll processing for ASO clients, TriNet is not the employer of record.
ASO clients generally remain responsible for, among other things, workersd€™ compensation insurance, obtaining and sponsoring group health, welfare and retirement benefits,
administering unemployment claims, and in some cases payroll tax reporting. The additional responsibilities that PEOs assume, and risks that PEOs manage, for our PEO clients is a
key difference between our PEO and ASO services. TRINET9A 2024 FORM 10-K BUSINESSTable of ContentsMarket Trends and Developments Affecting Our BusinessThe U.S.
economy grew modestly during 2024 with unemployment remaining steady while inflation stabilized during the year. We observed the following industry trends in 2024:4€¢SMB
Economic Performance. Over any year, SMBs generally experience staffing changes, either resulting in a net increase or decrease in staffing. In 2024 the extent of net staffing
increases differed based on industry and geographic region. Our clients experienced staffing reductions in the technology and professional services sectors, while staffing levels rose in
other sectors such as main street and nonprofit. Other industries remained stable. Overall in 2024, net hiring was low relative to our historical experience.&€¢Continued Insurance
Cost Variability and Volatility. In 2024, we experienced higher than anticipated health benefits utilization and inflation in healthcare costs, which are affected by factors such as
market-wide pharmaceutical price increases, as well as the impact of rising wages and other costs which led to increased costs associated with contract renewals between health
insurers and health care providers.a€¢Tax Credit Backlogs. Many of the key economic assistance programs that SMBs relied on during the COVID-19 pandemic have now expired,
including the ERTC. Although these programs have expired, processing backlogs and a temporary halt in September 2023 in processing new ERTC claims at the IRS have resulted in
many SMBs, including some of our clients, continuing to wait to receive their tax credits. In many cases, SMBs still participated in these programs retroactively via payroll tax filing
amendments. Many SMBs continue to wait for their credits to be processed.a€¢Interest Rates. After a period of rising interest rates, we saw short-term rates begin to decrease in the
second half of 2024. While this period of higher interest rates may have resulted in lower overall hiring among our SMB clients, we have not yet seen hiring rates rise as a result of the
recent decrease in short-term rates. Further, the lower short-term interest rates resulted in reduced interest income on our cash deposits, a driver of our financial results, but will also
result in lower interest expense on our outstanding borrowings under our 2021 Revolver.&€¢Privacy Laws and Regulations. We have seen increased focus at every level of government
inside and outside of the United States on regulating the collection, storage, use, retention, security, disclosure, transfer and other processing of confidential, sensitive and personal
information, as well as the growing use of Al. As the patchwork of laws becomes increasingly complex, we expect the effort and cost of complying with all of the requirements to also
increase and the likelihood of compliance failures to rise.&€¢PEO Benefit Plan Legislation. Various state governments from time to time seek to regulate PEO health plans. State
regulations on PEO health plans can limit our options for providing TriNet sponsored benefits to our PEO clients or eliminate those benefits entirely. We devote substantial time and
resources to monitor and respond to these developments. We expect to continue to see these legislative and regulatory efforts across the country.For more information regarding the
developments above, refer to Part II, Item 7. MD&A and Part I, [tem 1A. Risk Factors in this Form 10-K.Our Technology and Service Development EffortsWe continued to make
significant investments in our PEO technology platform. These investments are intended to provide our clients (including PEO and ASO clients) and WSEs with enhanced functionality,
ease of use, HR management options, security and an optimized user experience. We intend to continue making these and other similar investments in 2025 and beyond to drive
operating efficiencies and improve client retention and satisfaction over the long term. In 2024, we continued to develop our next-generation cloud-based platform. This new platform,
which combines elements of our original PEO and HRIS platforms, is intended to further modernize our customersad€™ experience through more self-service capabilities and other
important functions to, in turn, enable us to service SMBs throughout a larger portion of their lifecycle. Moreover, we have also begun to explore integrating new technologies,
including expanding our existing AI/ML capabilities, into the customer experience to allow us to create efficiencies in the way we serve our customers and the way we operate
internally. TRINET10A 2024 FORM 10-K BUSINESSTable of ContentsOur Clients and GeographiesOur clients are distributed across a variety of industries. Our PEO clients generally
execute annual service contracts with us that automatically renew. In most cases, our PEO clients may cancel these contracts with 30 days' notice to us and we may cancel these
contracts with 30 days' notice to our clients. Our ASO clients execute contracts with monthly or annual terms and clients can typically cancel these contracts with 30 daysa€™ notice
to us. In some cases, our clients may incur fees associated with early termination.Our top five PEO markets are California, New York, Florida, Texas and Massachusetts, which account
for approximately 63% of our total WSE paid wages for the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024. Nearly all of our revenues are generated within the United States and its territories and
substantially all our long-lived assets are located in the United States.Our CompetitorsWe face competition from:4€¢PEOs that compete directly with us,a€¢payroll processing agents
and other HCM services providers that do not use a PEO model,4€¢HR and personnel of companies that administer employee benefits, payroll and HR for their companies in-house,a€
¢providers of certain endpoint HR services, including payroll, employee benefits, business process outsourcers with high-volume transaction and administrative capabilities, and other
third-party administrators, and&€¢insurance brokers who allow third-party HR systems to integrate with their technology platform.PEO services remain our core business and other



PEOs continue to represent our most significant competition. Our PEO service competitors include large PEOs such as the TotalSource unit of Automatic Data Processing, Inc., the
PEO operations of Paychex, Inc. and Insperity, Inc., as well as numerous specialized and smaller PEOs and similar HR service providers with PEO operations. We believe that a key
reason why our PEO services are attractive to SMBs is because of our ability to provide access to a broad range of workers' compensation, health insurance and other benefits
programs on a cost-effective basis. Our customers may obtain their own insurance through brokers and other providers of insurance and benefits coverage, and our PEO offerings
must be priced competitively with those provided by these competitors for us to attract and retain our clients.Our PEO clients are typically looking for high-touch HR compliance and
services support, TriNet sponsored employee benefits, TriNet responsibility for processing payroll and payroll taxes, and access to EPLI claims support and other substantial HR
services. By contrast, many of our ASO clients are looking for more self-directed, focused and less expensive ASO services. We do not co-employ the employees of our ASO clients and
do not provide them with TriNet sponsored health benefits. As a result, our ASO services compete with services provided by a wider array of HCM companies outside of the PEO
industry.For additional information about our competition, please refer to Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10-K, under the heading a€“ "We must continue to work to
improve our services to meet the expectations of our clients and regulators, or we may lose our clients and materially harm our business".Our Sales and Marketing OrganizationsWe
sell our solutions through our sales organization, offering our solutions directly to clients and through key strategic partnerships with brokers and other channel partners. We have
aligned our PEO sales organization by industry vertical with the goal of growing profitable market share in targeted industries. Our PEO vertical approach deepens our network of
relationships and gives us an understanding of the unique HR needs facing SMBs in those industries. Our sales representatives are supported by marketing, brand, lead generation
efforts, and referral sources and networks. We increasingly use technology and remote communication tools to engage with customers and prospects virtually. TRINET11A 2024
FORM 10-K BUSINESSTable of ContentsOur marketing organization supports our sales representatives across the entire customer journey, from brand awareness and lead generation
to customer nurturing, and leverages referral sources and networks. We increasingly utilize technology and remote communication tools to engage with customers and prospective
customers effectively. To connect with SMBs, we leverage diverse channels, including sponsorships with associations and aligned brands. Key initiatives include promoting our PEO
and ASO services through both physical and virtual events and workshops. Programs such as TriNet PeopleForce, monthly PEO, and ongoing ASO virtual events allow us to target
specific verticals and geographic markets. As a sponsor of the Small Business Associationa€™s National Small Business Week, we also host a dedicated week-long event to deliver
valuable, targeted content to the SMB community. During these events, we frequently include specialists and customers to provide actionable, real-world insights. We seek to generate
sales opportunities, build brand awareness, enhance client retention, and establish our reputation as an HCM thought leader in key industry verticals through marketing alliances and
indirect channels. These include partnerships with insurance brokers, accounting firms, venture capital firms, incubators and industry associations. Our digital marketing programs
aim to drive awareness, generate interest, and capture leads across our portfolio. These efforts encompass digital advertising, search engine marketing, retargeting, and email
campaigns. Our marketing and corporate communications teams lead efforts to building brand awareness, overseeing reputation management, driving lead generation, retaining
customers, and delivering relevant thought leadership to the SMB community. The team manages our website and other owned properties, creates content for outbound and inbound
channels, and supports sales enablement, promotional campaigns, brand initiatives, and partner enablement. In 2024, we also published 4&€aeThe State of the Workplacea€, which
provided a comprehensive analysis of both employer and employee perspectives in the U.S. small business community. Additionally, our Corporate Communications and Editorial team
is responsible for managing our press and media relations, overseeing internal and external communications, driving organic social media initiatives, and developing comprehensive
crisis communication strategies to safeguard and further enhance our reputation. With SMB behavior evolving rapidly, we have adopted digital tools such as telepresence, chat, and
interactive assessments to enable us to engage SMBs in innovative ways. In 2024, we enhanced our digital engagement with tools such as conversational marketing on our website and
interactive self-assessments. Our brand campaigns are designed to create a unifying "umbrella effect" to amplify awareness across the industry. Our 2024 brand campaign, centered
on our organizing principle "People Matter," employed an omnichannel approach that we expect will continue to evolve in 2025. The Laws and Regulations that Affect Our BusinessOur
business operates in a complex legal and regulatory environment due to myriad federal, state and local laws and regulations that impact our business. Below is a summary of what we
believe are the most important legal and regulatory issues specific to our business. For additional information on the impact of these and other laws and regulations on our business
and results of operations, refer to Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10-K, under the heading - "Legal and Compliance Risks". TRINET12A 2024 FORM 10-K BUSINESSTable of
ContentsEmployer Status under ERISA and State LawsAs part of our PEO services, we sponsor employee benefit plan offerings as the employer of our WSEs under the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), ERISA and applicable state law. The term d€ceemployera€ has different definitions for different purposes under the Code and ERISA,
and for most purposes are interpreted under complex multi-factor tests under common law. As the employer of WSEs with respect to the employee benefit plans we sponsor, we must
manage our benefit plans in accordance with ERISA requirements, which can impact how we fulfill plan obligations, how we price services, the features of our benefit plans, and how
we administer and operate our plans. We believe we manage our benefit plans in accordance with ERISA requirements and that we are the employer of our WSEs with respect to the
plans for purposes of the Code, ERISA and various state laws, but this status could be subject to challenge by various regulators. We believe that our benefit plans are exempt from
many state regulations under ERISA, but our position could be challenged by state regulators or as a result of new laws, regulations, agency guidance, audits or case law at the federal
and state levels. For additional information on our state and federal employer status and the ERISA and other state requirements that apply to us and their collective impact on our
business and results of operations, refer to Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10-K, under the heading - "If we are not recognized as an employer of worksite employees, and if
our benefit plans are deemed to not satisfy plan requirements, under federal and state regulations, we and our clients could be adversely impacted".Health Insurance and Health Care
ReformOur sponsored employee health and welfare offerings are an important component of the services that we provide. The future of health care reform continues to evolve in the
U.S. For example,A the passage of the ACA in 2010 implemented sweeping health care reforms with staggered effective dates from 2010 through 2022, and many provisions in the
ACA are still subject to the issuance of additional guidance from the DOL, the IRS, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services and various U.S. states.A Passage of the TCJA in
2017 eliminated the individual mandate tax penalty under the ACA beginning in 2019, while retaining employer ACA mandate obligations. States have developed, and will continue to
develop, varying approaches to state-based health exchanges and mandates. Further significant changes to health care statutes, regulations and policy at the federal, state and local
levels could occur in the future, including the potential further modification or amendment of the ACA, and we may need to adapt the manner in which we conduct our business as a
result of any such changes. For additional information on health care reform and its impact on our business and results of operations, refer to Part I, [tem 1A. Risk Factors, of this
Form 10-K, under the heading - "Changing laws and regulations governing health insurance and other traditional employee benefits at the federal, state and local level could
negatively affect our business".Data Privacy and Security RegulationsWe collect, store, use, retain, disclose, transfer and otherwise process a significant amount of confidential,
sensitive and personal information from and about our actual and potential clients, WSEs, employees of ASO clients, and colleagues, and we are subject to a variety of federal, state
and international laws, rules, and regulations in connection with such activities. As a sponsor of employee benefit plans, we also have access to certain protected health information
(PHI) of our WSEs and colleagues. Management of PHI is subject to several regulations at the federal level, including HIPAA and the HITECH Act. HIPAA contains restrictions and
health data privacy, security and breach notification requirements with respect to the use and disclosure of PHI. Further, there are penalties and fines for HIPAA violations. Because
TriNet sponsored health plans are covered entities under HIPAA, our sponsored health plans are required to comply with HIPAA's portability, privacy, and security requirements. We
are also subject, among other applicable federal laws, rules and regulations, to the rules and regulations promulgated under the authority of the Federal Trade Commission. In recent
years, the federal government has increased its focus on and regulation of data privacy and security, and we expect this to evolve in the coming years. TRINET13A 2024 FORM 10-K
BUSINESSTable of ContentsAt the state and local level, there is ongoing focus on regulating the collection, storage, use, retention, security, disclosure, transfer and other processing
of confidential, sensitive and personal information. In recent years, many states have proposed or enacted new laws or amended existing laws and we expect them to continue to do so
in the future. As the state privacy laws become increasingly complex, we expect the cost and effort of complying with all of the requirements to increase and the likelihood of
compliance failures to rise. Moreover, without the enactment of a comprehensive federal privacy law, we are required to comply with a patchwork of state laws that lacks uniformity
which creates significant legal complexities for companies like TriNet that operate nationwide. Similarly, as we continue to expand our operations and services, we may be required to
comply with similarly complex privacy security laws in the countries or regions in which we operate or provide services. Complying with existing and new privacy and security
regulations could cause us to incur substantial costs or require us to change our business practices in a manner adverse to our business. For additional information regarding the
privacy and security of the confidential, sensitive and personal information and PHI we possess and the potential impact to our business if we fail to protect such information, refer to
Part [, Item 1C. Cybersecurity and each of the risk factors included in Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10-K, under the heading - "Data Privacy and Security Risks".Licensing
LawsNearly all states have adopted laws and regulations for licensing, registration, certification or recognition of PEOs and the IRS has implemented a voluntary federal certification
program for PEOs. We expect states without such laws and regulations to adopt them in the future. While these laws and regulations can vary widely, most regulators monitor the
financial health and other relevant business information of PEOs on an annual or quarterly basis. In some cases, these laws and regulations codify and clarify the co-employment
relationship for certain payroll, unemployment, workers' compensation and other employment-related purposes or require specific client contractual terms and/or WSE disclosures. We
believe we comply in all material respects with the applicable PEO laws and regulations in each state and jurisdiction in which we provide PEO services. Every state regulates
insurance practices conducted within their jurisdiction. While we do not broker insurance currently, certain of our PEO and ASO services involve assisting our clients in obtaining and
managing employee benefits. We partner with brokers to provide these services and have elected to obtain state insurance licenses as a result. As each stated€™s licensing
requirements differ, maintaining current licenses is complex and we are subject to insurance audits, investigations and fines if we fail to comply with insurance license
requirements.Other state regulatory authorities impose licensing requirements on companies involved in the transmission of cash, such as banks, and other money transmitters. We do
not believe that our current activities require any such licenses, but we and others in our industry have received inquiries from regulatory authorities in the past and could receive
them in the future. For additional information on the impact of licensing laws, refer to Part I, [tem 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10-K, under the heading "If we do not comply with our
regulatory license requirements, or if we are deemed to be operating in various non-PEO licensed industries without the required licenses, we and our clients could be adversely
impacted".TRINET14A 2024 FORM 10-K BUSINESSTable of ContentsPayroll Taxes, Unemployment Taxes and Payroll Tax CreditsWe must also comply with the federal and state
payroll tax and unemployment tax requirements that apply where our clients are located. Tax reform efforts, and other payroll tax changes, at the federal, state and local level can
impact our payroll tax reporting obligations for our clients and the services we can provide. State unemployment tax rates vary by state based in part on prior yearsa€™ total wages,
unemployment taxes paid and unemployment claims experience and may also vary based on the overall claims experience of a PEO in states in which we are required to report and pay
unemployment taxes using one of our accounts and rates.A As a result, depending on where client WSEs perform services for our clients, the fees we charge PEO clients for
unemployment taxes can be higher or lower than a client could obtain without use of a PEO. In some cases, taxing authorities can retroactively increase the unemployment taxes we
pay to cover deficiencies in the unemployment tax funds. We also rely on our clients to accurately inform us of the work and residence locations for their WSEs and ASO client
employees, and inaccurate information, whether due to remote work policies or otherwise, can impact our payroll tax obligations and the obligations of our clients, WSEs and ASO
client employees.We have seen a growing trend, particularly at the federal level, of using payroll tax credits, deferrals and other related payroll tax programs as a mechanism for
incentivizing SMB development and economic recovery. These programs are popular because they allow SMBs, which often have business income tax losses, to realize benefits via
payroll tax reductions, rather than business income tax reductions. As a result, many of our SMB clients require that we support these programs. Examples of these programs include
the federal 2015 PATH Act, CARES Act and FFCRA. The PATH Act allows SMBs to use R&D tax credits submitted on the SMBa€™ s business income tax return to reduce certain
payroll taxes. The CARES Act and FFCRA introduced payroll tax credits and employer Social Security deferral programs that allowed SMBs to receive payroll tax reductions and
refunds or to defer the employer portion of Social Security based on qualifications and employment practices. We act as the employer of record for federal payroll tax reporting for our
PEO clients. This means that we file client tax credit claims, and pass the associated tax credit refunds to our clients based on information supplied by our clients, which we do not
control. These programs have generally not been designed with the PEO industry in mind and these programs are subject to broad agency interpretations given their complexity. While
our clients are contractually responsible to us for their errors in tax credit submissions and for repaying us for all rejected tax credits under our service contracts, taxing authorities
may still look to TriNet for repayment and we may not be able to effectively enforce or collect on these obligations. For additional information tax credit programs, and the risks they
post to our operations, refer to Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10-K, under the heading - "Our business is subject to numerous complex laws, and changes in, uncertainty
regarding, or adverse application of these laws could negatively affect our business."Other Employment RegulationsWe must also comply with labor and employment laws, which
change frequently at the federal, state and local level. In particular for our PEO services, regulatory focus on the classification of employers, employees and independent contractors
has the potential to significantly change how we and other PEOs operate and the services that we and other PEOs can provide to our clients and WSEs. States continue to consider, or
have adopted, changing regulations or guidance around the definition of employers, employees and independent contractors and any change in these definitions may impact our ability
to provide certain PEO and ASO services to certain employers or employees.We must also comply with state and federal rules and guidelines around both independent contractor and
joint employer status. Standards for determining independent contractor and joint employer status vary from law to law and state to state, and changes to and new interpretations of
these standards can limit the client workers to which we can provide services and increase the likelihood of claims that we are a joint employer of client WSEs or an employer of ASO
client employees. For example, In January 2024, the DOL proposed a new rule for determining independent contractor status and in August 2023, the DOL proposed new regulations
that address the salary requirements for white collar minimum wage and overtime exemptions under the FLSA. Meanwhile, the NLRB also modified its own independent contractors
test in June 2023 and issued a new standard for determining whether two businesses are joint employers under the NLRA in October 2023. We do not believe that we are a joint
employer under any law or rule, or that these rule changes impact our status as a co-employer. However, laws regarding independent contractor and joint employer status can impact
the types of SMB workers we can service and the potential liability that we have for the actions of our SMB clients and their employees. For additional information, refer to Part I, [tem
1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10-K, under the heading - "The definition of employers, employees and independent contractors is evolving. Changes to the laws and regulations that



govern what it means to be an employer or an employee may require us to make significant changes in our operations and may negatively affect our business". TRINET15A 2024 FORM
10-K BUSINESSTable of ContentsOur Human Capital ResourcesAs of DecemberA 31, 2024, we had approximately 360,700 WSEs and 3,600 colleagues. Oversight and ManagementAt
TriNet, we power the success of SMBs by supporting their growth and enabling their people. Together, we strive to become the most trusted advisor to SMBs by harnessing the power
of scale. We recognize the incredible opportunity that can only be realized by working together, with a shared view of how we support our clients, WSEs and ASO clients. This is
illustrated in our core values:a€¢Lead with the customer - We are accessible, responsive and empowered to serve our customers. We are successful when our customers are
successful.4€¢Stand together - We bring together diverse backgrounds, experiences and ideas to create better outcomes. We collaborate across boundaries, communicate openly and
respect each other.a€¢Act with integrity - We are honest, transparent, ethical and fair. We take pride in always doing whata€™s right for our customers and colleagues.a€¢Make an
impact - We act with purpose, are deliberate in our planning and quick in execution. We are accountable to each other and empowered to make decisions.&€¢Be incredible - We invest
in the development of our colleagues. We push the boundaries of what's possible, lead the way and innovate to accomplish the extraordinary.We regularly conduct surveys to seek
feedback from our colleagues on a variety of topics, including confidence in company leadership, competitiveness of our compensation and benefits package, career growth
opportunities and opportunities to improve the attractiveness of our company with existing and potential colleagues. The results are shared with our colleagues and reviewed by senior
leadership, who analyze areas of progress or deterioration and prioritize actions and activities in response to this feedback to drive meaningful improvements in colleague
engagement. None of our colleagues are covered by a collective bargaining agreement.Attracting and Retaining our ColleaguesWe must attract, develop and retain highly motivated
and qualified colleagues to continue to provide the services that our clients need, to achieve our strategic objectives, and to grow our business. We do this by:a€¢offering competitive
compensation and benefits packages, including comprehensive health benefits and our 401(k) retirement savings plan, with an immediately vested employer match of up to 4% of cash
compensation,a€¢supporting a pay for performance culture through the use of cash and equity incentives tied to the performance of our company and individual performance,a€
¢offering an ESPP that allows our colleagues to purchase our shares at a discount to market value, which fosters a stronger sense of ownership and aligns the interests of our
colleagues with our stockholders,a€¢investing in the professional growth of our colleagues with tuition and continuing education reimbursement, well-being programs, and
comprehensive training and development activities and opportunities both inside and outside of our company,a€¢creating and maintaining an environment that promotes inclusion and
belonging by, for example, the use of colleague-led resource groups and a training curriculum for our colleagues, anda€¢supporting workplace flexibility for our colleagues by adopting
remote work policies, and providing access to telemedicine services.For more information about how we help our PEO and ASO clients manage their own human capital resources and
satisfy their own HR-related needs, see the section above titled &€ceOur Servicesa€. TRINET16A 2024 FORM 10-K BUSINESSTable of ContentsOur Approach to
AcquisitionsHistorically, we have pursued acquisitions to expand our service capabilities, technology offerings, and supplement our growth. Our acquisition targets have included PEOs
as well as HCM technology and services companies to supplement or enhance our HCM services. We intend to continue to pursue acquisitions, where appropriate, that will enable us
to add new clients or WSEs, expand our presence in certain geographies or industry verticals, or expand our technology capabilities or services.The Impact of Seasonality on Our
BusinessOur business is affected by seasonality in client business activity, hiring and benefit selections, health claims costs and payroll taxes:a€¢PEO clients generally change their
payroll service providers at the beginning of the payroll tax and benefits enrollment year; as a result, we have historically experienced our highest volumes of new clients joining and
terminating clients in the month of January. Our ASO clients are generally less affected by these considerations.&€¢WSEs select our TriNet-sponsored benefit plans during their
respective open enrollment periods, which occur throughout the year. We generally experience the largest proportion of WSE benefit changes in the first and second quarters.a€
¢Health claims costs tend to increase throughout the year as the utilization of medical services above each WSE's deductible causes our insurance costs to increase. In addition, the
overall use of medical services by WSEs, including elective procedures, tends to increase later in the calendar year.a€¢Certain payroll tax related billings are based on annual taxable
wage bases up to a set cap. Our clients frequently meet these wage base caps in the first two quarters of the year, depending on the compensation level of the relevant employees,
resulting in lower related billing contributions to PSR in the latter half of the year.Our Owned and Licensed Intellectual Property We own or license from third parties various software
and other intellectual property rights, used in our business. We protect our intellectual property rights through the use of confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements with our
colleagues and third-party partners and vendors as well as policies incorporated and enforceable by contract. We also own registered trademarks in the United States, Australia,
Canada, the United Kingdom, and the European Union covering our name and other trademarks and logos that we believe are materially important to our operations. We generally
protect our trademarks through federal registration or through the commercial use of our trademarks. Trademark registrations must generally be renewed every five to ten years and
we renew the registration of trademarks that we deem to have continuing value to our business.Corporate and Other Available InformationWe were incorporated in 1988 as TriNet
Employer Group, Inc., a California corporation. We reincorporated as TriNet Merger Corporation, a Delaware corporation, in 2000 and during that year changed our name to TriNet
Group, Inc. Our principal executive office is located at One Park Place, Suite 600, Dublin, CA 94568 and our telephone number is (510) 352-5000. Our website address is
www.trinet.com. Information contained in or accessible through our website is not a part of this report.Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current
Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports are available free of charge at investor.trinet.com as soon as reasonably practicable after we file such material with, or furnish
it to, the SEC. Alternatively, the public may access these reports at the SEC's website at www.sec.gov. The contents of these websites are not incorporated into this report and are not
part of this report. TRINET17A 2024 FORM 10-K RISK FACTORSTable of ContentsItemA 1A. Risk Factors Below is a discussion of the risks that we believe are significant to our
business. These risks are not the only ones we face. We may face additional risks that we do not currently consider to be significant or of which we are not currently aware, and any of
these risks could cause our actual results to differ materially from historical or anticipated results. You should carefully consider these risks along with the other information provided
in this Form 10-K, including the information in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and our accompanying consolidated financial
statements, as well as the information under the heading "Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements" before investing in any of our securities. We may amend,
supplement or add to the risk factors described below from time to time in future reports filed with the SEC.Operational RisksUnexpected changes in workers' compensation and
health insurance costs and claims by worksite employees could harm our business.Our insurance costs, which comprise a significant portion of our overall costs, are significantly
affected by WSEs' health and workers' compensation insurance claims experience. We use fully insured risk-based, and fully insured guaranteed-cost, insurance policies provided by
third-party insurance carriers. Under risk-based policies, we agree to reimburse our carriers for any claims paid within an agreed-upon per-person deductible layer up to a maximum
aggregate exposure limit per policy. These deductible dollar limits and maximum limits vary by carrier and year. Under guaranteed-cost policies, our carriers establish the premiums,
and we are not responsible for any deductible. Refer to Note 1 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10-K for further discussion of these
policies.Under our risk-based health insurance policies, which make up the majority of our health plans and claims paid in 2024, we assume the risk of variability in future health
claims costs for our enrollees. We have experienced variability, and may experience variability in the future, in the amounts that we are required to pay within our deductible layer
under these policies. This variability arises from changes to the components of MCT, defined as changes in participant use of services, including the introduction of new treatment
options, changes in treatment guidelines and mandates, and changes in the mix, cost of providing treatment, and timing of services provided to plan participants. MCT trends change
over time, and other seasonal trends and variability may develop, which makes it difficult for us to predict this aspect of our business and our failure to accurately predict these trends
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. For example, while our insurance costs were only moderately higher than our
expectations in 2024, higher medical claims had a significant impact on our results due to volume. In addition, if we underestimate future levels of healthcare cost inflation, it could
increase our cost of claims, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.Under our fully insured workers' compensation
insurance policies, we assume the risk for losses up to $1 million per claim occurrence (deductible layer). The ultimate cost of the workersd€™ compensation services provided will not
be known until all the claims are settled. If we do not accurately predict the risks that we assume, we may not charge adequate fees to cover our costs, which could reduce our net
income and result in a material adverse effect on our business. Our ability to predict these costs is impacted by unexpected increases in frequency or severity of claims, which can vary
due to changes in the cost of treatments or claim settlements. We accrue for the estimated future costs of reimbursing our workers' compensation and health insurance carriers under
our insurance policies. We use internal actuaries to develop health claims estimates, and we use external actuaries and our own experience to develop workersa€™ compensation
estimates, but the volume and severity of claims activity is difficult to accurately predict. Estimating these accrued costs requires us to consider a number of factors, such as the
components of MCT, seasonal trends and the impact of events such as the COVID-19 pandemic, which requires significant judgment. In addition, the usefulness of historic claims data
is impacted by our rates of WSE and client turnover and we renew our carrier contracts and set fees in advance of benefit periods.In past periods, we have experienced insurance costs
that were either higher or lower than our expectations and estimates. If we were to experience either outcome in the future, it could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operation. Higher-than-expected insurance costs result in lower net income. Because we set fees in advance of plan periods, lower-than-expected
insurance costs can be an indicator that insurance costs are developing more slowly than our projections, which are reflected in our fees, and this can have a negative impact on client
retention and new sales. In addition, claims are not static, and if we subsequently receive updated information indicating that the volume and severity of insurance claims were higher
or lower than previously estimated and reported, our insurance costs could be higher or lower, respectively, in that period or subsequent periods as we adjust our accrued costs
accordingly, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. We have experienced both favorable and unfavorable insurance
cost variability due to claims activity in the past and could have similar or worse experiences in the future. Refer to Critical Accounting Judgments and Estimates in Part II, Item 7.
MD&A, of this Form 10-K for further discussion of these estimates. TRINET18A 2024 FORM 10-K RISK FACTORSTable of ContentsOur co-employment relationship with our worksite
employees exposes us to unique business risks.As a co-employer of client WSEs, we assume some of the risks and obligations of an employer. For instance, in the past we have been
required to provide access to health benefits to WSEs even when the cost of providing those benefits exceeded the service fees received from our clients. The extent of our
responsibility for other aspects of our co-employer relationship with WSEs remains subject to regulatory uncertainty at the federal, state and local levels. For example, in certain
states, PEOs are responsible for paying salaries, wages and related payroll taxes of WSEs, even if our clients have not timely remitted payments to us whether due to insolvency, their
bank going into receivership, or other events that may be out of our control. WSEs work in our clients' workplaces. We do not control the workplace environment of our clients. Yet, we
may be subject to liability for violations of labor and employment laws, workers' compensation laws, industry-specific laws that apply to the businesses our clients operate, and other
laws that apply to our clients or to employers generally. We may also be liable for acts, omissions or violations by clients or WSEs, even if we do not participate in such acts, omissions
or violations.We seek to mitigate these risks through our client agreements and insurance coverage. Our client agreements allocate responsibilities between us and our clients and
provide that our clients will fund certain obligations in advance and indemnify us for any liability attributable to their own or our WSEs' conduct. However, we may not be able to
effectively enforce or collect on these obligations. In addition, we maintain insurance coverage, including workersa€™ compensation and EPLI coverage, to limit our and our clients'
exposure to various WSE-related claims. We are still responsible for deductible layers under our EPLI policies, and these policies generally exclude coverage for claims relating to the
classification of employees as exempt or non-exempt, other wage and hour issues, and employment contract disputes. We cannot assure you that our insurance will be sufficient in
amount or scope to cover all claims that may be asserted against us and for which we are unable to obtain indemnification from our clients.Negative publicity relating to events or
activities attributed to us or our colleagues as a result of the actions of our clients and WSEs, or others associated with them, whether or not justified, may tarnish our reputation and
reduce the value of our brand, which could have a material adverse impact on our ability to attract and retain clients. We may not realize or sustain the expected benefits from our
business transformation initiatives, and these efforts could have a materially adverse effect on our business.We have been and will be undertaking certain transformation initiatives,
which are designed to evolve the technology we use to support our sales and marketing efforts and our financial and reporting systems, enhance our customer support model, provide
industry-leading benefits offerings and strengthen our talent and culture, while supporting our revenue growth, margin improvement and productivity. If we do not successfully
manage and execute these initiatives, or if they are inadequate or ineffective, we may fail to meet our financial goals and achieve anticipated benefits, improvements may be delayed,
not sustained or not realized and our business, operations and competitive position could be adversely affected. These initiatives, or our failure to successfully manage them, could
result in unintended consequences or unforeseen costs, including distraction of our management and employees, attrition, inability to attract or retain key personnel, and reduced
employee productivity, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. We have and will continue to devote substantial time, money and
management resources to these projects. Managing these projects also typically requires changes to our internal operational, financial and management controls as well as our
reporting systems and procedures. We cannot guarantee that our efforts will achieve our goals in a timely or cost-effective manner or at all, and we cannot guarantee that we can carry
out these projects without a negative impact on our day-to-day operations and client satisfaction. If our current and future projects are delayed or unsuccessful, of if any changes to our
controls, reporting systems, or procedures are deficient, client satisfaction may suffer, we may lose clients or fail to onboard new clients at expected rates, and we may incur
substantial unanticipated costs to complete these projects. Any of these outcomes could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Our SMB clients are particularly affected by volatility in the economic environment.SMBs can be particularly susceptible to changes in the level of overall economic activity in the
markets in which they operate. These businesses are often exposed to credit and cash liquidity risks, including exposure as a result of the failure of their financial institutions, that
larger businesses may be able to avoid, and during periods of weak economic conditions, including periods of increased inflation and increased borrowing costs, SMB failures tend to
increase, and employment levels tend to decrease. During these periods, our clients can and do freeze hiring, terminate their employees, and reduce compensation and benefits levels,
any of which would negatively affect our revenues and margins if we are unable to reduce our operating expenses sufficiently or quickly enough. During these periods, we have also
seen and expect to see, reduced demand for our services, increased client terminations, fewer new clients, and clients seeking to renegotiate our contracts and prices. When our
clients leave us or reduce their headcount, we typically see increases in the volume and severity of unemployment claims, COBRA claims, disability claims, and workersa€™
compensation claims. We may be unable to recover costs related to TRINET19A 2024 FORM 10-K RISK FACTORSTable of Contentsthese claims based on the fees established in our
client service agreements, and any failure to recover such costs may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.We lose clients for



many reasons that we cannot control or easily predict and, generally, our clients sign service agreements that they can cancel on short notice. Our standard client service agreements
can generally be canceled by our clients with 30 daysa€™ prior written notice. We regularly experience client attrition and decreases in new client sales due to a variety of factors that
are difficult for us to control or predict, including the overall national economic conditions, client mergers and acquisitions, changes in medical utilization and related costs, client
business failure and liquidity issues, the effects of competition, and client decisions to administer all or a portion of their HR needs in-house without using our services. If we
experience client attrition for any of the above reasons in excess of our historic and estimated rates it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.Geographic and industry market concentration makes our results of operations vulnerable to regional and industry-specific economic and health factors.PEO
services remain our core business. Our top five PEO markets, California, New York, Florida, Texas and Massachusetts, accounted for approximately 63% in aggregate of our paid
WSEs for the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024. If any of those geographic regions suffers a downturn, even if the economy at the national level remains strong, or experiences higher
than expected medical services utilization, due to regional health issues, the portion of our business attributable to clients in that region could be adversely affected, which could have
a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.In addition, most of our PEO clients operate in a relatively small number of verticals, including the
technology, professional services, financial services, life sciences and not-for-profit verticals. As a result, if any of those verticals, or any industry within one of those verticals, suffers a
downturn, even if the economy at the national level remains strong, the portion of our business attributable to clients in that industry could be adversely affected, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. Any failure in the business systems or service centers that we or our service providers rely upon,
could negatively impact our clients, harm our reputation and expose us to significant, unanticipated liability.Our business is highly dependent on in-house and third-party business
systems and service centers. The operation of our business relies on the complex integration of numerous hardware and software subsystems across several service centers to manage
a large volume of daily client and WSE transactions. For example, we rely on software systems, including the software systems used by our banking institutions, to process payroll,
payroll tax and benefits data and make related payments, and to access insurance carrier networks and databases that manage WSE benefits and claims. These software systems run
on computer hardware that we or our service providers house in various service centers. These centers and systems have been, and could be disrupted by equipment failures,
computer server or systems failures, network outages, ransomware attacks and other malicious acts, software errors or defects, vendor performance problems, banking failures, power
failures, natural disasters, terrorist actions or similar events. We have, for example, experienced office closures on the east coast on multiple occasions over the past few years due to
hurricane and storm threats, in Texas due to climate-related power grid issues, and in California due to increased wildfire threats in the state. Our offices and service centers in these
and other locations will continue to face the risk of closure or damage in the future due to climate related events.Any such disruption, even if only for a short period of time and even if
we are not at fault, can have a significant impact on our clients and WSEs by preventing us from timely processing payroll, paying payroll taxes and other liabilities and otherwise
disrupting our business operations. As a result, any such disruption could cause us to lose clients, negatively impact our ability to attract new clients, and reduce our revenues and
increase our costs, any of which could result in a material adverse effect on our reputation, business and results of operations.Changes in our insurance coverage, or in our
relationships with key insurance carriers, could harm our business.Our success depends in part on our ability to maintain competitive health and workers' compensation coverage
options and insurance rates through well-known insurance carriers. If we are unable to maintain competitive insurance rates or obtain popular and desirable coverage plans through
well-known insurance carriers, it could affect our ability to attract and retain clients, which could have a material adverse effect on our business. Where we sponsor insurance
coverage and we are not responsible for any deductibles, our carriers set the fixed cost of the plan, which may lead to uncompetitive fees. Even where we sponsor insurance under
which we are responsible for deductibles, we may not be able to control our costs in a way that would make our fees competitive.In addition, broad adoption of our services in certain
geographic regions or industries may make it more difficult for us to obtain competitive health and/or workers' compensation insurance rates due to concentration of clients within a
particular region or industry. For example, we have significant concentrations of PEO clients in California, New York, Florida, Texas and Massachusetts, which account for
approximately 64% in aggregate of our paid WSEs for the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024. The loss of any one or more of our key insurance vendors in these areas, or our inability to
partner with the most desirable carriers in these areas, could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.TRINET20A 2024 FORM 10-K RISK
FACTORSTable of ContentsWe must continue to work to improve our services to meet the expectations of our clients and regulators, or we may lose our clients and materially harm
our business.In order to attract and retain clients, we believe that we must compete in our industry effectively on the basis of the value proposition that we deliver to our clients, which
includes &€¢client experience and satisfaction, a&€¢the relevance and cost-effectiveness of our PEO benefit plans, 4€¢our PEO vertical market expertise, 4€¢our service and product
pricing, 4€¢our brand awareness and reputation, &€¢our ability to innovate and respond to client needs and regulatory mandates rapidly, &€¢the performance of our online and mobile
solutions, software and technology platforms, and 4€¢our human resources subject matter expertise. The expectations of our clients and prospective clients in these areas change over
time as a result of many factors outside of our control, such as competition, regulatory and technical changes, and changing trends in the demands employees place on SMB
employers.To satisfy client expectations and regulatory requirements, we must timely and effectively identify and develop, or license and contract appropriate technologies and
services, and incorporate such technologies and services into the solutions that we provide. New services or upgrades may not be released according to schedule or may contain
defects when released. If our new technologies and services perform poorly, or fail to satisfy regulatory requirements, we could experience client dissatisfaction, adverse publicity, loss
of sales, and client claims against us, any of which could materially harm our business. Even where we can satisfy client expectations and regulatory requirements, we may not be able
to do so on a cost-effective basis, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and our results of operations. We could lose market share if our competitors
develop superior technologies and services or satisfy client or regulatory demands before we are able to do so. If we are unable to satisfy the evolving technology and service
expectations and regulatory requirements, then we may experience lower client satisfaction, fewer new clients and higher client attrition, which could have a material adverse effect
on our business.We have acquired, and may in the future acquire, other businesses and technologies, which can divert management's attention and create integration risks and other
risks for our business.We have completed numerous acquisitions of other businesses and technologies over the years, and we expect that we will continue to pursue future
acquisitions. Acquisitions involve numerous risks, some of which we have experienced in the past and which we may experience in the future, including:a€¢over-valuing and over-
paying for businesses and technologies,a€¢increased operating costs and unanticipated costs to successfully integrate the clients and WSEs, operations, systems, technologies,
services, personnel and other stakeholders of the acquired business,a€ ¢establishing or maintaining required internal controls, procedures and policies for the acquired business,a€
¢unanticipated costs and risks arising from the unique corporate culture and risk appetite of acquired businesses,a€¢diversion of managementa€™s attention from other business
concerns, a€¢litigation resulting from the activities of the acquired business,a€¢insufficient revenues, insurance or seller indemnification to offset increased expenses associated with
the acquisitions and unanticipated liabilities of the acquired businesses,a€¢entering markets in which we have no prior experience and may not succeed, anda€¢potential loss of key
employees or key clients of the acquired business as a result of the acquisition or integration of the acquired business.We have experienced increased operating costs to resolve the
challenges of prior acquisitions. If we fail to appropriately integrate any acquired business, we may fail to achieve our growth, service enhancement or operational efficiency
objectives, and our business, results of operations and financial condition could be harmed.If we are unable to attract, maintain and manage qualified personnel, including our sales
force, our business may be harmed.To succeed, we must be able to attract and retain highly motivated and qualified personnel. Competition for skilled employees is intense, and like
many businesses, we are susceptible to fluctuations in the labor market. For example, as we continue to expand our operations in India, we are also entering a new labor market. If we
are unable to attract and retain qualified personnel, in either or both of the US and India (or any other jurisdiction into which we expand), our business may suffer.For example, for a
variety of reasons, including due to changes in industry or client focus, compensation structure, third-party competition for sales talent and other factors we have experienced elevated
sales force attrition in the TRINET21A 2024 FORM 10-K RISK FACTORSTable of Contentspast and may experience it in the future. Newly hired sales personnel are typically not
productive for some period of time following their hiring, which results in increased near-term costs to us relative to their actual sales contributions during this period. If we are unable
to effectively train and maintain an adequately seasoned and sized sales force, new client onboarding will not increase at the rate that we anticipate, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.Our industry is competitive, which may limit our ability to maintain or increase our market share or
improve our results of operations.We face significant competition on a national and regional level from other PEOs, and ASOs that do not use co-employment relationships, as well as
from other existing, and potential, companies and industries that service, or may in the future service, client HCM needs. Refer to the heading 4&€ceCompetitiona€ under Part I, Item 1.
Business, above for more details. Our competitors, regardless of industry, may have greater marketing and financial resources than we have, and may be better positioned than we are
in certain markets. Increased competition in our industry could result in price reductions or loss of market share, any of which could harm our business. We expect that we will
continue to experience competitive pricing pressure and competition from new technologies and HCM service models, any one of which could have a material adverse effect on our
business.We may not be able to keep pace with changes in technology or provide timely enhancements to our solutions and support. The market for our solutions is characterized by
rapid technological advancements, changes in customer requirements, frequent new product introductions and enhancements, and changing industry standards. To maintain our
growth strategy, we must adapt and respond to technological advances and technological requirements of our clients. Our future success will depend on our ability to: enhance our
current solutions and introduce new solutions in order to keep pace with solutions offered by our competitors. We continue to make significant investments related to the development
of new technology. If our systems become outdated, it may negatively impact our ability to meet performance expectations related to quality, time to market, cost and innovation
relative to our competitors. The failure to provide a more efficient and user-friendly customer-facing digital experience across internet and mobile platforms as well as in physical
locations may adversely impact our business and operating results. We cannot assure you that our efforts to update and integrate systems will be successful. If we do not integrate and
update our systems in a timely manner, or if our investments in technology fail to provide the expected results, there could be a material adverse effect to our business and results of
operations. We face risks associated with our international operations. In August 2024, we opened a new office in Hyderabad, India, which increases the size and scale of our India-
based workforce and operations. Historically, our business and operations have been primarily conducted in the United States. A disruption to, or our failure to successfully integrate,
our operations in India could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Our current and potential future international operations are
subject to certain risks, including: 4€¢fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and global market volatility; &€¢difficulties and costs of staffing and managing foreign
operations, including cultural and language differences and additional employment regulations, union workforce negotiations and potential disputes; a€¢geopolitical, economic or
social instability or military conflict;a€¢natural disasters, terrorist attacks and other events over which we have no control; &€¢compliance with local laws and regulations, including
privacy and security laws and regulations; &€¢compliance with laws governing doing business outside the United States, including foreign or domestic legal and regulatory
requirements resulting in the imposition of new or more onerous sanctions and anti-corruption laws, export and import controls, trade restrictions, tariffs, duties, taxes, embargoes,
exchange or other government controls; &€¢laws and business practices favoring local companies; and 4&€¢management of potentially adverse tax consequences from India, the United
States, or both, as a result of our multi-jurisdiction operations. Any of these risks could have an adverse impact on our ability to successfully manage our business and consequently
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Data Privacy and Security RisksCyber-attacks, breaches, disclosures or other data-related
incidents could result in reduced revenue, increased costs, liability claims, regulatory penalties, regulatory disclosure requirements and damage to our reputation.We and our third-
party service providers and subcontractors collect, store, use, retain, disclose, transfer and process a significant amount of confidential, sensitive and personal information from and
about our actual and potential clients, WSEs and colleagues, including bank account numbers, social security numbers, tax information, PHI, health claim information, retirement
account information, and payroll data. Maintaining the security and confidentiality of this information is critically important to our clients, WSEs and colleagues. For more information
regarding our cybersecurity risk management framework and governance, refer to Part I, Item 1C. Cybersecurity. TRINET22A 2024 FORM 10-K RISK FACTORSTable of ContentsDue
to the size and complexity of our technology platform and services, the amount of confidential, sensitive and personal information that we store, we and our service providers are
potentially susceptible to a variety of intentional or inadvertent cyber-attacks, breaches, disclosures and other data-related incidents and threats.Cybersecurity threats can take a
variety of forms. Malicious actors may develop and deploy viruses, worms and other malicious software programs that attack our networks and data centers or those of our service
providers. Malicious actors may also direct social engineering, phishing, credential stuffing, ransomware, denial or degradation of service attacks and similar types of attacks against
any or all of us, our clients and our service providers. Other threats include inadvertent security breaches or disclosures, misuse or unauthorized access or other improper actions by
our colleagues, clients, WSEs, service providers and other business partners. Cyber-attacks, breaches, disclosures and other data-related incidents are increasing in frequency and
evolving in nature. While we devote substantial time and resources to training our colleagues to identify and avoid such incidents, no training or cybersecurity program can offer
absolute protection against such attacks and incidents.Any actual or attempted cyber-attack, breach, disclosure or other data-related incident, could result in data loss, the
unauthorized access or use of personally identifiable information, or business interruption, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, reputation, financial condition
or results of operation. Public perception of, or even inaccurate or unfounded rumors of, any such cyber-attacks, breaches, disclosures, or other data-related incidents, could have a
material adverse effect on our business, reputation, financial condition or results of operation. Any such cyber-attacks, breaches, disclosures or other data-related incidents, could
result in material financial liability by:&€¢causing us to incur material fines, penalties, orders, sanctions and proceedings or actions against us or our service providers by regulatory
authorities, clients and other third parties,a€¢requiring us to indemnify clients and other third parties,4€¢damaging our reputation,&€¢causing us to incur significant expenses to
defend our actions and practices,a€¢delaying product and service development plans,a€¢causing unrelated compliance breaches through system failures or management distraction,
anda€ ¢increasing our costs of doing business.Although we maintain insurance coverage for such events, the amount of our insurance may not cover these costs, and we cannot be
certain that cyber insurance will continue to be available to us on economically reasonable terms, or at all, or that any insurer will not deny coverage as to any future claim. TriNet
does not need to be the direct target of such cyber-attacks, breaches, disclosures or other data-related incidents, for them to have a material adverse effect on our operations. A cyber-
attack on a key third-party software service provider, or a new vulnerability identified in software that we use, could disrupt our services or compromise client data entrusted to that
service provider. New software vulnerabilities are identified regularly, by organizations like the U.S. Cybersecurity and Infrastructure Security Agency. Similar cyber-attacks,



breaches, disclosures and other data-related incidents, including those resulting from a vulnerability, involving a client could also result in access to TriNeta€™s systems. Any such
incidents, even if not initially directed at TriNet, could also have a material adverse effect on our business operations, result in liability, fines and penalties or other regulatory
sanctions, a loss of confidence in our ability to provide our services, and/or harm our reputation and relationships with current or potential clients.We, our clients and our service
providers have been the victims of cyber-attacks, breaches, disclosure or other data-related incidents, in the past that led to disclosure of the confidential, sensitive or personal
information we possess, and we, our clients and our service providers expect to be victims again in the future. Similarly, we and our service providers have experienced disruption to,
or unauthorized access to, our networks, applications, bank accounts and other key systems in the past and similar events may occur again in the future. We have reported data
breaches to regulators, affected individuals, clients and other third parties in the past and we expect to do so in the future as appropriate. While we do not believe that any such past
events constitute a material cybersecurity incident or resulted in material expenditures, future events could result in a material adverse impact on our operations. For more
information regarding our analysis of material cybersecurity incidents, refer to Part I, Item 1C. Cybersecurity.We must comply with constantly evolving, data privacy, Al and security
laws and regulations, which may require substantial costs or changes to our business, and any actual or perceived compliance failure could result in reduced revenue, increased costs,
liability claims, regulatory penalties, and damage to our reputation.We are subject to various federal, state and local laws, rules, and regulations, as well as contractual obligations,
relating to the collection, storage, use, retention, security, disclosure, transfer and other processing of confidential, sensitive and personal information. Existing laws and regulations
are constantly evolving, and new laws and regulations that apply to our business are being introduced at every level of government inside and outside of the United
States.TRINET23A 2024 FORM 10-K RISK FACTORSTable of ContentsDepending on the applicable jurisdiction, these laws may be more stringent or broader in scope, or offer greater
individual rights, with respect to confidential, sensitive and personal information than federal, international or other state laws, and such laws may differ from each other, which may
complicate compliance efforts, requiring attention to changing regulatory requirements. As the patchwork of privacy laws to which we are subject becomes increasingly complex, the
cost of complying with all of the requirements will rise and we cannot guarantee our compliance efforts will be successful.We are exploring the use of Al and ML in an effort to deploy
capabilities that are beneficial to our clients and WSEs. In recent years, legislation that creates obligations with respect to the development and/or use of Al has been adopted or is
under consideration in the U.S. at both the federal and state level, as well as abroad. Ind€ "addition, self-regulatory frameworks like the National Institute of Standards and Technology
AI Risk Management Framework are being promulgated and adherence to such regulatory frameworks may become an industry standard or a client expectation. As a result, current or
future laws (including product liability regimes), regulatory or self-regulatory requirements or ethical considerations, including our own published, guiding ethical principles regarding
Al and ML, could restrict or impose burdensome and costly requirements on our ability to leverage data and/or these technologies in innovative ways.For details regarding these data
privacy and security laws and regulations discussed above and that apply to our operations, refer to Part I, Item 1. Business, of this Form 10-K, under the heading 4&€ceThe Laws and
Regulations that affect Our Business: Data Privacy and Security Regulationsa€. Complying with these and any other data privacy and security laws, rules and regulations, and with any
new laws or regulations or changes to existing laws, could cause us to incur substantial costs or require us to change our business practices in a manner adverse to our business,
divert resources from other initiatives and projects, and restrict the way products and services involving data are offered, all of which may have a material adverse effect on our
business. Despite our efforts, in the future we may be unable to make required changes and modifications to our business practices in a commercially reasonable manner, or at all.
Given the rapid development of cybersecurity and data privacy laws, we may be required to incur significant, unexpected compliance costs and we may be exposed to significant
penalties or liability for non-compliance, the possibility of fines, lawsuits (including class action privacy litigation), regulatory investigations, criminal or civil sanctions, audits, adverse
media coverage, public censure, other claims, significant costs for remediation and damage to our reputation, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our business and
operations. Any inability, or the perception of any inability, to adequately address data privacy or data-related concerns, even if unfounded, or to comply with applicable laws,
regulations, standards and other obligations relating to data privacy and security, could result in additional cost and liability to us, damage our relationships with clients and have a
material adverse effect on our business.As a sponsor of employee benefit plans with access to certain PHI, we are subject to regulation at the federal level, including under the HIPAA
and the HITECH Act. HIPAA contains restrictions and health data privacy, security and breach notification requirements with respect to the use and disclosure of PHI. There are
penalties and fines for HIPAA violations.Due to our international footprint, we have customers and colleagues outside of the United States. If we fail to comply with applicable data
privacy regulations in the countries in which we send and receive personal data, we may be exposed to regulatory action and fines, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business. Legal and Compliance RisksOur business is subject to numerous complex laws, and changes in, uncertainty regarding, or adverse application of these laws could negatively
affect our business.The services we provide to our clients are subject to numerous complex federal, state and local laws and regulations, including those described in Part I, Item 1.
Business, of this Form 10-K. These laws and regulations cover a diverse range of topics, including employer status, employee and independent contractor classifications, employee
benefits, health and retirement plans, workers' compensation, banking and money transmission, employment and payroll tax, worksite safety, insurance, wage and hour, anti-
discrimination, and many topics specific to the industries of our clients. Many of these laws do not specifically address PEOs or co-employment relationships, and regulators are often
unfamiliar with the PEO industry and co-employment relationships, which can lead to unpredictable application, interpretation and enforcement of these laws and regulations at the
federal, state and local levels in relation to our business. Our ASO services can also be subject to complex federal, state and local laws and regulations regarding payroll agents,
employment and payroll taxes, insurance producers, banking and money transmission, and other licensing requirements. The tax credit support services we provide are also subject to
federal, state and local regulations regarding tax preparation and practice that limit the services we can provide to SMBs. While regulations governing ASO services and tax credit
support services do not involve the complexity of a co-employment relationship, these services are in some ways also highly regulated and such regulations can, and do, change
regularly at the federal, state and local levels. Any new laws, changes in existing laws, or any adverse application, interpretation or enforcement of new or existing laws, including
those described in Part I, Item 1. Business, of this Form 10-K, whether they apply to employers generally or specifically to PEOs or to our co-employment relationships
could:TRINET24A 2024 FORM 10-K RISK FACTORSTable of Contentsa€¢reduce or eliminate the value and benefits that clients realize by using our services,a€¢change or eliminate
the types of services we provide,a€¢require us to make significant changes to how we do business and provide services, a€¢require us to modify our current business practices or
operations,a€¢affect the extent and type of employee benefits that employers and co-employers can or must provide employees,a€¢alter the amount, timing and type of taxes
employers, co-employers, clients and WSEs are required to pay and that we must manage for and collect from our clients,a€¢increase the cost and complexity of the licensing
requirements for our business operations,a€¢create or increase our liability and responsibilities to our clients and WSEs, and/ora€¢mandate new compliance requirements, disclosures
or services.Any of the above could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.For example, we have seen a growing trend, particularly
at the federal level, of using payroll tax credits, deferrals and other related payroll tax programs as a mechanism for incentivizing SMB development and economic recovery. These
programs are popular because they allow SMBs, which often have income tax losses, to realize benefits via payroll tax reductions, rather than income tax reductions. However, these
programs have generally not been designed with the PEO industry in mind and rely on calculations contained in client income tax returns which PEOs do not process in their role as
the co-employer or other client data that cannot be verified by a PEO, even though the resulting tax benefits are processed through the PEO&€™s payroll tax returns. Because minimal
guidance exists in the statutes that create these programs, they are subject to broad and varied agency interpretation and application. In addition, the processes used to evaluate
payroll tax filings are designed with individual taxpayers in mind, not PEOs that aggregate the filings of many clients, which can further increase varied interpretation by agencies and
make it difficult to predict their interpretation and application. Some of these programs include the 2015 PATH Act, which allows SMBs to use R&D tax credits submitted on the
SMB&€™s income tax return to reduce the SMB&€™ s payroll taxes, and the CARES Act and FFCRA payroll tax credit and payroll tax deferral program enacted in 2020 and 2021,
which allow SMBs to defer certain payroll tax obligations to a later date or to receive payroll tax credits based on SMB employment practices that are beyond our control. The IRS has
taken positions that we and other PEOs, rather than clients, are responsible for client errors and repaying rejected tax credit claims under these and similar programs. While our
clients are contractually responsible for repaying us for any rejected tax credits under these programs, a contract does not guarantee our ability to recover rejected tax credits and any
failure to recover rejected tax credits from our clients would increase our operating expenses, which could result in a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations. Similarly, the IRS has taken positions that the tax benefits under some of these programs should be calculated on an aggregate PEO, rather than individual client, basis,
which can limit whether and how we obtain credits for our clients. We cannot predict how these positions will ultimately be resolved and if they are resolved unfavorably, we may be
forced to discontinue supporting some or all of these programs, incur tax expenses that we cannot recover from our clients, and divert managementa€™s attention to defending our
positions, any one of which could have a material adverse effect on our ability to attract and retain SMB clients or on our business, financial condition and results of operations.In
addition, many states have also implemented assistance programs, such as mandatory employee leave requirements and other employment- and employment tax-related incentives.
Our SMB clients rely on us to help them take advantage of these programs, and new laws, regulations and agency or judicial interpretations of these laws could change or eliminate
existing programs at any time, which could force us to discontinue supporting these programs or incur liability that we cannot recover from our clients, which could cause us to lose
clients and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.Changing laws and regulations governing health insurance and other traditional
employee benefits at the federal, state and local level could negatively affect our business.Changes to and continued uncertainty regarding the implementation and future of health
care reform in the United States, at the federal, state and local level, has the potential to substantially change the health insurance market for SMBs and how such employers provide
health insurance to their employees, which could have a materially adverse effect on how we provide our sponsored health benefits to our WSEs, and our ability to attract and retain
our clients. In addition, changes at the federal, state and local level to the laws and regulations regarding other traditional employee benefits, such as retirement and workersa€™
compensation benefits, also have the potential to substantially change the types of benefit programs that are available to SMBs and that we and other PEOs may be required to offer.
Our ability to comply with, and adapt our service offerings to take advantage of, any such changes could require significant additional costs, divert management attention, or be
prohibitive based on cost, technology or other factors, which could result in a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.If we are not
recognized as an employer of our worksite employees, and if our benefit plans are deemed to not satisfy plan requirements, under federal and state regulations, we and our clients
could be adversely impacted. TRINET25A 2024 FORM 10-K RISK FACTORSTable of ContentsIn order to sponsor some of our most important employee benefit plan offerings for WSEs,
including health plans, we must qualify as the employer of WSEs, and our plans must qualify as employer-sponsored plans, under applicable provisions of the Code and ERISA. In
particular, our status as the employer for the purposes of ERISA is important because ERISA preempts state laws that otherwise might apply to, and limit, our benefit plan
offerings.The definition of employer under the Code and ERISA is not uniform and is defined in part by different facts and circumstances tests, and there is no definitive judicial
interpretation of employer in the context of PEOs. Generally, the tests used under the Code or ERISA are designed to evaluate whether an individual is an independent contractor or
employee, and they confer substantial weight to whether a purported employer has the right to direct and control the details of an individual's work. Some factors that may be
considered important under these tests have included the employera€™s degree of behavioral control (for example the extent of instructions, training and evaluation of the work),
financial control and the economic aspects of the work relationship, the type of relationship, as evidenced by the specific contract, if any, whether employee benefits are provided,
whether the work is indefinite in duration or project-based, and whether it is a regular part of the employera€™ s business.In our opinion, we qualify as the sole employer of WSEs for
the purposes of Sections 3(5) and 3(40) of ERISA and that our health plans are single-employer plans that, as such, are entitled to ERISA4€™s preemption of state law. However, the
DOL routinely audits employee benefit plan offerings of employers, and in one routine audit of one of TriNeta€™s health plans that concluded in 2021, the DOL indicated that while it
agrees that we are an employer for ERISA purposes, it believes that wherever there is more than one employer of a WSE, no employer may qualify as a single employer for ERISA
purposes. Similarly, in 2022, the DOL revised an existing publication regarding regulation of MEWAs and added a new section stating its view that a PEO arrangement offering health
coverage to more than one client is a MEWA under Section 3(40) of ERISA. This DOL interpretation is contrary to our interpretation of the applicable ERISA facts and circumstances
test, and it also is contrary to the position taken by other national PEOs. We will continue to vigorously defend our opinion that we are the sole employer of our WSEs for the purposes
of Sections 3(5) and 3(40) of ERISA, and therefore that our health plans are single employer plans entitled to ERISA4€™ s preemption of applicable state laws. Although we do not
currently have any ongoing DOL audit on this issue, we have received requests for information on the issue from other government agencies. It is possible that these requests, or
future DOL audits, could lead a government agency to disagree with the Companya€™s interpretation. If it were ultimately determined that health plans sponsored by TriNet are
multiple employer plans and subject to potential regulation at the state level, we would likely adjust our business model and the manner in which we provide employee health benefits
to WSEs. Any such outcome or adjustment would require significant investment in time, cost and management attention and would have an adverse impact on our clients and WSEs
and the type of products and services we provide to them, which could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.As the employer of WSEs under ERISA,
we must manage our plans in accordance with ERISA requirements, which could impact how we fulfill plan obligations, how we price services, the features of our benefit plans, and
how we administer and operate our plans. We believe that our benefit plans satisfy all applicable ERISA requirements, but if it were ultimately determined that we fail to satisfy any
such requirements, we would likely be required to adjust our business model, including with respect to each of the areas outlined above, and could be subject to material fines or
penalties. Any such consequence may result in a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.We have seen state efforts to regulate PEO health plans. For
example, legislation and proposed rules in New Mexico seek to prevent WSEs of small employers from participation in PEO sponsored large group market health plans, with exception
for plans the PEOs register as MEWAs under state law. These rules, and legislation, and any other new or changed rules that treat PEO health plans as multiple employer plans,
restrict PEO fees with carriers or that limit the availability of PEO benefit plans, if upheld to be legally valid and applicable to our PEO health plans, would likely require us to adjust
our business model in the states with such rules, including the manner in which we provide employee health benefits to WSEs and price our services, and could result in material fines
or penalties. Any such outcome or adjustment would require significant investment in time, cost and management attention and would have a material impact on our clients and WSEs
and the type of products and services we provide to them, which could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.Similarly, to qualify for favorable tax
treatment under the Code, certain employee benefit plans, such as 401(k) retirement plans and cafeteria plans, must be established and maintained by an employer for the exclusive



benefit of its employees. All of our 401(k) retirement plans are operated pursuant to guidance provided by the IRS and have received favorable determination letters from the IRS
confirming their tax-qualified status. However, the IRS uses its own complex, multi-factor test to ascertain whether an employment relationship exists between a worker and a
purported employer. Although we believe that we qualify as an employer of WSEs under the Code, we cannot assure you that the IRS will not challenge our position or continue to
provide favorable determination letters. Moreover, the IRS' 401(k) guidance and qualification requirements are not applicable to the operation of our cafeteria plans. TRINET26A 2024
FORM 10-K RISK FACTORSTable of ContentsFurther, if we are not recognized as an employer of our WSEs under the Code or by any state tax authority, we may be required to change
the method by which we report and remit payroll taxes to the IRS or such tax authorities. Such changes could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of
operations.The definition of employers, employees and independent contractors is evolving. Changes to the laws and regulations that govern what it means to be an employer or an
employee may require us to make significant changes in our operations and may negatively affect our business.Views on employers, employees and independent contractors continue
to change at federal, state and local levels. Regulations that change existing definitions and classifications of employers, employees and independent contractors could affect the types
of client employees we can support through our PEO and ASO services, the way in which we provide TriNet-sponsored benefits to our WSEs, the way in which we report and remit
payroll taxes to tax authorities, and our legal liability for the actions and inactions of our clients, which may negatively impact client demand for the services we provide, require us to
modify or change how we operate our business and have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.At the federal level, the DOL published a final rule in
January 2024 identifying new criteria for the DOL's classification of employees and independent contractors under the FLSA. Meanwhile, the NLRB modified its standard for
determining independent contractor status under the NLRA in a June 2023 decision. In March 2024, a federal district court struck down an October 2023 NLRB final rule that had
issued a new standard for determining joint employer status under the NLRA. The NLRB declined to appeal the district court's ruling, effectively restoring the prior rule that had been
in place only since 2020. Standards for determining joint employer status vary from law to law and state to state. Joint employment is not the same as co-employment, and we do not
believe that we are a joint employer under any law or rule, or that these rule changes impact our status as a co-employer. However, continuing uncertainty regarding independent
contractor and joint employer status could still result in increased regulatory and worker claims, which could divert management attention and cause us to incur additional and
potentially material costs to defend.Remote work continues to be widely used by employers across the country. The laws and regulations that govern employees were not drafted with
remote workers in mind and changes in, uncertainty regarding, or adverse application of these laws could negatively affect our business.Many employees, including WSEs, are working
from home. SMBs, including our clients, have hired and continue to hire employees in locations where they have not previously had employees, and/or permitting existing employees to
relocate to other locations and work entirely remotely. Other employees may work at home in one state or city some of the time and in an office in another state or city at other times.
The work location and residence of an employee can create confusion regarding the federal, state and local laws that apply, including labor and employment, payroll and payroll tax,
and unemployment laws. For example, it can be difficult to determine the amount of payroll and unemployment taxes that must be paid when employees spend part of their time
working from home in one state and part of their time working in an office in another state. Regulations regarding payroll and unemployment taxes are still catching up to this new
reality, which creates a risk that states will disagree about the taxes that must be paid, or the employment laws that must apply, in these situations. New laws, changes in laws or
adverse application or interpretation of laws that depend on the residence and work location of WSEs could reduce or eliminate the attractiveness of our services, significantly
increase our compliance costs and the cost to provide our services, or require us to make substantial changes to the way in which we operate, and any one of these outcomes could
result in a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Even where remote workers live and work in the same state and city, as a co-employer of WSEs,
our PEO services are open to the risk that new laws, changes in laws or adverse application or interpretation of laws will expand PEO responsibility for remote WSEs. We may see
expansions of PEO responsibility and we cannot guarantee that we will be able to recover compliance costs related to such expansions from our clients, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business.If we do not comply with our regulatory license requirements, or if we are deemed to be operating in various non-PEO licensed industries without the
required licenses, we and our clients could be adversely impacted.Most states require PEOs to hold a license and we are licensed as a PEO in all states that require such licenses. If we
are not able to satisfy existing or future PEO licensing requirements or other applicable regulations in any state, we may be prohibited from doing business in that state, including
having any clients within that state.State regulatory authorities generally impose licensing requirements on companies acting as insurance agents or third-party administrators, such
as those that handle health or retirement plan funding and claim processing. TriNet does not provide broker insurance, but we do maintain producer licenses in all 50 states and select
U.S. territories for our ASO services and for our OMS product family, which offers clients the option to receive PEO services from TriNet while sponsoring their own health benefits
obtained through brokers. Other state regulatory authorities impose licensing requirements on companies involved in the transmission of cash, such as banks, and other money
transmitters. We do not believe that our current activities require any such licenses, but we and others in our industry have received inquiries from regulatory authorities in the past
and could receive them in the future. Businesses similar to our ASO services have been subject to such licensing requirements in the past and although TRINET27A 2024 FORM 10-K
RISK FACTORSTable of Contentswe believe that our operations have been designed to be compliant and avoid such requirements, we cannot guarantee that all regulators will agree. If
regulatory authorities in any state determine that we are acting as an insurance agent, third-party administrator, money transmitter, or as any other regulated industry other than a
PEO, we may need to hire additional personnel to manage regulatory compliance and pay annual regulatory fees, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition
and results of operations.We may be adversely impacted by any failure of third-party service providers to perform their functions. As part of providing services to clients, we rely on a
number of third-party service providers. Service providers include, but are not limited to, banks used to electronically transfer funds from clients to their employees, information
technology vendors, and couriers used to deliver client payroll checks. Failure by these service providers, for any reason, to deliver their services in a timely manner and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations could result in material interruptions to our operations, impact client relations, and result in significant penalties or liabilities to us. Failure to
comply with anti-corruption laws and regulations, economic and trade sanctions, and similar laws could have a materially adverse effect on our reputation, results of operations or
financial condition, or have other adverse consequences. We are required to comply with regulations administered by multi-national bodies and governmental agencies worldwide
including, but not limited to, the economic sanctions and embargo programs administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control (4€0eOFAC&€), and the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act
(&€eFCPA&€). OFAC places restrictions on the sale or export of certain products and services to certain countries and persons. A violation of a sanction or embargo program, or of the
FCPA, or similar laws prohibiting certain payments to governmental officials, could subject us, and individual employees, to a regulatory enforcement action as well as significant civil
and criminal penalties which could adversely impact our business and operations. The growth of our international operations also subjects us to additional risks, such as compliance
with foreign laws and regulations. The enactment of new laws and regulations, modifications of existing laws and regulations, or the adverse application or interpretation of new or
existing laws or regulations can adversely affect our business. Additionally, as federal, state, and international regulations become more complex, the risk that we may be unable to
comply with those regulations increases, particularly in the event there are different or additional regulatory standards in different jurisdictions.We are subject to legal and tax
proceedings that may result in adverse outcomes.We are subject to claims, lawsuits, government investigations, and other legal and regulatory proceedings arising from the ordinary
course of our business. Refer to Note 9 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10-K for additional information about the legal proceedings we
are currently involved in and future proceedings that we may face. Current and future legal proceedings may result in substantial costs and may divert managementa€™s attention and
resources, which may seriously harm our business, results of operations, financial condition and liquidity. In addition, the tax authorities in the U.S. regularly examine our tax returns.
Refer to Note 12 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10-K for additional details regarding tax examinations and disputes. The ultimate
outcome of tax examinations and disputes cannot be predicted with certainty. Should the IRS or other tax authorities assess additional taxes as a result of any audit or examination, we
may be required to record charges to operations that could have a material impact on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows.Financial and Stock Ownership
RisksOur results of operations and stock price may fluctuate as a result of numerous factors, many of which are outside of our control.Our future operating results and stock price are
subject to fluctuations and quarterly variations based upon a variety of factors, many of which are not within our control, including, without limitation:&4€¢the volume and severity of
health and workers' compensation insurance claims made by our WSEs, recorded as part of our insurance costs, and the timing of related claims information provided by our insurance
carriers,a€¢the amount and timing of our insurance premiums and other insurance costs, operating expenses and capital expenditures,a€¢the number of our new clients and the
number of WSEs employed by each new client,a€¢the retention or loss of existing clients, for any reason, including third-party acquisition,a€¢a reduction in the number of WSEs
employed by existing clients,a€¢a reduction in the rate of WSE hiring by existing clients,a€¢the timing of client payments and payment defaults by clients,a€¢the costs associated with
our acquisitions of companies, assets and technologies,a€¢any payments or draw downs on our credit facility, TRINET28A 2024 FORM 10-K RISK FACTORSTable of Contentsa€¢any
unanticipated expenses, such as litigation or other dispute-related settlement payments and compliance expenses arising from changes in regulations or regulatory enforcement,a€
¢any expenses we incur for geographic and service expansion and service enhancements,&€¢any changes in laws or adverse interpretation or enforcement of laws, which may require
us to change the manner in which we operate and/or increase our regulatory compliance costs,a€¢any changes in our effective tax rate,a€¢the issuance of common stock or debt to pay
for future acquisitions, which could dilute our stockholders or subject us to significant debt service obligations,a€¢the repurchase of our common stock under our stock repurchase
program or otherwise, which could impact earnings per share and increase the ownership percentage of non-participating stockholders,a€¢amortization expense, or the impairment of
intangible assets and goodwill, associated with past or future acquisitions, anda€¢the impact of new accounting pronouncements.In addition, the trading price of our common stock is
subject to fluctuation in response to a variety of factors, including the factors above and below, many of which are not within our control, including, without limitation:4€¢the overall
performance of the equity markets,&€¢any trading activity, or a market expectation regarding such activity, by our directors, executive officers and significant stockholders,a€¢the
economy as a whole, and its impact on SMBs and our clients,a€¢the performance and market perception of companies that investors believe are similar to us,a€¢changes in the
interest rates and financial performance of our cash investments, which may increase during periods of high inflation and market volatility and impact our interest income,a€¢any
significant changes in the liquidity of our common stock, anda€¢market acceptance of our performance across non-financial factors, including evolving environmental, social, and
governance factors favored by investors and required by regulators.Many of the above factors are discussed in more detail elsewhere in this Risk Factors section and in Part II, Item 7.
MD&A, of this Form 10-K. Many of these factors are outside our control, and the variability and unpredictability of these factors have in the past and could in the future cause us to fail
to meet our expectations and the expectations of investors and any industry analysts who cover our shares, which could result in a decline in our share price and reduced liquidity in
our shares. In addition, the occurrence of one or more of these factors might cause our results of operations to vary widely, which could lead to negative impacts on our margins, short-
term liquidity, and our ability to retain or attract key personnel, and could cause other unanticipated issues, including a downgrade of our securities by or change in opinion of industry
analysts and a related decline in our share price. The terms of our current or future indebtedness may restrict our current and future operations, which would impair our ability to
respond to changes in our business and to manage our business.Our credit facility and the indentures governing the 2029 Notes and the 2031 Notes contain, and any future
indebtedness of ours would likely contain, a number of restrictive covenants that impose significant operating and financial restrictions on us subject to customary exceptions,
including restricting our ability to:&€¢incur, assume or prepay debt or incur or assume liens,a€¢pay dividends or distributions or redeem or repurchase capital stock,a€¢make loans,
investments or acquisitions,a€¢enter into sale-leaseback transactions,a€¢enter into new lines of business,a€¢complete a significant corporate transaction, such as a merger or sale of
our company or its assets, anda€¢enter into agreements that prohibit the incurrence of liens or the payment by our subsidiaries of dividends and distributions.Our failure to comply
with the restrictions and the other terms and conditions under our credit facility and the indentures governing the 2029 Notes and the 2031 Notes could result in a default, which in
turn could result in the termination of the lendersd€™ commitments to extend further credit to us under our credit facility and acceleration of a substantial portion of these borrowings
before their due date. If that were to happen, we may not be able to repay all of the amounts that would become due under our indebtedness or refinance our debt, which could
materially harm our business and force us to seek bankruptcy protection.We may require additional capital or need to restructure our existing debt to pursue our business objectives
and to respond to business opportunities, challenges or unforeseen circumstances. If capital is not available to us, our business, results of operations, and financial condition may be
adversely affected. We intend to continue to make expenditures and investments to support the growth of our business and may require additional capital to pursue our business
objectives and respond to business opportunities, challenges, or TRINET29A 2024 FORM 10-K RISK FACTORSTable of Contentsunforeseen circumstances, including the need to
develop new solutions or enhance our existing solutions, enhance our operating infrastructure, and acquire complementary businesses and technologies. Accordingly, we may need to
engage in equity or debt financing activities to secure additional funds or restructure our existing debt. However, additional funds may not be available or we may not be able to
restructure our existing debt when we need to on terms that are acceptable to us, or at all. Volatility in equity capital markets may materially and adversely affect our ability to fund
our business through public or private sales of equity securities or debt restructuring. Rising interest rates and/or instability in the banking and finance industries may reduce our
access to debt capital. Our current debt agreements and any future debt financing that we secure in the future could involve restrictive covenants, which may make it more difficult for
us to obtain additional capital and to pursue business opportunities. In addition, the restrictive covenants in the credit facility, the indentures governing our 2029 Notes and 2031
Notes and any additional credit facilities or debt agreements we may secure in the future may restrict us from being able to conduct our operations in a manner appropriate for our
business and may restrict our growth, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations. We cannot assure you that we will be able to
comply with any such restrictive covenants in our current or future indebtedness. In the event that we are unable to comply with these covenants in the future, we would seek an
amendment or waiver of the covenants. We cannot assure you that any such waiver or amendment would be granted. In such event, we may be required to repay any or all of such
borrowings, and we cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain alternative funding arrangements on commercially reasonable terms, or at all.If we are unable to obtain adequate
financing or financing on terms satisfactory to us, when we require it, our ability to continue to pursue our business objectives and to respond to business opportunities, challenges, or
unforeseen circumstances could be significantly limited, and our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects could be materially and adversely affected. We
cannot guarantee that our stock repurchase program will be fully implemented or that it will enhance long-term stockholder value. In May 2014, our board of directors approved a
stock repurchase program. From time to time, our board of directors authorizes increases to our stock repurchase program and has approved an aggregate total of $2,715 million as of



DecemberA 31, 2024. The total remaining authorization for future stock repurchases under our stock repurchase program was $251 million as of DecemberA 31, 2024. We plan to use
current cash and cash generated from ongoing operating activities to fund our stock repurchase program. Under the program, share repurchases may be made at our discretion from
time to time in open market transactions, privately negotiated transactions, or other means. The program does not obligate us to repurchase any specific dollar amount or to acquire
any specific number of shares of our outstanding stock. The timing and number of any future shares repurchased under the program will depend on a variety of factors, including stock
price, trading volume, and general business and market conditions. Our board of directors will review the program periodically and may authorize adjustments of its terms, if
appropriate. As a result, there can be no guarantee around the timing or volume of our share repurchases. The program could affect the price of our common stock, increase volatility
and diminish our cash reserves. The program may be suspended or terminated at any time and, even if fully implemented, may not enhance long-term stockholder value. Refer to Part
II, Item 5 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information. Atairos, our largest stockholder, may have significant influence over our Company, and the ownership of
capital stock, and thus the voting control, of our Company remains concentrated in our executive officers, directors and their affiliates, which limits your ability to influence corporate
matters.On February 1, 2017, an entity affiliated with Atairos Group, Inc. (together with its affiliates, 4€ceAtairosa€) became our largest stockholder when it acquired the shares of
TriNet common stock previously held by General Atlantic. In connection with this transaction, we appointed Michael J. Angelakis, the Chairman and CEO of Atairos, to our board of
directors and agreed to nominate Mr. Angelakis or another designee of Atairos reasonably acceptable to our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee for election at future
annual meetings until Atairosa€™ beneficial ownership falls below 15% of our common stock. As of January 31, 2025, Atairos beneficially owned approximately 37% of our outstanding
common stock, and all of our directors, executive officers and their affiliates, including Atairos, beneficially own, in the aggregate, approximately 37% of our outstanding common
stock. As a result, Atairos, particularly when acting with our executive officers, directors and their affiliates, is able to exert substantial influence on all matters requiring stockholder
approval, including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions, such as a merger or other sale of our company or its assets. In addition, our
stockholders have no assurances that Atairosa€™ holdings, or the holdings of our other large stockholders, in our common stock will not increase. This concentration of ownership
could limit the ability of other stockholders to influence corporate matters and may have the effect of delaying or preventing a third party from acquiring control over us.Anti-takeover
provisions in our charter documents and under Delaware law could make an acquisition of our company more difficult, limit attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our
current management and limit the market price of our common stock.Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change
of control or changes in our management. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws include provisions that:TRINET30A 2024 FORM 10-K RISK
FACTORSTable of Contentsa€¢establish a classified board of directors so that not all members of our board of directors are elected at one time;a€¢permit our board of directors to
establish the number of directors,a€¢provide that directors may only be removed a€cefor causea€,a€¢require super-majority voting to amend some provisions in our certificate of
incorporation and bylaws,a€¢authorize the issuance of 4€ceblank checka€ preferred stock that our board of directors could use to implement a stockholder rights plan,a€¢do not give
our stockholders the ability to call special meetings of stockholders,a€¢prohibit stockholder action by written consent, and require all stockholder actions to be taken at a meeting of
our stockholders,a€¢provide that our board of directors is expressly authorized to adopt, amend or repeal our bylaws, anda€¢establish advance notice requirements for nominations
for election to our board of directors or for proposing matters that can be acted upon by stockholders at annual stockholder meetings.These provisions may frustrate or prevent any
attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management by making it more difficult for our stockholders to replace members of our board of directors, which is
responsible for appointing the members of our management. In addition, because we are incorporated in Delaware, we are governed by the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware
General Corporation Law, which generally prohibits a Delaware corporation from engaging in any of a broad range of business combinations with any holder of at least 15% of our
capital stock for a period of three years following the date on which the stockholder became a 15% stockholder, unless the business combination is approved in a prescribed

manner. TRINET31A 2024 FORM 10-K PROPERTIES, LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURESTable of ContentsitemA 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.ItemA 1C. CybersecurityBelow is a discussion of our risk management and approach to governance as it relates to cyber risks. For additional information on the impact of cyber
risks, refer to Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10-K, under the heading &€ceData Privacy and Security Risksa€.Cyber Risk Management and Strategy Our Global Security
program aims to safeguard critical assets through a risk-based approach to cybersecurity. The CSO provides leadership for the program. We employ a defense-in-depth strategy and
has established a Security Risk Management Program. In that regard, we built a customized IRCF that was developed with the specific intent of keeping information assets secure and
preventing technology resources from unauthorized disclosure, modification, deletion, and destruction. We have modeled our IRCF on several leading industry standards including
portions of the NIST Cybersecurity Framework. The IRCF serves as an organizational model for governance and reporting and is reviewed annually.Our Global Security Organization is
responsible for the day-to-day execution of our cyber risk management strategy. This strategy has been incorporated into our overall ERM program and is thus informed by, and
overseen through, our ERM program. Our ERM program facilitates identifying, prioritizing, analyzing and remediating enterprise risks, in which cyber risks are included. Within the
broader ERM framework, we established a specific program - the IRM program - organizing the governance of risks associated with information held by us. The IRM Steering
Committee, of which our CSO is a member, manages the IRM program, discusses the management of cyber risks on a regular cadence and substantive updates from the IRM Steering
Committee are provided to the ERM Steering Committee. Finally, through our ERM program, updates and discussion regarding our cybersecurity risk management are provided to
and occur at the Risk Committee. We provide on at least an annual basis cybersecurity awareness training to our employees. For example, our employees with network access
participate in required training, covering topics such as spear phishing, social engineering and other cybersecurity threat awareness training.To supplement our cyber risk
management capabilities, we utilize certain third-party vendors. These vendors support our ability to proactively secure our network and systems, in addition to ongoing monitoring of
our cyber environment. With respect to our management of cyber risks arising from third-party vendors, we utilize an internal risk assessment and monitoring program that includes
the identification and ongoing review of third-party controls. As part of our cyber risk management strategy, we established a process for identifying and assessing the material risk of
cybersecurity incidents. In the event a cybersecurity incident is identified, the CIRT, which is made up of a cross-functional team, including technology, security, finance and legal
professionals, acts in accordance with established processes. The CIRT convenes regular meetings to review and analyze relevant cybersecurity indicators and information. Utilizing an
IRC, if it is determined that an incident needs to be reviewed for potential materiality, it is referred to our Chief Legal Officer who will engage the necessary or desirable cross
functional professionals as needed in order to make a determination of materiality. We also seek to regularly update and upgrade our technology investments in an effort to further
support our ability to identify and assess risks from cybersecurity incidents. As of December 31, 2024, we are not aware of any risks from cybersecurity threats that have materially
affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect us, including our business strategy, results of operations, and financial condition. We continue to invest in cyber-resilience and
cyber-threat response preparedness as we anticipate ongoing risks from cybersecurity threats. Refer to the &€ceRisk Factorsa€ section contained in Item 1A of this Form 10-K for more
information on our cybersecurity-related risks. Cyber Risk GovernanceOur Cyber Risk Management Strategy described in this Item 1C. is overseen by senior executives with
experience in cybersecurity and our business operations and is ultimately overseen by the Risk Committee. Our Global Security Organization is tasked with executing this strategy
through the implementation of cybersecurity policies, procedures, and strategies. In the event that a cybersecurity risk is identified, as and to the extent appropriate, the Global
Security Organization manages the day-to-day response to such material risk and provides regular reports to the ERM Steering Committee, or the Risk Committee, or the Board, as
appropriate. The CSO is also an advisor to the Company's Disclosure Committee, which meets quarterly.On a quarterly basis, a meeting of the Risk Committee is convened to discuss
and evaluate our management of enterprise-wide risks. Each meeting of the Risk Committee is facilitated by our Executive Director for ERM and TRINET32A 2024 FORM 10-K
PROPERTIES, LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURESTable of Contentsincludes programmatic updates from the CSO, among other enterprise risk topics. The Risk
Committee provides updates to the full Board regarding the state of the Companya€™s ERM program.Cyber risks are an enterprise risk that the ERM Program monitors and thus such
risks are an ongoing area of focus of the ERM Steering Committee and, as a result, the Risk Committee. On a monthly basis, the ERM Steering Committee is convened and receives
pertinent updates regarding our management of cyber risks, as necessary.In addition to the regularly scheduled programmatic updates that are provided to the ERM Steering
Committee and the Risk Committee, we also established a process to inform such committees of significant cybersecurity events and allow them to monitor corresponding remediation
efforts. Specifically, the IRM Steering Committee, consisting of senior leaders from the security, privacy, data governance, technology, records management, and third-party risk
management programs, reports to the ERM Steering Committee and has the responsibility to provide updates regarding the prevention, detection, mitigation, and remediation of
significant cybersecurity threats.The ERM Steering Committee is similarly tasked with providing relevant updates to the Risk Committee, via the ERM Program, regarding significant
cybersecurity threats. Additionally, we have developed a process that is specific to the management and analysis of cybersecurity incidents. This process includes weekly and monthly
updates from the CIRT along with escalation criteria that allows for significant cybersecurity threats to be reviewed for materiality on an ad hoc basis. These updates are also provided
to the ERM Steering Committee and the Risk Committee as necessary. Our CSO leads our Global Security Organization which is responsible for overseeing, assessing and monitoring
the Company's cyber risk management strategy. Our CSO has over 20 years of industry experience, including serving in similar roles leading and overseeing cybersecurity programs at
other companies. He holds a B.S. degree from Azusa Pacific University and an M.B.A. from the University of Southern California. Team members who support our Global Security team
have relevant educational and industry experience, including holding similar positions at other large companies.ItemA 2. Properties We lease space for our offices in various U.S.
states, including the following:Corporate Headquarters:Significant Client Service Centers:4€¢ Dublin, Californiad€¢ Bradenton, Floridad€¢ Austin, Texasa€¢ Hyderabad, IndiaFor
more information regarding our leases, refer to Note 7 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10-K.ItemA 3. Legal Proceedings For the
information required in this section, refer to Note 9 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10-K.ItemA 4. Mine Safety Disclosures Not
applicable. TRINET33A 2024 FORM 10-K STOCK ACTIVITIESTable of ContentsPART II ItemA 5. Market for Registranta€™s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities Market Information and Holders of RecordOur common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol &€ TNETA€. As of
FebruaryA 6, 2025, we had 64 holders of record of our common stock per Computershare Trust Company N.A., our transfer agent. Our actual number of stockholders is greater than
the number of our record holders, because it includes stockholders who are beneficial owners of our common stock, but whose shares are held in street name by brokers and other
nominees. This number of holders of record also does not include stockholders whose shares may be held in a trust by other entities.For information regarding our equity-based
incentive plans, please refer to Part III, [tem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters, of this Form 10-K.Dividend
PolicyThe decision to pay cash dividends in the future is made at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on then-existing conditions, including our financial condition,
operating results, contractual restrictions under our credit facility (refer to Note 8 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10-K), capital
requirements, business prospects and other factors our board of directors may deem relevant.In 2024, we declared dividends on common stock on a quarterly basis of $0.25 per share,
with payments beginning in April 2024. We did not declare or pay cash dividends in 2023.Performance GraphThe graph below compares the cumulative total return on our common
stock since December 31, 2019 with the cumulative total return on the S&P 500 Index and a Peer Group Index. The cumulative total return is based on the assumption that $100 had
been invested in TriNet Group, Inc. common stock, the Standard & Poora€™s 500 Stock Index (S&P 500) and common stock of members of a Peer Group Index, all on December 31,
2019 and that all dividends were reinvested. The cumulative dollar total returns shown on the graph represent the value that such investments would have had at each year

end. TRINET34A 2024 FORM 10-K STOCK ACTIVITIESTable of ContentsCOMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURNAmong TriNet Group, Inc., the S&P 500 Index, and a
Peer Group(1)(1) The Peer Group Index used in the chart above consists of the following companies:Automatic Data Processing, Inc.Insperity, Inc.Paychex, Inc.Barrett Business
Services, Inc.Intuit, Inc.Issuer Purchases of Equity SecuritiesThe following table provides information about our purchases of TriNet common stock during the fourth quarter of 2024:
PeriodTotal Number ofShares Purchased (2)Weighted Average PricePaid Per ShareTotalA Number ofSharesPurchased asA PartA ofA PubliclyAnnouncedA Plans (1)Approximate Dollar
ValueofA SharesA thatA May YetA BeA PurchasedUnderA theA Plans(in millions) (3)October 1 - October 31, 2024101,248A $86.56A 101,106A $270A November 1 - November 30,
2024142,117A $92.93A 95,959A $261A December 1 - December 31, 2024183,153A $90.91A 118,674A $251A Total426,518A 315,739A (1) In May 2014, our board of directors
approved a stock repurchase program pursuant to which we are authorized to repurchase our common stock in privately negotiated and/or open market transactions, including under
plans complying with Rule 10b5-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. From time to time, our board of directors authorizes increases to our stock repurchase program and has
approved an aggregate total of $2,715 million as of DecemberA 31, 2024. The total remaining authorization for future stock repurchases under our stock repurchase program was
$251 million as of DecemberA 31, 2024. The program does not have an expiration date.(2) Includes shares surrendered by employees to us to satisfy tax withholding obligations that
arose upon vesting of restricted stock units granted pursuant to approved plans.(3) We repurchased a total of approximately $28 million of our outstanding stock during the three
months ended DecemberA 31, 2024.We use our stock repurchase program to return value to our stockholders and to offset dilution from the issuance of stock under our equity-based
incentive plans and employee purchase plan. As part of our stock repurchase program, we repurchased approximately $182A million of our common stock in 2024. We plan to use
current cash and cash generated from ongoing operating activities to fund our stock repurchase program.Our stock repurchases are subject to certain restrictions under the terms of
our credit facility. For more information about our stock repurchases and the restrictions imposed by our credit facility, refer to Note 8 and Note 11 in Part II, Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10-K. TRINET35A 2024 FORM 10-K MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISTable of ContentsItemA 7. Managementa€™s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsOperational HighlightsOur consolidated results for 2024 reflect our continuing efforts to serve our clients,
attract new clients and invest in our platform.During 2024 we:4€¢increased PEO sales performance and improved customer retention,a€¢continued to grow total revenues with
disciplined expense management in light of rising insurance costs,a€¢continued our capital allocation strategy by distributing excess shareholder returns through the initiation of
dividend and the repurchase of approximately 1.77 million shares of our common stock through our existing stock repurchase program,a€¢welcomed Mike Simonds as our new
President and CEO, &€¢opened a new business and technological innovation center in Hyderabad, India, and&€¢began several strategic restructuring initiatives to focus our business
on our core value proposition, growing ASO, and the efficiency and effectiveness of our operations.Performance HighlightsOur results for 2024 when compared to 2023 are noted
below:$5.1B$226M90%Total revenuesIncome before taxInsurance cost ratiolA %increase(55)%decrease6A %increase$173M$3.43$269MNet incomeDiluted EPSAdjusted Net income



*(54)%decrease(48)%decrease(40)%decrease352,681360,681Average WSE **Total WSE **6A %increase4A %increase*Non-GAAP measure. See definitions below under the heading
"Non-GAAP Financial Measures".**Total WSEs and Average WSEs include incremental WSEs that were charged a platform user access fee and incremental additional service
recipients. These were identified as a result of our ongoing effort to ensure that our billing practices best match the expectations of our customers. For details, refer to the heading
"Operating Metrics a€“ Worksite Employees (WSEs).a€ Our total revenues increased 1%, driven by higher Average co-employed WSEs and rate increases, partially offset by lower
health plan enrollment. Average WSEs and Total WSEs increased 6% and 4%, respectively, compared to the same period in 2023, primarily due to additional PEO Platform Users and
additional service recipients identified as a result of our ongoing effort to ensure that our billing practices best match the expectations of our customers.TRINET36A 2024 FORM 10-K
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISTable of ContentsOur results are highly influenced by health care cost and utilization trends. Our ICR was 6 points higher compared to
the same period in 2023, driven by more severe medical service utilization, higher rates paid for services, and increasing specialty drug utilization which collectively outpaced the
rates we charge our clients. The increase in ICR was partially offset by favorable workers' compensation prior period claims development during the second quarter of 2024. For
further discussion on the effect of health care costs and utilization trends on our results of operations, refer to the heading "Insurance Cost Ratio (ICR)".Higher insurance costs and
interest expense, partially offset by higher revenues, resulted in decreases of net income and Adjusted Net income of 54% and 40%, respectively, as compared to the same period in
2023. The decrease in net income was also driven by impairment and severance charges recognized as part of our efforts to realign our strategy. Results of OperationsThe following
table summarizes our results of operations for the three years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022. For details of the critical accounting judgments and estimates that could
affect the Results of Operations, see the Critical Accounting Judgments and Estimates section within MD&A.As illustrated below, we have adjusted the presentation of our income
statement to include interest income into Total revenues and interest expense, bank fees and other into expenses. This has the effect of simplifying the presentation by removing a
separate subtotal of Other income/expense, which is not a measure of profitability used by management.A Year Ended December 31,% Change(in millions, except operating metrics
data)2024202320222024 vs. 20232023 vs. 2022Income Statement Data:Professional service revenues$765A $756A $754A 1A %&a€”A %Insurance service

revenues4,224A 4,166A 4,131A 1A 1A Interest income64A 72A 22A (11)227A Total revenues5,053A 4,994A 4,907A 1A 2A Insurance costs3,797A 3,513A 3,463A 8A 1A Operating
expenses968A 940A 923A 3A 2A Interest expense, bank fees and other62A 40A 39A 55A 3A Total costs and expenses4,827A 4,493A 4,425A 7A 2A Income before

tax226A 501A 482A (55)4A Income taxes53A 126A 127A (58)(1)Net income$173A $375A $355A (54)%6A %Cash Flow Data:Net cash provided by operating R
activities279A 539A 497A (48)%8A %Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities153A (70)(226)(319)(69)Net cash used in financing activities(207)(540)(471)(62)15A Non-GAAP
measures (1):Adjusted EBITDA485A 697A 688A (30)%1A %Adjusted Net income269A 446A 448A (40)a€”A Operating Metrics:Insurance Cost o

Ratio90A %84A %84A %6A %a€”A %Average WSEs (2)352,681A 331,423A 348,543A 6A (5)Total WSEs (2)360,681A 347,542A 348,652A 4A 4€”A (1)A A A A Refer to Non-GAAP
measures definitions and reconciliations from GAAP measures under the heading "Non-GAAP Financial Measures".(2)A A A A Total WSEs and Average WSEs include incremental WSEs
that were charged a platform user access fee and incremental additional service recipients. These were identified as a result of our ongoing effort to ensure that our billing practices
best match the expectations of our customers. For details, refer to the heading "Operating Metrics 4€“ Worksite Employees (WSEs).&€ (3)A A A A For the year ended December 31,
2022, reflects HRIS Users from February 15, 2022, the date on which we acquired Zenefits, to the end of the period. TRINET37A 2024 FORM 10-K MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSISTable of ContentsThe following table summarizes our balance sheet data as of DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022.A Year Ended December 31,% Change(in
millions)2024202320222024 vs. 20232023 vs. 2022Balance Sheet Data:Cash and cash equivalents$360A $287A $354A 25A %(19)%Working capital199A 115A 338A 73A %(66)%Total
assets4,119A 3,693A 3,443A 12A %7A %Debt983A 1,093A 496A (10)%120A %Total stockholdersa€™ equity69A 78A 775A (12)%(90)%A discussion regarding our financial condition
and results of operations for 2023 compared to 2022 can be found under Part II, Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
DecemberA 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on February 15, 2024.Non-GAAP Financial MeasuresIn addition to financial measures presented in accordance with GAAP, we monitor other
non-GAAP financial measures that we use to manage our business, to make planning decisions, to allocate resources and to use as performance measures in our executive
compensation plan. These key financial measures provide an additional view of our operational performance over the long-term and provide information that we use to maintain and
grow our business. The presentation of these non-GAAP financial measures is used to enhance the understanding of certain aspects of our financial performance. It is not meant to be
considered in isolation from, superior to, or as a substitute for the directly comparable financial measures prepared in accordance with GAAP. Non-GAAP MeasureDefinitionHow We
Use The MeasureAdjusted EBITDA&€¢ Net (loss) income, excluding the effects of: - income tax provision, - interest expense, bank fees and other,- depreciation, - amortization of
intangible assets, - stock based compensation expense,- amortization of cloud computing arrangements, - transaction and integration costs, and- restructuring costs.a€¢ Provides
period-to-period comparisons on a consistent basis and an understanding as to how our management evaluates the effectiveness of our business strategies by excluding certain non-
recurring costs, which include restructuring costs, as well as certain non-cash charges such as depreciation and amortization, and stock-based compensation and certain impairment
charges recognized based on the estimated fair values. We believe these charges are either not directly resulting from our core operations or not indicative of our ongoing
operations.4€¢ Enhances comparisons to the prior period and, accordingly, facilitates the development of future projections and earnings growth prospects.a€¢ Provides a measure,
among others, used in the determination of incentive compensation for management.&€¢ We also sometimes refer to Adjusted EBITDA margin, which is the ratio of Adjusted EBITDA to
total revenues.Adjusted Net Incomea€¢ Net (loss) income, excluding the effects of: - effective income tax rate (1), - stock based compensation, - amortization of intangible assets, net,-
non-cash interest expense, - transaction and integration costs,- restructuring costs, and- the income tax effect (at our effective tax rate (1) of these pre-tax adjustments.)a€¢ Provides
information to our stockholders and board of directors to understand how our management evaluates our business, to monitor and evaluate our operating results, and analyze
profitability of our ongoing operations and trends on a consistent basis by excluding certain non-cash charges.(1) A A A A Non-GAAP effective tax rate is 25.6% for 2024 and 2023, and
25.5% for 2022, which excludes the income tax impact from stock-based compensation, changes in uncertain tax positions, and nonrecurring benefits or expenses from federal
legislative changes.In 2024, we changed our presentation method in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows to classify changes in WSE and TriNet Trust assets and liabilities as
financing activities instead of operating activities. As a result of this change, we will no longer use Corporate Operating Cash Flows as a non-GAAP financial measure.TRINET38A 2024
FORM 10-K MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISTable of ContentsReconciliation of GAAP to Non-GAAP MeasuresThe table below presents a reconciliation of Net income
to Adjusted EBITDA: Year Ended December 31,(in millions)202420232022Net income$173A $375A $355A Provision for income taxes53A 126A 127A Stock based

compensation65A 59A 62A Interest expense, bank fees and other (1)62A 40A 39A Depreciation and amortization of intangible assets 75A 72A 64A Amortization of cloud computing
arrangements8A 8A 4A Transaction and integration costsa€”A 17A 37A Restructuring costs49A 4€”A 4€”A Adjusted EBITDA$485A $697A $688A Adjusted EBITDA Margin

9.6A %14.2A %14.1A %(1)A A A A 2022 Interest expense, bank fees and other includes $17M of realized investments losses on sales and impairments related to AFS securities.The
table below presents a reconciliation of Net income to Adjusted Net Income: Year Ended December 31,(in millions)202420232022Net income $173A $375A $355A Effective income tax
rate adjustment(5)(2)5A Stock based compensation65A 59A 62A Amortization of other intangible assets, net19A 20A 18A Non-cash interest expense3A 2A 1A Transaction and
integration costsd€”A 17A 37A Restructuring costs49A 4€”A a€”A Income tax impact of pre-tax adjustments(35)(25)(30)Adjusted Net Income$269A $446A $448A TRINET39A 2024
FORM 10-K MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISTable of ContentsOperating MetricsWorksite Employees (WSE)Average WSE change is a volume measure we use to
monitor the performance of our PEO business. Our PEO clients generally change their payroll service providers at the beginning of the payroll tax and benefits enrollment year; as a
result, we have historically experienced our highest volumes of new PEO clients joining and existing clients terminating in the month of January. PEO client attrition, new PEO client
additions and changes in employment levels within our installed PEO client base all impact our Average WSEs and Total WSEs as we move through a calendar year. We support WSEs
from the date on which their co-employment with TriNet commences through the end of their co-employment with TriNet and also after their co-employment period. We define WSEs
to include co-employees and other individuals receiving PEO services, such as individuals who receive COBRA benefits or are subject to partnership tax reporting as well as individuals
who utilize our PEO platform on behalf of TriNet PEO clients. As part of an ongoing effort to ensure that our billing practices best match the expectations of our customers, in the third
quarter of 2023 we determined that certain individuals such as those described above and certain co-employees were not previously or consistently counted in Total WSEs and Average
WSEs. This resulting adjustment is reflected in Total WSEs for both DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, and increased Average WSEs by approximately 5,400 and 1,500 related to COBRA
users for the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. We intend to continue our ongoing effort to ensure that our billing practices best match the services we provide
and the expectations of our customers and in the future we may identify additional individuals that should be included in Total WSEs and Average WSEs.In December 2023, we
implemented a platform user access fee to charge clients for those users of our PEO platform that may not be co-employed by us and to charge clients for co-employees for whom
payroll may not be regularly run. In addition to co-employees for whom payroll may not be regularly run, such as partners in a partnership, this also includes individuals authorized by
our clients to access and use the PEO platform for functions such as bookkeeping and benefits management. While the amount of revenue we recognized for this service to date has
not been significant, these users of the PEO platform for whose access we charged this fee increased our reported Total WSEs by approximately 30,600 as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and
Average WSEs by approximately 20,200 and 1,000 for the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.The effect of this new fee is that we are now receiving revenue
from two types of users on our PEO platform, those that are co-employed in our PEO business and those that are utilizing our PEO platform, albeit in a more limited capacity. The table
below illustrates how those two components comprise our Total WSE and Average WSE metriqs.A Year Ended December 31,% Change2024202320222024 vs. 20232023 vs.
2022Average WSEs352,681A 331,423A 348,543A 6A (5)A A A Co-Employed332,456A 330,423A 348,543A 1A (5)A A A PEO Platform Users20,225A 1,000A N/An.m.N/ATotal
WSEs360,681A 347,542A 348,652A 4A a€”A A A A Co-Employed330,104A 335,543A 348,652A (2)(4)A A A PEO Platform Users30,577A 11,999A N/An.m.N/AAverage WSEs increased
6% when comparing 2024 to 2023, primarily due to the additional co-employed and PEO platform users described above. From a vertical perspective, declines in our Technology,
Professional Services and Life Sciences verticals were largely offset by increases in our Main Street, Financial Services and Non-Profit verticals.Total WSEs can be used to estimate
our beginning WSEs for the next period and, as a result, can be used as an indicator of our potential future success in generating revenue, growing our business and retaining clients.
Total WSEs increased 4% when compared to the same period in 2023, primarily due to higher PEO Platform Users as the PEO platform user access fee described above was fully
implemented during 2024.Anticipated revenues for future periods can diverge from the revenue expectation derived from Average WSEs or Total WSEs due to pricing differences
across our HCM solutions and services and the degree to which clients and WSEs elect to participate in our solutions during future periods. In addition to focusing on growing our
Average WSE and Total WSE counts, we also focus on pricing strategies, benefit participation and service differentiation to expand TRINET40A 2024 FORM 10-K MANAGEMENT'S
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISTable of Contentsthe value we provide to our clients and our resulting revenue opportunities. We report the impact of client and WSE participation
differences as a change in mix.We continue to invest in efforts intended to enhance client experience, improve our new sales performance, and manage client attrition, through product
development as well as operational and process improvements. In addition to focusing on retaining and growing our WSE base, we continue to review acquisition opportunities that
would expand our product offering and provide further scale.Insurance Cost Ratio (ICR)ICR is a performance measure calculated as the ratio of insurance costs to insurance service
revenues. We believe that ICR promotes an understanding of our insurance cost trends and our ability to align our relative pricing to risk performance.We purchase workers'
compensation and health benefits coverage for our WSEs. Under the insurance policies for this coverage, we bear claims costs up to a defined deductible amount. Our insurance costs,
which comprise a significant portion of our overall costs, are significantly affected by our WSEsa€™ health and workers' compensation insurance claims experience. We set our
insurance service fees for workersd€™ compensation and health benefits in advance for fixed benefit periods. As a result, any increases in insurance costs above our projections, will
be reflected as a higher ICR, and result in lower net income. Any decreases in insurance costs below our projections, will be reflected as a lower ICR and result in higher net
income.Under our fully-insured workers' compensation insurance policies, we assume the risk for losses up to $1 million per claim occurrence (deductible layer). The ultimate cost of
the workersd€™ compensation services provided cannot be known until all the claims are settled. Our ability to predict these costs is limited by unexpected increases in frequency or
severity of claims, which can vary due to changes in the cost of treatments or claim settlements.Under our risk-based health insurance policies, we assume the risk of variability in
future health claims costs for our enrollees. This variability typically results from changing trends in the volume, severity and ultimate cost of medical and pharmaceutical claims, due
to changes to the components of medical cost trend, which we define as changes in participant use of services, including the introduction of new treatment options, changes in
treatment guidelines and mandates, and changes in the mix, cost of providing treatment and timing of services provided to plan participants. These trends change, and other seasonal
trends and variability may develop. As a result, it is difficult for us to predict our insurance costs with accuracy and a significant increase in these costs could have a material adverse
effect on our business.(in millions)202420232022Insurance costs$3,797A $3,513A $3,463A Insurance service revenues4,224A 4,166A 4,131A Insurance Cost

Ratio90A %84A %84A %TRINET41A 2024 FORM 10-K MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISTable of ContentsICR increased for the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024 as
compared to 2023, primarily driven by higher insurance costs outpacing the growth in ISR. Insurance costs increased due to more severe medical service utilization in all categories
(inpatient, outpatient and professional services), higher rates paid for those services, as well as pharmacy costs including specialty drugs, particularly medications for diabetes and
obesity. During the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024, this was partially offset by favorable prior period development in workers' compensation.Total Revenues Our revenues consist of
PSR, ISR and interest income. PSR represents fees charged to clients for processing payroll-related transactions on behalf of our PEO and ASO clients, access to our HR expertise and
technology, employment and benefit law compliance services, other HR-related and tax credit filing services and fees charged to access our cloud-based ASO services. ISR consists of
insurance-related billings and administrative fees collected from PEO clients and withheld from WSEs for workers' compensation insurance and health benefit insurance plans
provided by third-party insurance carriers.Monthly revenues per co-employed Average WSE is a measure we use to monitor our PEO pricing strategies. This measure increased 1% in
2024 compared to 2023.We also use the following measures to further analyze changes in total revenue:a€¢Volume - the percentage change in period over period co-employed Average
WSESs,a€¢Rate - the combined weighted average percentage changes in service fees for each vertical service and changes in service fees associated with each insurance service
offering, &€¢Mix - the change in composition of co-employed Average WSEs within our verticals combined with the composition of our enrolled co-employed WSEs within our insurance
service offerings and the composition of products and services our clients receive, such as PEO Platform Users,a€¢HRIS - cloud services revenue, which includes our new ASO services



revenue, anda€¢Interest income. PSRISR - % represents proportion of insurance service revenues to total revenues*Total revenues generated from PEO services only, excluding
interest incomeThe increase in total revenue for the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024 was primarily driven by higher co-employed Average WSEs and rate increases, partially offset by
lower health plan enrollment. TRINET42A 2024 FORM 10-K MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISTable of ContentsProfessional Service Revenues Our PEO and ASO clients
are primarily billed on a fee per WSE or HRIS User per month per transaction. Our vertical approach provides us the flexibility to offer our PEO clients in different industries with
varied services at different prices, which we believe potentially reduces the value of solely using Average WSE and Total WSE counts as indicators of future potential revenue
performance.PSR from PEO Services customers and HRIS services clients was as follows:(in millions)20242023PEO Services$723A $704A HRIS Services

42A 52A Total$765A $756A We also analyze changes in PSR with the following measures:a€¢Volume - the percentage change in period over period co-employed Average WSEs,a€
¢Rate - the weighted average percentage change in fees for each vertical, 4€¢Mix - the change in composition of co-employed Average WSEs across our verticals and the composition
of products and services our clients receive, including PEO Platform Users, anda€¢HRIS - cloud services revenue, which includes our new ASO services revenue.The increase in PSR
for the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024 was primarily driven by higher co-employed Average WSEs and increases in rate. The decrease in HRIS revenue compared to the prior periods
was due to a decrease in HRIS Users in 2024 and an acceleration of revenue in 2023 related to a termination agreement in a broker partner which did not recur in

2024.TRINET43A 2024 FORM 10-K MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISTable of ContentsInsurance Service Revenues ISR consists of insurance services-related billings
and administrative fees collected from PEO clients and withheld from WSE payroll for health benefits and workers' compensation insurance provided by third-party insurance
carriers.We use the following measures to analyze changes in ISR:4€¢Volume - the percentage change in period over period co-employed Average WSEs,a€¢Rate - the weighted
average percentage change in fees associated with each of our insurance service offerings, anda€¢Mix - all other changes including the composition of our enrolled co-employed WSEs
within our insurance service offerings (health plan enrollment).The increase in ISR for the year was primarily driven by rate increases and higher co-employed Average WSEs, partially
offset by lower health plan enrollment.Interest Incomelnterest income primarily includes interest income earned from cash held for our PEO and ASO clients as a result of the
requirement of our clients to prefund their payroll and related taxes and other withholding liabilities before payroll is processed or due for payment.The decrease in interest income for
the year was primarily driven by lower cash and investment holdings during 2024 as compared to 2023 as well as decreases in interest rates in the second half of

2024.TRINET44A 2024 FORM 10-K MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISTable of ContentsInsurance CostsInsurance costs include insurance premiums for coverage
provided by insurance carriers, payments for claims costs and expenses for other risk management and administrative services, reimbursement of claims payments made by insurance
carriers or third-party administrators below a predefined deductible limit, and changes in accrued costs related to contractual obligations with our workers' compensation and health
benefit carriers.We use the following measures to analyze changes in insurance costs:a€¢Volume - the percentage change in period over period co-employed Average WSEs,a€¢Rate -
the weighted average percentage change in cost trend associated with each of our insurance service offerings, anda€¢Mix - all other changes including the composition of our enrolled
co-employed WSEs within our insurance service offerings (health plan enrollment).The increase in insurance costs for the year was primarily due to more severe medical service
utilization, higher rates paid for all categories of service (inpatient, outpatient and professional services) and increased specialty drugs utilization, particularly medications for diabetes
and obesity. This trend was partially offset by favorable workers' compensation prior period claims development. TRINET45A 2024 FORM 10-K MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSISTable of ContentsExpensesExpenses include COPS, S&M, G&A, SD&P, D&A, collectively referred to as OE, as well as IE.We had approximately 3,600 colleagues as of
DecemberA 31, 2024 primarily across the U.S. but also in India and Canada. Compensation costs for our colleagues include payroll, payroll taxes, SBC, bonuses, commissions and
other payroll- and benefits-related costs. Compensation-related expense represented 63% and 66% of our expenses in 2024 and 2023, respectively.Transaction and integration costs
associated with our 2022 acquisitions of Zenefits and TriNet Clarus R+D are included in G&A for 2023. These costs include advisory, legal, and employee retention costs tied to
ongoing employment. In the fourth quarter of 2024, we began implementing a realignment of our strategy designed to simplify and strengthen TriNeta€™ s operational focus. As part
of these restructuring efforts, we incurred higher asset impairment and severance expenses than in 2023.In 2024, we experienced expense growth of 5% compared to 2023. This
increase was primarily driven by severance costs and non-cash impairment charges related to our restructuring efforts as well as higher interest expense related to our debt
instruments issued in 2023. The ratio of expenses to total revenues was 20% in 2024 and 2023.% represents portion of compensation related expense included in
expensesTRINET46A 2024 FORM 10-K MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISTable of ContentsWe analyze and present our expenses based upon the functional categories of
COPS, S&M, G&A, SD&P, D&A and IE. The charts below provide a view of the expenses of the business functions. Dollars are presented in millions and percentages represent year-
over-year change.(in millions)$9802023 Expenses-3COPS decreased primarily due to lower compensation and professional fees, partially offset by higher tax and licenses
expenses.+4S&M increased primarily due to higher compensation to support our sales force, partially offset by lower advertising costs and lower conferences and events
expenses.+21G&A increased primarily due to restructuring costs in the fourth quarter, partially offset by lower consulting and transaction and integration costs.+3SD&P increased
primarily due to higher compensation, partially offset by lower hosting and external software costs.+3D&A increased, driven primarily by higher software amortization costs.+22IE
increased, driven primarily by the additional interest on our 2031 Notes issued in the third quarter of 2023 and the draw down of the 2021 Revolver.$1,0302024 ExpensesThe primary
spend type drivers to the changes in our expenses are presented below:TRINET47A 2024 FORM 10-K MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISTable of ContentsIncome
TaxesOur ETR was 23% and 25% for 2024 and 2023, respectively. The decrease in the rate was primarily attributable to an increase in tax benefits related to excludable income for
state tax purposes and tax credits, offset by a decrease in tax benefits for stock based compensation.Liquidity and Capital ResourcesLiquidityLiquidity is a measure of our ability to
access sufficient cash flows to meet the short-term and long-term cash requirements of our business operations. Our principal source of liquidity for operations is derived from cash
provided by operating activities. We rely on cash provided by operating activities to meet our short-term liquidity requirements, which primarily relate to the payment of corporate
payroll and other operating costs, and capital expenditures. Our cash flow related to WSE payroll and benefits is generally matched by advance collection from our PEO clients. To
minimize the credit risk associated with remitting the payroll and associated taxes and benefits costs, we require PEO clients to prefund the payroll and related payroll taxes and
benefits costs.Included in our balance sheets are assets and liabilities resulting from transactions directly or indirectly associated with WSEs, including payroll and related taxes and
withholdings, our sponsored workers' compensation and health insurance programs, and other benefit programs. Although we are not subject to regulatory restrictions that require us
to do so, we distinguish and manage our corporate assets and liabilities separately from those current assets and liabilities held by us to satisfy our employer obligations associated
with our WSEs.In December of 2023, TriNet created a trust for the purpose of holding funds provided by HRIS clients for the remittance to HRIS Users, tax authorities and other
recipients. This trust is consolidated into our financial statements. During the first quarter of 2024, TriNet Trust assumed ownership and responsibility of certain bank accounts that
hold ASO client funds. The associated cash is reflected on our balance sheet as restricted cash and the associated liabilities are classified as accrued wages, payroll tax liabilities and
other payroll withholdings, and client deposits and other client liabilities and assumed related liabilities. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, the balance of restricted cash in TriNet Trust was
$87 million. Beginning in the second quarter of 2024, we include the assets and liabilities related to the TriNet Trust in the "WSE & TriNet Trust" category because the underlying
cash flows of TriNet Trust are related to the same type of payroll and payroll related liabilities as our WSE cash flows. This trust structure will continue to be used as we transition our
HRIS services to AASO‘servicgs.Decqmber 31,20242023(in millions)QorpqrateWSE & TriNet TrustTotalCorporateWSE & TriNet TrustTotalCurrent assets:Cash and cash
equivalents$359A $1A $360A $287A $a€”A $287A Investmentsa€”A 4€”A 4€”A 65A 4€”A 65A Restricted cash, cash equivalents and

investments23A 1,390A 1,413A 22A 1,247A 1,269A Other current assets95A 1,312A 1,407A 73A 884A 957A Total current assets$477A $2,703A $3,180A $447A $2,131A $2,578A Total
current liabilities278A 2,703A $2,981A $332A $2,131A $2,463A Working capital$199A $a€”A $199A $115A $4€”A $115A As of DecemberA 31, 2024, we did not have any material off-
balance sheet arrangements that are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital
resources.Working capital for WSEs and TriNet Trust related activitiesWe designate funds to ensure that we have adequate current assets to satisfy our current obligations associated
with WSEs. We manage our WSE payroll and benefits obligations through collections of payments from our clients which generally occur two to three days in advance of client payroll
dates. We regularly review our short-term obligations associated with our WSEs (such as payroll and related taxes, insurance premium and claim payments) and designate funds
required to fulfill these short-term obligations, which we refer to as PFC. PFC is included in current assets as restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments. TRINET48A 2024
FORM 10-K MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISTable of ContentsWe manage our sponsored benefit and workers' compensation insurance obligations by maintaining
collateral funds in restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments. These collateral amounts are generally determined at the beginning of each plan year and we may be required by
our insurance carriers to adjust our collateral balances when facts and circumstances change. We regularly review our collateral balances with our insurance carriers and anticipate
funding further collateral in the future based upon our capital requirements. We classify our restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments as current and noncurrent assets to
match against the anticipated timing of payments to carriers. The following table summarizes our workers' compensation obligations, gross of collateral, as of DecemberA 31,

2024,A Payments Due by Period(in millions)TotalLess than 1 yearl-3 years3-5 yearsMore than 5 yearsWorkers' compensation obligations (1)$158A $45A $48A $20A $45A (1)
Represents estimated payments that are expected to be made to carriers for various workers' compensation programs under the contractual obligations. These obligations include the
costs of reimbursing the carriers for paying claims within the deductible layer in accordance with the workers' compensation insurance policy.Because the liabilities of the TriNet Trust
are largely driven by how much in cash has been deposited into the trust, there is generally no significant working capital in that entity. Working capital for corporate
purposesCorporate working capital as of DecemberA 31, 2024 increased $84 million from DecemberA 31, 2023, primarily driven by a $72 million increase in corporate unrestricted
cash and cash equivalents, partially offset by a $65 million decrease in the current portion of our unrestricted investment portfolio and a $54 million decrease in corporate current
liabilities, mostly driven by the $34 million reduction in the current portion of our outstanding debt. We use our available cash and cash equivalents to satisfy our operational and
regulatory requirements and to fund capital expenditures. We believe that we can meet our present and reasonably foreseeable operating cash needs and future commitments through
existing liquid assets, continuing cash flows from corporate operating activities and the potential issuance of debt or equity securities. We hold both corporate cash and cash
associated with WSEs across multiple financial institutions to reduce concentrations of counterparty risk. We believe our existing corporate cash and cash equivalents and positive
working capital will be sufficient to meet our working capital expenditure needs for at least the next twelve months.The following table summarizes our purchase obligations as of
DecemberA 31, 2024,A Payments Due by Period(in millions)TotalLess than 1 yearl-3 years3-5 yearsMore than 5 yearsPurchase obligations (1) $110A $71A $39A $a€”A $a€”A (1) Our
purchase obligations primarily consist of software licenses, consulting and maintenance agreements, and future sales and marketing events. TRINET49A 2024 FORM 10-K
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISTable of ContentsCash FlowsIn 2024, we changed the presentation method in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows to classify
changes in WSE and TriNet Trust related assets and liabilities, formerly included in operating activities, as financing activities.The following table presents our cash flow activities for
the stated periods:A Year Ended December 31,(in millions)20242023CorporateWSE & TriNet TrustTotalCorporateWSE & TriNet TrustTotalNet cash provided by (used

in):A A Operating activities$279A $4€”A $279A $539A $a€”A $539A Investing activities148A 5A 153A (65)(5)(70)Financing activities(346)139A (207)(546)6A (540)Net increase
(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted and restricted$81A $144A $225A $(72)$1A $(71)Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted and restricted:Beginning of
period$334A $1,132A $1,466A $406A $1,131A $1,537A End of period$415A $1,276A $1,691A $334A $1,132A $1,466A Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents:Unrestricted$72A $1A $73A $(67)$a€”A $(67)Restricted9A 143A 152A (5)1A (4)Operating ActivitiesThe year-over-year change in net cash provided by operating activities
was primarily driven by the decrease in our net income and the timing of our payments of corporate obligations.Investing ActivitiesCash provided by (used in) investing activities for
the periods presented below primarily consisted of purchases of investments, capital expenditures and acquisition of business, partially offset by proceeds from the sale and maturity
of investments. A Year Ended December 31,(in millions)20242023Investments:Purchases of investments$(190)$(281)Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments421A 286A Cash
provided by investments$231A $5A Capital expenditures:Software and hardware$(73)$(70)Office furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements(5)(5)Cash used in capital
expenditures$(78)$(75)Cash provided by (used in) investing activities$153A $(70)In 2024, we liquidated the unrestricted portion of our investment portfolio and used the funds to pay
down our outstanding debt and for additional operational liquidity.InvestmentsWe invest a portion of available cash in investment-grade securities with effective maturities less than
five years that are classified on our balance sheets as investments. We consider industry and issuer concentrations in our investment policy. TRINET50A 2024 FORM 10-K
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISTable of ContentsWe also invest funds held as collateral to satisfy our long-term obligation towards workers' compensation liabilities.
These investments are classified on our balance sheets as restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments. We review the amount and the anticipated holding period of these
investments regularly in conjunction with our estimated long-term workers' compensation liabilities and anticipated claims payment trend. At DecemberA 31, 2024, our investments
had a weighted average duration of less than two years and an average S&P credit rating of AA+.As of DecemberA 31, 2024, we held approximately $1.9 billion in restricted and
unrestricted cash, cash equivalents and investments, of which $360 million was unrestricted cash and cash equivalents. Refer to Note 2 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplemental Data, in this Form 10-K for a summary of these funds.Capital ExpendituresDuring the twelve months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, we continued to make
investments in software and hardware as we enhanced our existing service offerings and technology platform. We expect capital investments in our software and hardware to continue
in the future.Financing ActivitiesNet cash used in financing activities in the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023 consisted of our debt and equity-related activities.A Year
Ended December 31,(in millions)20242023Financing activitiesChange in WSE and TriNet Trust related assets and liabilities, net$139A $6A Repurchase of common stock, net of
issuance costs(199)(1,137)Proceeds from issuance of 2031 Notesa€”A 400A Payment of long-term financing fees and debt issuance costsa€”A (9)Proceeds from revolving credit
agreement borrowingsa€”A 695A Repayment of borrowings under revolving credit facility(110)(495)Dividends paid(37)a€”A Cash used in financing activities$(207)$(540)In February
2023, our board of directors authorized a $300 million incremental increase to our ongoing stock repurchase program initiated in May 2014. In July 2023, our board of directors
authorized a further $1 billion incremental increase to this stock repurchase program. We use this program to return value to our stockholders and to offset dilution from the issuance
of stock under our equity-based incentive plan and employee purchase plan.On August 28, 2023, we completed a public tender offer through which we repurchased 5,981,308 shares
of common stock at a price of $107.00 per share, for total consideration of approximately $640 million. On September 13, 2023, we repurchased 3,364,486 shares of common stock at



a price of $107.00 per share, for total consideration of approximately $360 million, through a private repurchase from our largest stockholder, Atairos Group, Inc. During the year
ended DecemberA 31, 2024, we repurchased 1,771,254 shares of our common stock for approximately $182 million through our existing stock repurchase program in addition to
110,779 shares acquired to satisfy tax withholding obligations related to SBC vesting. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, approximately $251 million remained available for repurchase under
all authorizations by our board of directors. We plan to use current cash and cash generated from ongoing operating activities to fund this stock repurchase program. In March 2023,
to ensure that we maintained liquidity during the regional banking liquidity challenges, we drew down the available $495 million of capacity under our 2021 Revolver. As concerns
about market liquidity subsided, we repaid $200 million in March and $295 million in April. In September of 2023, we drew down $200 million under our 2021 Revolver to partially
fund our share repurchases in the third quarter of 2023 noted above. In 2024, we repaid $110 million of the outstanding balance. TRINET51A 2024 FORM 10-K MANAGEMENT'S
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISTable of ContentsIn August 2023, we issued $400 million aggregate principal amount of our 2031 Notes to partially fund share repurchases in the third
quarter of 2023. In August 2023, concurrently with the issuance of the 2031 Notes, we amended certain provisions of our 2021 Credit Agreement, dated February 26, 2021, as
amended, to, among other things (1) increase the aggregate capacity under our 2021 Revolver from $500 million to $700 million and (2) extend the maturity date of our 2021 Revolver
to August 16, 2028. We initiated a common stock dividend of $0.25 per share in April, July and October 2024 and declared common stock dividends of $0.25 per share to be paid in the
first quarter of 2025.Capital ResourcesAs of DecemberA 31, 2024, $500 million and $400 million aggregate principal of our 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes was outstanding, respectively.
The indenture governing our 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes each includes restrictive covenants limiting our ability to: (i) create liens on certain assets to secure debt; (ii) grant a
subsidiary guarantee of certain debt without also providing a guarantee of the 2029 Notes or 2031 Notes, as applicable; and (iii) consolidate or merge with or into, or sell or otherwise
dispose of all or substantially all of our assets to, another person, subject, in each case, to certain customary exceptions.Our 2021 Credit Agreement includes a $700 million revolver.
In September of 2023, we drew down $200 million of this revolver to partially fund our third quarter of 2023 share repurchases. The 2021 Credit Agreement includes negative
covenants that limit our ability to incur indebtedness and liens, sell assets and make restricted payments, including dividends and investments, subject to certain exceptions. In
addition, the 2021 Credit Agreement also contains other customary affirmative and negative covenants and customary events of default. The 2021 Credit Agreement also contains a
financial covenant that requires the Company to maintain certain maximum total net leverage ratios.We were in compliance with all financial covenants under our 2021 Credit
Agreement, 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes at DecemberA 31, 2024.Critical Accounting Judgments and EstimatesOur consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with
GAAP, which require us to make estimates, judgments, and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and the related disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities. These estimates are based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Some
of the assumptions are highly uncertain at the time of estimation. To the extent actual experience differs from the assumptions used, our consolidated financial statements could be
materially affected. For additional information about our accounting policies, refer to Note 1A in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10-K.The
following items require significant estimation or judgment:Insurance Costs We purchase workers' compensation and health benefits coverage for our colleagues and WSEs. As part of
these insurance policies, we bear claims costs up to a defined deductible amount and as a result, we establish accrued insurance costs including both known claims filed and estimates
for incurred but not reported claims.We use qualified actuaries to evaluate, review and recommend estimates of our accrued workers' compensation and health insurance costs. The
accrued costs studies performed by these qualified actuaries analyze historical claims data to develop a range of our potential ultimate costs using loss development, expected loss
ratio and frequency/severity methods in accordance with Actuarial Standards of Practice. These methods are applied to classes of the claims data organized by policy year and risk
class.Key judgments and evaluations in arriving at loss estimates by class and the accrued costs selection overall include:a€¢the selection of method used and the relative weights
given to selecting the method used for each policy year,a€¢the underlying assumptions of LDF used in these models,a€¢the effect of any changes to the insurers' claims handling and
payment processes, TRINET52A 2024 FORM 10-K MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISTable of Contentsa€¢evaluation of medical and indemnity cost trends, costs from
changes in the risk exposure being evaluated and any applicable changes in legal, regulatory or judicial environment.We review and evaluate these judgments and the associated
recommendations in concluding the adequacy of accrued costs. Our quarterly reserving process involves the collaboration of our internal qualified actuaries and our actuarial and
finance departments to approve a single point best estimate. In selecting this best estimate, management considers the actuarial estimates and applies informed judgment regarding
qualitative factors that may not be fully captured in these actuarial estimates. Such factors include but are not limited to: the timing, volume, severity and complexity of claims, social
and judicial trends, medical treatment trends, the extent of our historical loss data versus industry information, rates of participant turnover, the impact of MCT and seasonal trends,
the impact of setting prices in advance of benefit periods, and the impact of unanticipated events. Where adjustments are necessary these are recorded in the period in which the
adjustments are identified.These accrued costs may vary in subsequent quarters from the amount estimated. Certain assumptions used in estimating these accrued costs are highly
judgmental. Our accrued costs, results of operations and financial condition can be materially impacted if actual experience differs from the assumptions used in establishing these
accrued costs.Accrued Workers' Compensation Costs Under our policies, we are responsible for reimbursing the insurance carriers for workers' compensation losses up to $1 million
per claim occurrence (Deductible Layer). As workers' compensation costs for a particular period are not known for many years after the losses have occurred, these costs represent
our best estimate of unpaid claim losses and loss adjustment expenses within the Deductible Layer in accordance with our insurance policies. We use actuaries to evaluate, review and
recommend accrued workers' compensation costs on a quarterly basis. The data is segmented by class and state and analyzed by policy year, and states where we have small exposure
are aggregated into a single grouping.We use a combination of loss development, expected loss ratio and frequency/severity methods which include the following inputs, assumptions
and analytical techniques:a€¢historical volume and severity of workers' compensation cost experience, exposure data and industry loss experience related to TriNeta€™s insurance
policies, &€¢inputs of WSEs&€™ job responsibilities and location,a€¢estimates of future cost trends, a€¢expected loss ratios for the latest accident year or prior accident years,
adjusted for the loss trend, the effect of rate changes and other quantifiable factors, and &€¢LDFs to project the reported losses for each accident year to an ultimate basis. Final cost
settlements may vary materially from the present estimates, particularly when payments do not occur until well into the future. In our experience, plan years related to workers'
compensation programs may take 10 years or more to be fully settled.We believe that our estimate of accrued workers' compensation costs is most sensitive to LDFs given the long
reporting and paid development patterns for our workers' compensation loss costs. Our methods of estimating accrued workers' compensation costs rely on these LDFs and an
estimate of future cost trend.The following table illustrates the sensitivity of changes in the LDFs on our year end estimate of insurance costs (in millions of dollars):Change in loss
development factorChange in insurance costs-5.0%($29)-2.5%($17)+2.5%$18+5.0%$36TRINET53A 2024 FORM 10-K MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISTable of
ContentsAccrued Health Insurance Costs We sponsor and administer a number of employee benefit plans for our WSEs, including group health, dental, vision and life insurance as an
employer plan sponsor under section 3(5) of the ERISA. Approximately 87% of our group health insurance costs relate to risk-based plans in which we agree to reimburse our carriers
for any claims paid within an agreed-upon per-person deductible layer up to a maximum aggregate exposure limit per policy. These deductible dollar limits and maximum limits vary by
carrier and year.Costs covered by these insurance plans generally develop on average within three to six months so insurance costs and accrued health insurance costs include
estimates of claims IBNP. Data is grouped and analyzed by insurance carrier. To estimate accrued health benefits costs we use a number of inputs, assumptions and analytical
techniques:a€ ¢historical loss claims payment patterns and MCT rates related to TriNeta€™s insurance policies, &€ ¢current period claims costs and claims reporting patterns
(completion factors), anda€¢plan enrollment. MCT rates are a significant factor we use in developing our accrued health insurance costs. MCT are developed through an analysis of
claims incurred in prior months, provider pricing and indicators of health care utilization, including pharmacy utilization trends, and outpatient and inpatient utilization. Many factors
may cause MCT to vary from our estimates. Such factors include, but are not limited to: the timing of the emergence of claims, volume, severity and complexity of claims, social and
judicial trends, medical treatment trends, the extent of our historical loss data versus industry information, rates of participant turnover, the impact of MCT and seasonal trends, the
impact of setting prices in advance of benefit periods, new treatment options, and the impact of unanticipated events.The following table illustrates the sensitivity of changes in the
MCT on our year end estimate of insurance costs (in millions of dollars):Change in medical cost trendChange in insurance costs+3.0%$23+2.0%$16+1.0%$8-
1.0%%$(8)-2.0%$(16)-3.0%$(23)Completion factors are an actuarial estimate based on historical experience and analysis of current trends, of paid costs to carriers as a percentage of
the expected ultimate costs to carriers. Many factors may cause actual claims submissions rates from our carriers to vary from our estimated completion factors, including carrier
claims processing patterns, the mix of providers and the mix of electronic versus manual claims submitted to our carriers. TRINET54A 2024 FORM 10-K MANAGEMENT'S
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISTable of ContentsThe following table illustrates the sensitivity of changes in completion factors on our year end estimate of insurance costs (in millions of
dollars):Change in completion factorsChange in insurance costs-0.75%$21-0.50%$14-0.25%$7+0.25%$(7)+0.50%$(14)+0.75%$(21)Recent Accounting Pronouncements Refer to Note
1 in Part II, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10-K for additional information related to recent accounting pronouncements. TRINET55A 2024 FORM
10-K QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURESTable of ContentsItemA 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market RiskWe are exposed to market risks in
connection with our business, which primarily relate to fluctuations in interest rates. Our exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to our investment portfolio and
outstanding borrowings under our floating rate 2021 Revolver. Changes in interest rates affect the interest earned on the Company's cash, cash equivalents and the fair value of our
investments as well as the cost of borrowing under our 2021 Revolver.Our cash equivalents consist primarily of money market mutual funds, which are not significantly exposed to
interest rate risk. Our investments are subject to interest rate risk because these securities generally include a fixed interest rate. As a result, the market values of these securities are
affected by changes in prevailing interest rates. We attempt to limit our exposure to interest rate risk and credit risk by investing in instruments that meet the minimum credit quality,
liquidity, diversification and other requirements of our investment policy. Our investments consist of liquid, investment-grade securities. The risk of interest rate changes on
investment balances was not material at DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023.In February 2021, we issued $500 million aggregate principal of 3.50% senior unsecured notes maturing in
March 2029 (our 2029 Notes) and in August 2023, we issued $400 million aggregate principal of 7.125% senior unsecured notes maturing in August 2031 (our 2031 Notes). Our 2029
Notes and 2031 Notes are carried at their cost, net of issuance costs. Since our 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes bear interest at fixed rates, we have no financial statement risk associated
with changes in interest rates. However, the fair value of our 2029 Notes and our 2030 Notes fluctuates when interest rates change.As of DecemberA 31, 2024, we had drawn down
$90 million under our floating rate 2021 Revolver. The impact of a 100 basis point increase or decrease in market interest rates to interest expense on our 2021 Revolver as of
DecemberA 31, 2024 over the next twelve months was approximately $1 million increase or decrease to interest expense for the twelve months ended December 31,

2025.TRINET56A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsltemA 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary DataTRINET GROUP, INC.Consolidated Financial
StatementsReports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID No.34)58Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income61Consolidated Balance
Sheets62Consolidated Statements of Stockholdersa€™ Equity63Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows64Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements66Note 1. Description of
Business and Significant Accounting Policies66Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments76Note 3. Investments77Note 4. Property, Equipment and Software, Net79Note 5.
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets79Note 6. Accrued Workers' Compensation Costs80Note 7. Leases81Note 8. Long-term Debt82Note 9. Commitments and Contingencies83Note
10. Stock Based Compensation83Note 11. Stockholders' Equity85Note 12. Income Taxes87Note 13. Earnings Per Share89Note 14. 401 (k) Plan89Note 15. Related Party
Transactions90Note 16. Restructuring91Note 17. Segment91TRINET57A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsREPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRMTo the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of TriNet Group, Inc. Opinion on the Financial StatementsWe have audited the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets of TriNet Group, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, the related consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income, stockholdersa€™ equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended DecemberA 31, 2024, and the related notes (collectively referred to as
the "financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2024, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of DecemberA 31, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated FebruaryA 13, 2025, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company's internal control over financial
reporting.Basis for OpinionThese financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the
U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.We conducted our audits in accordance with the
standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error
or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.Critical Audit MatterThe critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from
the current-period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that
are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any
way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit
matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.Accrued Workersa€™ Compensation and Health Insurance Costs - Refer to Note 1 and Note 6 to the financial
statementsCritical Audit Matter DescriptionThe Company offers its clients and worksite employees (WSEs) workers' compensation insurance and health insurance coverage through
insurance policies provided by third-party insurance carriers. The Company is obligated to reimburse the insurance carriers for losses up to defined deductible limits, in accordance
with the insurance policies. Accrued workersa€™ compensation and health insurance costs are established to provide for the estimated unpaid costs of reimbursing the



carriers. TRINET58A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsThe accrued workersa€™ compensation costs include estimates for reported and incurred but not
reported losses, accrued costs on reported claims, and expenses associated with settling the claims. The estimates are based on the Companya€™s historical and industry loss
experience, exposure data, an estimate of future cost trends, expected loss ratios, and loss development factors.The accrued health insurance costs include estimates for claims
incurred but not paid. The estimates are based on the Companya€™s historical claim payment patterns and medical cost trends, current period claim costs and claim reporting
patterns, and plan enrollment.Both the accrued workersa€™ compensation and health insurance costs are established using actuarial methods followed in the insurance industry and
the Company uses qualified actuaries to develop these estimates.Given the subjectivity of estimating the value of the accrued workersa€™ compensation and health insurance costs,
performing audit procedures to evaluate whether accrued workersa€™ compensation and health insurance costs recorded for the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024 required a high
degree of auditor judgment and an increased extent of effort, including the need to involve our actuarial specialists. How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the AuditOur
audit procedures related to the accrued workersa€™ compensation and health insurance costs included the following, among others: &€¢We tested the effectiveness of controls related
to accrued workersa€™ compensation and health insurance costs.a&€¢We tested the underlying data that served as inputs into the actuarial analyses, including testing historical claims
and enrollment data and recreating the claim loss triangles.4€¢With the assistance of our actuarial specialists, we evaluated the methods and key assumptions used by management to
estimate the accrued workersa€™ compensation and health insurance costs:4—|Compared managementa€™ s prior-year assumptions of expected development and ultimate loss to
actuals incurred during the current year to identify and evaluate potential bias in the determination of the accrued workersa€™ compensation and health insurance costs.d—
iDeveloped an independent range of estimates of the accrued costs, utilizing loss development factors and future cost trends for accrued workersa€™ compensation costs and claim
payment patterns and medical trend rates for accrued health insurance costs. We compared our estimated ranges to managementa€™s estimates./s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP San
Francisco, California FebruaryA 13, 2025 We have served as the Company's auditor since 2016. TRINET59A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsREPORT OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRMTo the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of TriNet Group, Inc.Opinion on Internal Control over Financial
ReportingWe have audited the internal control over financial reporting of TriNet Group, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Companya€) as of DecemberA 31, 2024, based on criteria
established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the
Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of DecemberA 31, 2024, based on criteria established inA Internal Control -
Integrated Framework (2013)A issued by COSO. We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB),
the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024, of the Company and our report dated FebruaryA 13, 2025, expressed an unqualified opinion on
those financial statements.Basis for OpinionThe Companya€ ™s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Managementa€™s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the Companya€™s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required
to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk,
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.Definition and
Limitations of Internal Control over Financial ReportingA companya€™s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A companya€™s
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
companya€™s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate./s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP San Francisco, California FebruaryA 13,

2025TRINET60A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsTRINET GROUP, INC.CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE
INCOMEA Year Ended December 31,(in millions except per share data)202420232022Professional service revenues$765A $756A $754A Insurance service

revenues4,224A 4,166A 4,131A Interest income64A 72A 22A Total revenues5,053A 4,994A 4,907A Insurance costs3,797A 3,513A 3,463A Cost of providing .

services304A 307A 303A Sales and marketing289A 285A 242A General and administrative232A 211A 241A Systems development and programming68A 65A 73A Depreciation and
amortization of intangible assets75A 72A 64A Interest expense, bank fees and other62A 40A 39A Income before tax226A 501A 482A Income taxes53A 126A 127A Net

income$173A $375A $355A Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of income taxes(1)3A (4)Comprehensive income$172A $378A $351A Net income per R
share:Basic$3.47A $6.61A $5.66A Diluted$3.43A $6.56A $5.61A Weighted average shares:Basic50A 57A 63A Diluted50A 57A 64A See accompanying notes. TRINET61A 2024 FORM
10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsTRINET GROUP, INC.CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETSDecember 31,December 31,(in millions, except share and per share
data)20242023ASSETSCurrent assets:Cash and cash equivalents$360A $287A Investmentsa€”A 65A Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments1,413A 1,269A Accounts
receivable, net32A 18A Payroll funds receivable349A 447A Prepaid expenses, net64A 67A Other payroll assets916A 381A Other current assets46A 44A Total current

assets3,180A 2,578A Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments, noncurrent145A 158A Investments, noncurrenta€”A 143A Property and equipment, net10A 17A Operating
lease right-of-use asset24A 24A Goodwill 461A 462A Software and other intangible assets, net156A 172A Other assets143A 139A Total assets$4,119A $3,693A Liabilities and
stockholders' equityCurrent liabilities:Accounts payable and other current liabilities$89A $87A Revolving credit agreement borrowings75A 109A Client deposits and other client
liabilities76A 65A Accrued wages580A 515A Accrued health insurance costs, net189A 175A Accrued workers' compensation costs, net44A 50A Payroll tax liabilities and other payroll
withholdings1,906A 1,438A Operating lease liabilities13A 14A Insurance premiums and other payables9A 10A Total current liabilities2,981A 2,463A Long-term debt,

noncurrent908A 984A Accrued workers' compensation costs, noncurrent, net110A 120A Deferred taxes11A 13A Operating lease liabilities, noncurrent26A 30A Other non current
liabilities14A 5A Total liabilities4,050A 3,615A Commitments and contingencies (see Note 9)Stockholders' equity:Preferred stocka€”A a€”A ($0.000025 par value per share; 20,000,000
shares authorized; no shares issued or outstanding at DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023)Common stock and additional paid-in capitall,056A 976A ($0.000025 par value per share;
750,000,000 shares authorized; 49,527,506 and 50,664,471 shares issued and outstanding at DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively)Retained earnings (Accumulated deficit)
(984)(896)Accumulated other comprehensive loss(3)(2)Total stockholders' equity69A 78A Total liabilities & stockholders' equity$4,119A $3,693A See accompanying

notes. TRINET62A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsTRINET GROUP, INC.CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS&€™ EQUITY Year Ended
December 31,(in millions)202420232022Total Stockholders' Equity, beginning balance$78A $775A $881A Common Stock and Additional Paid-In Capital:Beginning

balance976A 899A 808A Issuance of common stock from exercise of stock optionsa€”A 4A 1A Issuance of common stock for employee stock purchase plan12A 11A 10A Issuance of
common stock for the acquisition of Zenefitsa€”A 4€”A 17A Repurchase of common stocka€”A a4€”A 1A Stock based compensation expense68A 62A 62A Ending . R
balancel,056A 976A 899A Retained Earnings (Accumulated Deficit):Beginning balance(896)(119)74A Net incomel73A 375A 355A Common stock dividends(50)a€”A 4€”A Repurchase
of common stock(183)(1,122)(524)Awards effectively repurchased for required employee withholding taxes(28)(30)(24)Ending balance(984)(896)(119)Accumulated Other
Comprehensive (Loss) Income:Beginning balance(2)(5)(1)Other comprehensive (loss) income(1)3A (4)Ending balance(3)(2)(5)Total Stockholders' Equity, ending

balance$69A $78A $775A See accompanying notes. TRINET63A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsTRINET GROUP, INC.CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
OF CASH FLOWSA Year Ended December 31,(in millions)2024202320220perating activitiesNet income$173A $375A $355A Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:Depreciation and amortization of intangible assets75A 72A 64A Amortization of deferred costs44A 40A 38A Amortization of ROU asset, lease modification,
impairment, and abandonment1 1A 9A 25A Stock based compensation65A 59A 62A Accretion of discount rate on lease liabilities2A 2A 2A Provision for doubtful

accounts2A 3A 2A Deferred income taxes(2)5A (22)Losses from disposition of assetsa€”A 1A 6A Losses and impairment on 1nvestments(1)1A 18A Impairment of R
intangibles254€”A a€”A Changes in operating assets and liabilities:Accounts receivable, net§2)(3)4A Prepaid expenses, net(18)4A 19A Other payroll assets3A (3)a€”A Accounts payable
and other current liabilities(7)(10)(13)Client deposits and other client liabilities(10)23A 4€”A Accrued wages(5)7A 14A Accrued health insurance costs, net(2)7A &€”A Accrued workers'
compensation costs, net(11)(8)(7)Payroll taxes payable and other payroll withholdings(3)8A 2A Operating lease liabilities(15)(17)(17)Other assets(52)(35)(54)Other liabilities7A (1)
(1)Net cash provided by operating activities279A 539A 497A Investing activitiesPurchases of marketable securities(190)(276)(410)Proceeds from sale and maturity of marketable
securities421A 286A 469A Acquisitions of property and equipment and projects in process(78)(75)(56)Acquisitions of subsidiaries, net of cash acquireda€”A a€”A (229)Other
Investnqentsé€"A (5)a€”A Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities153A (70)(226)Financing activitiesChange in WSE and TriNet Trust related assets and liabilities,

net139A 6A 65A Repurchase of common stock(183)(1,122)(523)Proceeds from issuance of common stock 12A 15A 11A Payment of long-term financing costs and debt issuance
costsa€”A (9)a€”A Proceeds from issuance of 2031 Notesa€”A 400A &€”A Proceeds from revolving credit agreement borrowings 4€”A 695A 4€”A Repayment of borrowings under
revolving credit agreement(110)(495)a€”A Awards effectively repurchased for required employee withholding taxes(28)(30)(24)Dividends paid(37)a€”A a€”A Net cash used in
financing activities(207)(540)(471)Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalentsa€”A 4€”A (1)Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted and
restricted225A (71)(201)Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted and restricted:Beginning of period1,466A 1,537A 1,738A End of period$1,691A $1,466A $1,537A Supplemental
disclosures of cash flow informationInterest paid$59[§ $25A $18A Income taxes paid, net76A 114A 128A Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activitiesCash
dividend declared, but not yet paid$12A $a€”A $4€”A Payable for purchase of property and equipment$2A $4A $6A Acquisitions of subsidiaries paid in

stock$a€”A $a€”A $17A TRINET64A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsSee accompanying notes. TRINET65A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL
STATEMENTSTable of ContentsTRINET GROUP, INC.NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTE 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIESDescription of BusinessTriNet Group, Inc. (TriNet, or the Company, we, our and us) provides comprehensive HCM solutions for small and medium-size
businesses under both a PEO model and an HRIS services model. These HCM solutions include multi-state payroll processing and tax administration, employee benefits programs,
including health insurance and retirement plans, workers' compensation insurance and claims management, employment and benefit law compliance, and other HR-related services.
Through our PEO service model, we are the employer of record for certain employment-related administrative and regulatory purposes for WSEs, including:&€¢compensation through
wages and salaries,a€¢certain employer payroll-related tax payments, 4€¢employee payroll-related tax withholdings and payments,a€¢employee benefit programs, including health
and life insurance, and &€¢workers' compensation coverage. Our PEO clients are responsible for the day-to-day job responsibilities of the WSEs.Through our HRIS services model, we
provide cloud-based HCM services to SMBs that allows them to manage hiring, onboarding, employee information, payroll processing, payroll tax administration, health insurance, and
other benefits, from a single cloud-based software platform. We are not the co-employer or employer of record for such employees.We operate in one reportable segment. All of our
service revenues are generated from external clients. Less than 1% of our revenue is generated outside of the U.S. Basis of PresentationOur consolidated financial statements are
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (GAAP). All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation. When entering into contractual arrangements with other entities, we assess whether we have a variable interest. If we determine that we have a variable interest, we
then determine whether the arrangement is with a variable interest entity ("VIE"). If the arrangement is with a VIE, we assess whether we are the primary beneficiary of the VIE by
identifying the most significant activities and determining who has the power over those activities and who has the obligation to absorb the majority of the losses or benefits of the VIE.
We consolidate a VIE when we have the power to direct activities that most significantly affect the economic performance of the VIE and have the obligation to absorb the majority of
their losses or benefits, making us the primary beneficiary. Periodically, we assess whether any changes in our interest or relationship with the entity affect our determination of
whether the entity is a VIE and, if so, whether we are the primary beneficiary.In December 2023, we created a trust ("TriNet Trust") for the purpose of holding HRIS clients' payroll
funds for the remittance to HRIS Users, tax authorities and other recipients. TriNet Trust's assets are restricted and can only be used for payments on behalf of HRIS clients,
repayments of any advances from TriNet, or payments to TriNet of interest income earned on the balances of TriNet Trust. In the event of any losses, creditors to the Trust have
recourse to TriNet Trust's property and not that of TriNet overall. The risks associated with the Trust are similar to those that currently exist for the Company such as banking losses
in excess of FDIC insurance levels, interest rate and market conditions. We determined that TriNet Trust meets the definition of a variable interest entity and as the primary
beneficiary we have both the power to direct TriNet Trusta€™s activities that most significantly affect its performance and we have the right to receive benefits from TriNet Trust, in
the form of interest income. As a result, TriNet Trust is consolidated into our financial statements. During the first quarter of 2024, TriNet Trust assumed ownership and responsibility
of certain bank accounts that hold HRIS client funds and assumed related liabilities. TRINET66A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsThe following table
presents the assets and liabilities of TriNet Trust which are included in our consolidated balance sheet. These amounts on any particular date can vary due to timing of cash receipts
and remittances.December 31, 2024(in millions)TriNet TrustASSETSCurrent assets:Cash and cash equivalents$1A Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments87A Total current
assets88A Total assets$88A LIABILITIESCurrent liabilities:Accounts payable and other current liabilities$ 1A Accrued wages18A Payroll tax liabilities and other payroll
withholdings69A Total current liabilities88A Total liabilities$88A ReclassificationsIncome StatementCertain prior year amounts on the Consolidated Statement of Income have been
reclassified to conform to current period presentation. Specifically, interest income previously included in the former Other income (expense) category is now classified as a



component of Total revenue. Similarly, Interest expense, bank fees and other has been reclassified as part of total expenses. These reclassifications eliminate the profitability measure
of Operating Income on our Consolidated Statement of Income, which is not a key measure of profitability used by management.Statement of Cash FlowsCertain prior year amounts on
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows have also been reclassified to conform to current period presentation, with no impact on the Consolidated Statements of Income and
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Balance Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity. In particular, changes in WSE related assets and liabilities
were previously reported within operating activities and are now reclassified into financing activities to better reflect operating activities excluding the impact of client cash

flows.A Year Ended December 31,20232022(in millions)As previously reportedReclassiﬁe_dalpogntsAs revisedAs previously repo;‘tedR}aclassiﬁgdamguntsAs revisedOperating
activitiesChanges in operating assets and liabilities:Accounts receivable, net(2)(1)(3)a€”A 4A 4A Payroll funds receivable(72)72A &€”A (51)51A &€”A Prepaid expenses,

net4A a€”A 4A (2)21A 19A Other payroll assets(259)256A (3)(72)72A a€”A Accounts payable and other current liabilities(8)(2)(10)(13)a€ A (13)Client deposits and other client
11ab111t1es(40)63A 23A 9A (9)a€”A Accrued wages77A (70)7A 65A (51)14A Accrued health insurance costs, net1A 6A 7A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A Accrued workers' compensation costs,
net(12)4A (8)(8)1A (7)Payroll taxes payable and other payroll withholdings351A (343)8A 158A (156)2A Other assets(38)3A (35)(55)1A (54)Other 11ab111tles(7)6A (1)(2)1A (1)Net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities(5)(6)(1 1)29A (65)(36)Financing activitiesChange in WSE and TriNet Trust related assets and liabilities, neta€”A 6A 6A a€”A 65A 65A Net
cash provided by financing activitiesa€”A 6A 6A 4€”A 65A 65A Use of EstimatesTRINET67A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsThe preparation of financial
statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and related disclosures. These estimates are based on
historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable from the facts available to us. Some of the assumptions are highly uncertain at the time of
estimation. To the extent actual experience differs from the assumptions used, our consolidated financial statements could be materially affected. Revenue Recognition Revenues are
recognized when the promised services are transferred to our clients, in an amount that reflects the consideration that we expect to receive in exchange for services. We generate all
of our revenue from contracts with clients. We disaggregate revenues into professional services revenues and insurance services revenues as reported on the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income. In the majority of our contracts, both the client and the Company may terminate the contract without penalty by providing a 30-day
notice.Performance ObligationsAt contract inception, we assess the services promised in our contracts with clients and identify a performance obligation for each distinct promise to
transfer to the client a service or bundle of services. We determined that the following distinct services represent separate performance obligations:a€¢Payroll and payroll tax
processing,a€¢Health benefits services,a€¢Workersa€™ compensation services, anda€¢A right to receive future services at a discount through a Recovery Credit.Payroll and payroll
tax processing performance obligations include services to process payroll and payroll tax-related transactions on behalf of our PEO and ASO clients. Revenues associated with this
performance obligation are reported as professional service revenues and recognized using an output method in which the promised services are transferred when a client's payroll is
processed by us and WSEs and users are paid. Professional service revenues are stated net of the gross payroll and payroll tax amounts funded by our clients. Although we assume the
responsibilities to process and remit the payroll and payroll related obligations, we do not assume employment-related responsibilities such as determining the amount of the payroll
and related payroll obligations. As a result, we are the agent in this arrangement for revenue recognition purposes.Health benefits and workers' compensation services include
performance obligations to provide TriNet-sponsored health benefits and workers' compensation insurance coverage through insurance policies provided by third-party insurance
carriers and settle deductible amounts on those policies. Revenues associated with these performance obligations are reported as insurance services revenues and are recognized
using the output method over the period of time that the client and WSEs are covered under TriNet-sponsored insurance policies. We control the selection of health benefits and
workers' compensation coverage made available. As a result, we are the principal in this arrangement for revenue recognition purposes and insurance services revenues are reported
gross.In previous years, we created our Recovery Credits to assist in the economic recovery of our existing PEO clients and enhance our ability to retain these clients. These credits
were based on the performance of our insurance costs and were recorded as a reduction to insurance services revenues and included in client deposits and other client liabilities on
the balance sheet. The change in balance for the liability for credits previously accrued is the following:(in millions)20242023Balance at beginning of period$7A $75A (+)
Accrualsa€”A a€”A (-) Distributions to clients(7)(68)Balance at end of period$a€”A $7A We generally charge new clients a nominal upfront non-refundable fee to recover our costs to
set them up on our TriNet platform for payroll processing and other administrative services, such as benefit enrollments. These fees are accounted for as part of our transaction price
and are allocated among the performance obligations based on their relative standalone selling prices. Client Deposits and Other Client LiabilitiesTRINET68A 2024 FORM 10-K
FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsClient deposits and other client liabilities represents our contractual commitments and payables to clients, including indemnity guarantee
payments received from clients, amounts prefunded by clients for their payroll and related taxes and other withholding liabilities before payroll is processed or due for payment, as
well as service fee consideration received for unsatisfied performance obligations.Variable Consideration and Pricing AllocationFrom time to time, we may offer credits to our clients
considered to be variable consideration. Incentive credits related to contract renewals are recorded as a reduction to revenue as part of the transaction price at contract inception and
are allocated among the performance obligations based on their relative standalone selling prices. We allocate the total transaction price to each performance obligation based on the
estimated relative standalone selling prices of the promised services underlying each performance obligation. The transaction price for the payroll and payroll tax processing
performance obligations is determined upon establishment of the contract that contains the final terms of the arrangement, including the description and price of each service
purchased. The estimated service fee is determined based on observable inputs and includes the following key assumptions: target profit margin, pricing strategies including the mix of
services purchased and competitive factors, and client and industry specifics.The fees for access to health benefits and workers' compensation insurance performance obligations are
determined during client on-boarding and annually through the enrollment processes based on the types of benefits coverage the WSEs have elected and the applicable risk profile of
the client. We estimate our service fees based on actuarial forecasts of our expected insurance premiums and loss sensitive premium costs and amounts to cover our costs to
administer these programs.We require our clients to prefund payroll and related taxes and other withholding liabilities before payroll is processed or due for payment. Under the
provision of our contracts with clients, we generally will process the payment of a clienta€™s payroll only when the client successfully funds the amount required. As a result, there is
no financing arrangement for the contracts. However, certain contracts to provide payroll and payroll tax processing services permit the client to pay certain payroll tax components
ratably over periods of up to 12 months rather than as payroll tax is otherwise determined and due, which may be considered a significant financing arrangement under FASB ASC
Topic 606 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. However, as the period between our performing the service under the contract and when the client pays for the service is less than
one year, we have elected, as a practical expedient, not to adjust the transaction price.Interest IncomeWe recognize interest income as revenue because the collection and processing
of funds held for the benefit of our clients are critical components of providing these services. Interest income is recognized when earned.Payroll Funds ReceivableFor our PEO clients,
we recognize WSE payroll and payroll tax liabilities in the period in which the WSEs perform work. When clients' pay periods cross reporting periods, we accrue the portion of the
unpaid WSE payroll where we assume, under state regulations, the obligation for the payment of wages and the corresponding payroll tax liabilities associated with the work
performed prior to period-end. These estimated payroll and payroll tax liabilities are recorded in accrued wages. The associated receivables to pay those wages, including estimated
revenues, offset by advance collections from clients and an allowance for credit losses, are recorded as payroll funds TRINET69A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of
Contentsreceivable. As of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, advance collections included in payroll funds receivable were $171 million and $8 million, respectively.Contract CostsWe
recognize as deferred commission expense the incremental cost to obtain a contract with a client for certain components under our commission plans for sales representatives and
channel partners that are directly related to new clients onboarded as we expect to recover these costs through future service fees. Such assets are amortized over the estimated
average client tenure. These commissions are earned on the basis of the revenue generated from payroll and payroll tax processing performance obligations. When the commission on
a renewal contract is not commensurate with the commission on the initial contract, any incremental commission will be capitalized and amortized over the estimated average client
tenure. If the commission for both the initial contract and renewal contracts are commensurate, such commissions are expensed in the contract period. The below table summarizes
the amounts capitalized and amortized during the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022:Year Ended December 31, (in millions)202420232022Deferred commission
expense:Capitalized$38A $33A $32A Amortized38A 35A 31A Certain commission plans pay a commission on estimated professional service revenues over the first 12 months of the
contract with clients. The portion of commission paid in excess of the actual commission earned in that period is recorded as prepaid commission. When the prepaid commission is
considered earned, it is classified as a deferred commission expense and subject to amortization. We did not have material contract liabilities as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023.
Insurance Costs Our insurance plans are provided by third-party insurance carriers under risk-based or guaranteed-cost insurance policies. Under risk-based policies, we agree to
reimburse our carriers for any claims paid within an agreed-upon per-person deductible layer up to a maximum aggregate exposure limit per policy. These deductible dollar limits and
maximum limits vary by carrier and year. Under guaranteed-cost policies, our carriers establish the premiums and we are not responsible for any deductible.Insurance costs include
insurance premiums for coverage provided by insurance carriers, expenses for claims costs and other risk management and administrative services, reimbursement of claims payments
made by insurance carriers or third-party administrators below a predefined deductible limit, and changes in accrued costs related to contractual obligations with our workers'
compensation and health benefit carriers.At policy inception, annual workers' compensation premiums are estimated by the insurance carriers based on projected wages over the
duration of the policy period and the risk categories of the WSEs. We initially pay premiums based on these estimates. As actual wages are realized, premium expense recorded may
differ from estimated premium expense, creating an asset or liability throughout the policy year. Such asset or liability is reported on our consolidated balance sheets as prepaid
expenses or insurance premiums and other payables, respectively. TRINET70A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsAccrued Workers' Compensation CostsWe
have secured workers' compensation insurance policies with insurance carriers to administer and pay claims for our clients and WSEs. We are responsible for reimbursing the
insurance carriers for losses up to $1 million per claim occurrence (deductible layer). Insurance carriers are responsible for administering and paying claims. We are responsible for
reimbursing each carrier up to a deductible limit per occurrence. Accrued workers' compensation costs represent our liability to reimburse insurance carriers for our share of their
losses and loss adjustment expenses. These accrued costs are established to provide for the estimated ultimate costs of paying claims within the deductible layer in accordance with
workers' compensation insurance policies. These accrued costs include estimates for reported and incurred but not reported (IBNR) losses, accrued costs on reported claims, and
expenses associated with settling the claims. In establishing these accrued costs, we use an external actuary to provide an estimate of undiscounted future cash payments that would
be made to settle the claims based upon:&€¢historical volume and severity of workers' compensation cost experience, exposure data and industry loss experience related to
TriNeta€™s insurance policies, 4€¢inputs of WSEs&€™ job responsibilities and location,a€ ¢estimates of future cost trends, &€¢expected loss ratios for the latest accident year or prior
accident years, adjusted for the loss trend, the effect of rate changes and other quantifiable factors, and &€¢LDFs to project the reported losses for each accident year to an ultimate
basis.We assess the accrued workers' compensation costs on a quarterly basis. For each reporting period, changes in the actuarial methods and assumptions resulting from changes in
actual claims experience and other trends are incorporated into the accrued workers' compensation costs. Adjustments to previously established accrued costs estimates are reflected
in the results of operations for the period in which the adjustment is identified. Such adjustments could be significant, reflecting any variety of new adverse or favorable trends.
Accordingly, final claim settlements may vary materially from the present estimates, particularly when those payments may not occur until well into the future. In our experience, plan
years related to workers' compensation programs may take ten years or more to be settled.We do not discount accrued workers' compensation costs. Costs expected to be paid within
one year are recorded as accrued workers' compensation costs. Costs expected to be paid beyond one year are included in accrued workers' compensation costs, less current
portion.We have collateral agreements with various insurance carriers where either we retain custody of funds in trust accounts which we record as restricted cash and cash
equivalents, or remit funds to carriers. Collateral whether held by us, or the carriers, is used to settle our insurance and claim deductible obligations to them. Collateral requirements
are established at the policy year and are re-assessed by each carrier annually. Based on the results of each assessment, additional collateral may be required for or paid to the carrier
or collateral funds may be released or returned to the Company. In instances where we pay collateral to carriers and the agreement permits net settlement of obligations against
collateral held, we record our accrued costs net of that collateral (Carrier Collateral Offset). We offset Carrier Collateral Offset against our obligation due within the next 12 months
before applying against long-term obligations. Collateral balances in excess of accrued costs are recorded in other assets.Accrued Health Insurance CostsWe sponsor and administer a
number of employee benefit plans for our PEO WSEs, including group health, dental, and vision as an employer plan sponsor under section 3(5) of the ERISA. In 2024, the majority of
our group health insurance costs were related to risk-based plans. Our remaining group health insurance costs were for guaranteed-cost policies. Accrued health insurance costs are
established to provide for the estimated unpaid costs of reimbursing the carriers for paying claims within the deductible layer in accordance with risk-based health insurance policies.
These accrued costs include estimates for claims incurred but not paid. We assess accrued health insurance costs regularly based upon actuarial studies that include other relevant
factors such as current and historical claims payment patterns, plan enrollment and medical trend rates. TRINET71A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsIn
certain carrier contracts we are required to prepay our obligations for the expected claims activity for subsequent periods. These prepaid balances by agreement permit net settlement
of obligations and offset the accrued health insurance costs. As of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, prepayments and miscellaneous receivables offsetting accrued health insurance
costs were $60 million and $58 million, respectively. When the prepaid amount is in excess of our recorded liability the net asset position is included in prepaid expenses. As of
DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, accrued health insurance costs offsetting prepaid expenses were $90 million and $68 million, respectively.LeasesWe determine if a new contractual
arrangement is a lease at contract inception. If a contract contains a lease, we evaluate whether it should be classified as an operating or a finance lease. If applicable as a lease, we
record our lease liabilities and right-of-use (ROU) assets based on the future minimum lease payments over the lease term and only include options to renew a lease in the future
minimum lease payments if it is reasonably certain that we will exercise that option. For certain leases with original terms of twelve months or less we recognize the lease expense as
incurred and we do not recognize lease liabilities and ROU assets.We measure our lease liabilities based on the future minimum lease payments discounted over the lease term. We
determine our discount rate at lease inception using our incremental borrowing rate, which is based on our outstanding debts that are collateralized by certain corporate assets. As of
DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, the weighted-average rate used in discounting the lease liability was 4.9% and 4.2%, respectively.We measure our ROU assets based on the associated
lease liabilities adjusted for any lease incentives such as tenant improvement allowances and classify operating ROU assets in other assets in our consolidated balance sheets. For



operating leases, we recognize expense for lease payments on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Cash and Cash EquivalentsCash and cash equivalents include bank deposits and
short-term, highly liquid investments. Investments with original maturity dates of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and
InvestmentsRestricted cash, cash equivalents and investments presented on our consolidated balance sheets include:a€¢cash and cash equivalents in trust accounts functioning as
security deposits for our insurance carriers, 4€¢payroll funds collected representing cash collected in advance from clients which we designate as restricted for the purpose of funding
WSE and ASO User payroll and payroll taxes and other payroll related liabilities, anda€¢amounts held in trust for current and future premium and claim obligations with our insurance
carriers, which amounts are held in trust according to the terms of the relevant insurance policies and by the local insurance regulations of the jurisdictions in which the policies are in
force.Investments Our marketable investments are primarily classified as available-for-sale and are carried at estimated fair value. Unrealized gains and losses are reported as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of deferred income taxes. The amortized cost of debt investments is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion
of discounts from the date of purchase to the earliest call date for premiums or the maturity date for discounts. Such amortization is included in interest income as an addition to or
deduction from the coupon interest earned on the investments. We use the specific identification method to determine realized gains and losses on the sale of available-for-sale
securities. Realized gains and losses are included in interest expense, bank fees, and other in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.We
assess our investments for credit impairment. We review several factors to determine whether an unrealized loss is credit related, such as financial condition and future prospects of
the issuer. To the extent that a security's amortized cost basis exceeds the present value of the cash flows expected to be collected from the security, an allowance for credit losses will
be recognized. If management intends to sell or will more likely than not be required to sell the security before any anticipated recovery, a write down will be recognized in earnings
measured as the entire difference between the amortized cost and the then-current fair value.We have investments within our unrestricted and our restricted accounts. Unrestricted
investments are recorded on the balance sheet as current or noncurrent based upon the remaining time to maturity, and investments subject to restrictions are classified as current or
noncurrent based on the expected payout of the related liability. TRINET72A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsComprehensive IncomeComprehensive
income consists of net income and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive (loss) income includes those gains and losses included in comprehensive income, but excluded
from net income, in accordance with GAAP. Other comprehensive (loss) income is primarily comprised of net unrealized gains or losses arising on available-for-sale investments, net of
deferred taxes.Fair Value of Financial InstrumentsFair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing an asset or a liability.Our financial assets recorded at fair value on a recurring basis are comprised of cash equivalents, available-for-sale marketable
securities and certificates of deposits. We measure certain financial assets at fair value for disclosure purposes, as well as on a nonrecurring basis when they are deemed to be other-
than-temporarily impaired. Our other current financial assets and liabilities have fair values that approximate their carrying value due to their short-term nature.Assets and liabilities
recorded at fair value are measured and classified in accordance with a three-tier fair value hierarchy based on the observability of the inputs available in the market to measure fair
value, summarized as follows:a4€¢Level 1a€”observable inputs for identical assets or liabilities, such as quoted prices in active markets,a€¢Level 24€”inputs other than the quoted
prices in active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly,a€¢Level 3&€”unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which requires that we develop
our own assumptions.The fair value hierarchy requires us to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. We classify
our cash equivalents, investments and long-term debt in the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety.Accounts Receivable Our accounts receivable represents outstanding gross billings to clients, net of an allowance for estimated credit losses. We require our clients to prefund
payroll and related liabilities before payroll is processed or due for payment. If a client fails to fund payroll or misses the funding cut-off, at our sole discretion, we may pay the payroll
and the resulting amounts due to us are recognized as accounts receivable. When client payment is received in advance of our performance under the contract, such amount is
recorded as client deposits. We establish an allowance for credit losses based on the credit quality of clients, current economic conditions, the age of the accounts receivable balances,
historical experience, and other factors that may affect clientsa€™ ability to pay, and charge-off amounts against the allowance when they are deemed uncollectible. The allowance
was immaterial at DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023.0ther Payroll Assets and Payroll Tax Liabilities and Other Payroll WithholdingsIncluded in other payroll assets are expected payroll
tax refunds for which we have filed payroll tax returns claiming the refund with the IRS. Included in these receivables are ERTC and other credits that we have filed returns for wages
paid to our WSE4€™s meeting the requirements under the ERTC. When we file a claim for a refund that will be passed on to our clients, we recognize a corresponding liability that is
recognized in payroll tax liabilities and other payroll withholdings. We also have receivables from the IRS for ERTC claims where we have distributed portions of the receivables to our
clients. As of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, total ERTC receivables are $831 million and $311 million, respectively. Of this amount $72 million and $68 million have been distributed
to our clients as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.Property and EquipmentWe record property and equipment at historical cost and compute depreciation using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the lease terms, generally five years to seven years for office equipment, furniture and fixtures, and the shorter of
the asset life or the remaining lease term for leasehold improvements. We expense the cost of maintenance and repairs as incurred and capitalize leasehold improvements.
TRINET73A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsWe periodically assess the likelihood of unsuccessful completion of projects in progress, as well as monitor
events or changes in circumstances, which might suggest that impairment has occurred, and recoverability should be evaluated. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying
amount of the asset is not recoverable and exceeds the future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. We evaluate our long-lived assets for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. An asset is considered impaired if the carrying amount exceeds the
undiscounted future net cash flows the asset is expected to generate. An impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its fair
value. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value, less selling costs.Goodwill, Software and Other Intangible Assets Our goodwill and
identifiable intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are tested for impairment on an annual basis or when an event occurs or circumstances change in a way
to indicate that there has been a potential decline in the fair value of the reporting unit. Goodwill impairment is determined by comparing the estimated fair value of the reporting unit
to its carrying amount, including goodwill. All goodwill is associated with one reporting unit within our one reportable segment.Annually, we perform a qualitative assessment to
determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit has declined below its carrying value. This assessment considers various financial, macroeconomic,
industry, and reporting unit specific qualitative factors. We perform our annual impairment testing in the fourth quarter. Based on the results of our reviews, we recognized an
impairment loss of $24 million on intangible assets in the results of operation for the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024. No impairment loss was recognized in the results of operations
for the years ended DecemberA 31, 2023 and 2022.Intangible assets and software with finite useful lives are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives ranging from one
year to ten years using either the straight-line method or an accelerated method. Intangible assets are reviewed for indicators of impairment at least annually and evaluated for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.We capitalize internal and external costs incurred to
develop internal-use computer software during the application development stage. Application development stage costs include software configuration, coding, and installation.
Capitalized costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life, typically ranging from three years to six years, commencing when the software is placed into
service. We expense costs incurred during the preliminary project stage, as well as general and administrative, overhead, maintenance and training costs, and costs that do not add
functionality to existing systems.Advertising Costs We expense the costs of producing advertisements at the time production occurs, and expense the cost of running advertisements in
the period in which the advertising space or airtime is used as sales and marketing expense. Advertising costs were $20 million, $37 million, and $29 million for the years ended
DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Stock Based Compensation Our stock-based awards to employees include time based and performance based restricted stock units
and restricted stock awards, stock options and an employee stock purchase plan. Compensation expense associated with restricted stock units and restricted stock awards is based on
the fair value of common stock on the date of grant. Compensation expense associated with stock options and employee stock purchase plan are based on the estimated grant date fair
value method using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Expense is recognized using a straight-line amortization method over the respective vesting period for awards that are
ultimately expected to vest, with adjustments to expense recognized in the period in which forfeitures occur.Income Taxes We account for our provision for income taxes using the
asset and liability method, under which we recognize income taxes payable or refundable for current year and deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future tax effect of events that
have been recognized in either our financial statements or tax returns. We measure our current and deferred tax assets and liabilities based on provision of enacted tax laws of those
jurisdictions in which we operate. The effect of changes in tax laws and regulations, or interpretations, is recognized in our consolidated financial statements in the period that
includes the enactment date. TRINET74A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsWe recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities based on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for income tax purposes, as well as the expected benefits of using net
operating loss and other carryforwards. We establish a valuation allowance when it is determined more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Provision for
income taxes may change when estimates used in determining valuation allowances change or when receipt of new information indicates the need for adjustment in valuation
allowances. Changes in valuation allowances are reflected as a component of the provision for income taxes in the period of adjustment.We recognize a reserve for uncertain tax
positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return when it is concluded that tax positions are not more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities,
including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the positions. Assumptions, judgment and the use of estimates are required in
determining if the more likely than not standard has been met when developing the provision for income taxes and in determining the expected benefit. The tax benefits of the position
recognized in the financial statements are then measured based on the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely to be realized upon settlement with a taxing authority.
Unrecognized tax benefits due to tax uncertainties that do not meet the minimum probability threshold are included as other liabilities and are charged to earnings in the period that
such determination is made. We recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as a component of income tax expense. Accrued interest and penalties are included
in other non-current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. Concentrations of Credit Risk Financial instruments subject to concentrations of credit risk include cash, cash
equivalents and investments (unrestricted and restricted), accounts receivable, and amounts due from insurance carriers. We maintain these financial assets principally in domestic
financial institutions. We perform periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing of these institutions. Our exposure to credit risk in the event of default by the financial institutions
holding these funds is limited to amounts currently held by the institution in excess of insured amounts. Under the terms of professional services agreements, clients agree to maintain
sufficient funds or other satisfactory credit at all times to cover the cost of their current payroll, all accrued paid time off, vacation or sick leave balances, and other vested wage and
benefit obligations for all their work site employees. We generally require payment from our clients on or before the applicable payroll date. For certain clients, we require an
indemnity guarantee payment (IGP) supported by a letter of credit, bond, or a certificate of deposit from certain financial institutions. The IGP typically equals the total payroll and
service fee for one average payroll period. No client accounted for more than 10% of total revenues in the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022. Bad debt expense, net of
recoveries was $3 million, $3 million and $2 million for the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.Recent Accounting PronouncementsRecently issued accounting
guidanceDisaggregation of Income Statement ExpensesIn December 2024, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2024-03,
Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses, is to enhance the transparency and decision-usefulness of financial reporting by requiring public business entities to provide more
detailed disclosures about the components of certain expense captions in their income statements. The ASU is effective for TriNet on a prospective basis for annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2027. The Company is currently evaluating the provisions of this ASU.Income TaxesIn December 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures, which enhances income tax disclosure requirements. The ASU
mandates additional details in the income tax rate reconciliation, including quantitative thresholds for reconciling items, and requires disaggregation of income taxes paid by federal,
state, and foreign jurisdictions, with further breakdowns for significant individual jurisdictions. The ASU is effective for TriNet on a prospective basis for annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2024. The Company is currently evaluating the provisions of this ASU. TRINET75A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsRecently adopted
accounting guidanceSegment Reporting In the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic
280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures. As a result of this adoption, the Company now discloses segment expenses that are significant and regularly provided to the
CODM. Additionally, the Company includes disclosures about the title and position of the CODM and how segment profit or loss information is utilized to assess performance and
allocate resources. The adoption of this ASU did not have a material impact on the Companya€™ s financial position, results of operations, or cash flows but enhanced the disclosure of
its segment reporting disclosures. Refer to Note 17 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10-K.NOTE 2. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
INVESTMENTS - UNRESTRICTED AND RESTRICTEDUnder the terms of the agreements with certain of our workers' compensation and health benefit insurance carriers, we are
required to maintain collateral in trust accounts for the benefit of specified insurance carriers and to reimburse the carriersd€™ claim payments within our deductible layer. We invest
a portion of the collateral amounts in marketable securities. We report the current and noncurrent portions of these trust accounts as restricted cash, cash equivalents and
investments on the consolidated balance sheets.We require our clients to prefund their payroll and related taxes and other withholding liabilities before payroll is processed or due for
payment. This prefund, for PEO customers, as well as amounts held by our statutory trust for our HRIS Users, is included in restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments as
payroll funds collected, which is designated to pay pending payrolls, payroll tax liabilities and other payroll withholdings.We also invest available corporate funds, primarily in fixed
income securities which meet the requirements of our corporate investment policy and are classified as AFS.Our total cash, cash equivalents and investments are summarized
below:December 31, 2024December 31, 2023(in millions)Cash and cash equivalentsAvailable-for-sale marketable securitiesTotalCash and cash equivalentsAvailable-for-sale
marketable securitiesTotalCash and cash equivalents$360A $a€”A $360A $287A $a€”A $287A Investmentsa€”A a€”A 4€”A 4€”A 65A 65A Restricted cash, cash equivalents and
investmentsPayroll funds collected1,131A 4€”A 1,131A 1,067A 4€”A 1,067A Collateral for health benefits claims34A 110A 144A 31A 113A 144A Collateral for workers' compensation
claims49A 4€”A 49A 54A 2A 56A Trust for our HRIS Users87A a€”A 87A a€”A a€”A a€”A Other security deposits2A 4€”A 2A 2A 4€”A 2A Total restricted cash, cash equivalents and



investments1,303A 110A 1,413A 1,154A 115A 1,269A Investments, noncurrenta€”A 4€”A a€”A 4€”A 143A 143A Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments,
noncurrentCollateral for workers' compensation claims28A 117A 145A 25A 133A 158A Other security

depositsa€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A Total$1,691A $227A $1,918A $1,466A $456A $1,922A TRINET76A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsNOTE 3.
INVESTMENTSThe following tables summarize our financial instruments by significant categories and fair value measurement on a recurring basis as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and
DecemberA 31, 2023 and the amortized cost, gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses, and fair value of our AFS investments: (in millions)Fair Value LevelAmortized CostGross
Unrealized GainsGross Unrealized LossesFair ValueCash and Cash EquivalentsInvestmentsRestricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and InvestmentsDecember 31, 2024Cash
equivalents:Money market mutual fundsLevel 1$570A $a€”A $4€”A $570A $257A $4€”A $313A U.S. treasuriesLevel 21A a€”A a€”A 1A 4€”A 4€”A 1A Total cash

equivalents571A &€”A 4€”A 571257A &€”A 314A AFS Investments:Asset-backed securitiesLevel 24€”A 4€”A 4€”A a€”A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A Corporate bondsLevel

235A 4€”A 4€”A 35A 4€”A 4€”A 35A Agency securitiesLevel 218A 4€”A (1)17A 4€”A 4€”A 17A U.S. treasuriesLevel 2176A a€”A (2)174A 4€”A a€”A 174A Certificate of depositLevel
21A a€”A a€"A 1A a€”A a€”A 1A Other debt securitiesLevel 2a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€"A a€”A a€”A Total AFS Investments$230A $a€”A $(3)$227A $a€”A $a€”A $227A (in millions)Fair
Value LevelAmortized CostGross Unrealized GainsGross Unrealized LossesFair ValueCash and Cash EquivalentsInvestmentsRestricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and
InvestmentsDecember 31, 2023Cash equivalents:Money market mutual fundsLevel 1$183A $4€”A $4€”A $183A $96A $a€”A $87A U.S. treasuriesLevel _ R R R

27A &€”A 4€”A 75A &4€”A 2A Total cash equivalents190A 4€”A a€”A 190101A a€”A 89A AFS Investments:Asset-backed securitiesLevel 241A 4€”A (1)40A 4€”A 40A a€”A Corporate
bondsLevel 2135A 1A a€”A 136A 4€”A 103A 33A Agency securitiesLevel 240A a€”A (1)39A 4€”A 10A 29A U.S. treasuriesLevel 2231A 1A (1)231A 4€”A 47A 184A Certificate of
depositLevel 22A a€”A a€”A 2A a€”A a€”A 2A Other debt securitiesLevel 28A a€”A a€”A 8A a€”A 8A a€”A Total AFS Investments$457A $2A $(3)$456A $a€”A $208A $248A Fair Value
of Financial InstrumentsWe use an independent pricing source to determine the fair value of our securities. The independent pricing source utilizes various pricing models for each
asset class, including the market approach. The inputs and assumptions for the pricing models are market observable inputs including trades of comparable securities, dealer quotes,
credit spreads, yield curves and other market-related data.We have not adjusted the prices obtained from the independent pricing service and we believe the prices received from the
independent pricing service are representative of the prices that would be received to sell the assets at the measurement date (exit price). TRINET77A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL
STATEMENTSTable of ContentsThe carrying value of the Company's cash equivalents and restricted cash equivalents approximate their fair values due to their short-term
maturities.We did not have any Level 3 financial instruments recognized in our balance sheets as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023. There were no transfers between
levels as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023. Sales and MaturitiesThe fair value of debt investments by contractual maturity are shown below: (in millions)December 31,
20240ne year or less$21A Over one year through five year3199A Over five years through ten years5A Over ten years2A Total fair value$227A The gross proceeds from sales and
maturities of AFS securities for the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 are presented below.Year Ended December 31,(in millions)202420232022Gross realized
gains$2A $a€”A $4€”A Gross realized losses(1)(1)(18)Gross proceeds from sales287A 150A 227A Gross proceeds from maturities135A 137A 253A Total$423A $286A $462A Unrealized
Losses on AFS InvestmentsUnrealized losses on fixed income securities are principally caused by changes in market interest rates and the financial condition of the issuer. In analyzing
an issuer's financial condition, we consider whether the securities are issued by the federal government or its agencies, whether downgrades by credit rating agencies have occurred,
and industry analysts' reports. Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to prepay obligations with or without prepayment
penalties. Gross unrealized losses were immaterial at DecemberA 31, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023.Fair Value of Long-Term DebtThe fair value of our 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes
was obtained from a third-party pricing service and is based on observable market inputs. As such, the fair value of the Senior Notes is considered Level 2 in the hierarchy for fair
value measurement. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, our 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes were carried at their cost, net of issuance costs, and had a fair value of $453 million and $408 million,
respectively. As of DecemberA 31, 2023, our 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes were carried at their cost, net of issuance costs, and had a fair value of $443 million and $414 million,
respectively.Our 2021 Revolver is a floating rate debt. At DecemberA 31, 2024, the fair value of our 2021 Revolver approximated its carrying value (exclusive of issuance costs). The
fair value of our floating rate debt is estimated based on a discounted cash flow, which incorporates credit spreads, market interest rates and contractual maturities to estimate the
fair value and is considered Level 3 in the hierarchy for fair value measurement.TRINET78A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsNOTE 4. PROPERTY AND
EQUIPMENT, NETProperty and equipment, net, consists of the following:(in millions)December 31, 2024December 31, 20230ffice equipment, including data processing
equipment$22A $37A Leasehold 1mprovement518A 19A Furniture, fixtures, and gqylpmenthA 14A Projects in progressa€”A 2A Total50A 72A Less: Accumulated depreciation(37)
(55)Less: Impairments (1)$(3)a€”A Property and equipment, net$10A $17A (1)A A A A Amount includes impairment of leasehold improvements in leased office space that we have
exited. Refer to Note 7 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10-K.Depreciation of property and equipment was $7 million, $9 million, and $10
million for years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. NOTE 5. GOODWILL, SOFTWARE AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NETChanges in goodwill for the
years ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:(in millions)AmountBalance at December 31, 2022$462A Additions&€”A Balance at December 31,

2023$462A Impairment(1)Balance at December 31, 2024$461A As part of our 2024 restructuring discussed in Note 16, we have classified approximately $7 million of assets and an
immaterial amount of liabilities as held for sale and compared the carrying value of those assets to their estimated fair value, which is based on their estimated selling price. This
resulted in a $1 million goodwill impairment for 2024.The following summarizes software and other intangible assets: December 31, 2024December 31, 2023(in millions)Weighted
Average Amortization PeriodGross Carrying Amountéccumulatqd AmortizationImpairment LossNetCarrying AmountGross Carrying AmountAccumulated AmortizationNet Carrying
AmountAmortizable intangibles:Software4 years423A (303)a€”A 120A 350A (255)95A Customer relationships3 years45A (20)(24)1A 49A (18)31A Developed technology6

yearsGSA (30)a€”A 35A 65A (19)46A Tota1$533A $(353)$(24)$156A $464A $(292)$172A Amortization of intangible assets during the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022
was $68A million, $63A million and $54A million, respectively. We evaluate the remaining useful lifeA of intangible assets annually to determine whether events and circumstances
warrant a revision to theA estimated remaining useful life. In 2024, in connection with our restructuring discussed in Note 16, we recognized an impairment charge of $24 million
related to customer relationships assets, which was classified in G&A in our Consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income.A This impairment charge was determined
using a discounted cash flows model and Level 3 fair value inputs related to the expected attrition rate of the cohort of clients acquired in previous business combinations. There were
no impairment charges recognized for the years ended December 31, 2023, and 2022 . TRINET79A 2024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsThe following table
summarizes our capitalized internally developed software costs and related depreciation expense.A Year Ended December 31,(in millions)202420232022Capitalized internally
developed software costs78A 69A 48A Depreciation expense for capitalized internally developed software costs48A 42A 35A Expense related to intangibles amortization in future
periods as of DecemberA 31, 2024 is expected to be as follows:Year ending December 31:Amount(in millions)2025$54A 20264 1A 202728A 202813A 202910A 2030 and

thereafter4A Total$150A NOTE 6. ACCRUED WORKERS' COMPENSATION COSTS The following table summarizes the accrued workersa€™ compensation cost activity for the years
ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022:Year Ended December 31,(in millions)202420232022Total accrued costs, beginning of year$175A $189A $198A IncurredCurrent

year54A 66A 68A Prior years(26)(36)(32)Total incurred28A 30A 36A PaidCurrent year(9)(10)(10)Prior years(36)(34)(35)Total paid(45)(44)(45)Total accrued costs, end of

year$158A $175A $189A The following tables summarize workers' compensation liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets:(in millions)December 31, 2024December 31, 2023Total
accrued costs, end of year$158A $175A Collateral paid to carriers and offset against accrued costs(4)(5)Total accrued costs, net of carrier collateral offset$154A $170A Payable in less
than 1 year(net of collateral paid to carriers of $1 as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023)$44A 50Payable in more than 1 year (net of collateral paid to carriers of $3 and $4 as of
DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively)110A 120A Total accrued costs, net of carrier collateral offset$154A $170A TRINET802024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable
of ContentsIncurred claims related to prior years represent changes in estimates for ultimate losses on workers' compensation claims. For the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023
and 2022, the favorable development is due to lower than expected reported claim frequency and severity for the more recent years.As of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, we had
$26A million and $32A million of collateral held by insurance carriers of which $4A million and $5 million, respectively, was offset against accrued workers' compensation costs as the
agreements permit and are net settled of insurance obligations against collateral held. NOTE 7. LEASESOur leasing activities predominantly consist of leasing office space that we
occupy, which we have classified as operating leases. Our leases are comprised of fixed payments with remaining lease terms of 1 to 5 years. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, we have not
included any options to extend or cancel in the calculation of our lease liability or ROU asset. We do not have any significant residual value guarantees or restrictive covenants in our
leases.In 2024, the Company executed an operating lease agreement to lease new office space in Hyderabad, India. The lease commenced in the third quarter of 2024 and expires in
2029.We recognized operating lease expense of $15 million, $11 million and $15 million for the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. For the years ended
DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, we recognized $5A million and $6 million, respectively, of lease impairment due to the closing of several offices.As of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023,
the weighted average remaining lease term on our operating leases was 3.8 years. Future minimum lease payments as of DecemberA 31, 2024 were as follows:(in millions)December
31, 20242025$14A 202610A 20279A 20288A 20292A 2030 and thereaftera€”A Total future minimum lease payments$43A Less: imputed interest(4)Total operating lease
liabilities$39A Current portion13A Non-current portion26A TRINET812024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsNOTE 8. LONG- -TERM DEBT AND REVOLVING
CREDIT AGREEMENT BORROWINGSThe following table summarizes our long-term debt and revolving credit agreement borrowings as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023.(Dollars in
millions)Annual contractual interest rateEffective interest ratePrincipal amountDeferred issuance costsLess: current portionLong-term debt, noncurrentDecember 31, 2024December
31, 20232021 Revolver5.67A %6.42A %$90A $a€”A $(75)$15A $91A 2029 Notes3.50A %3.67A %$500A $(3)$a4€”A $497A $497A 2031

Notes7.13A %7.30A %$400A $(4)$a€”A $396A $396A In March 2023, as a precaution to ensure we maintained liquidity during the uncertainty of the banking crisis that followed the
failure of Silicon Valley Bank, we drew down the available $495A million of capacity under our 2021 Revolver. As concerns about market liquidity subsided, we repaid $200A million in
March and the remaining $295A million in April. In September of 2023, we drew down $200A million of this revolver to partially fund our third quarter of 2023 share repurchases. In
2024, we repaid $110A million of the outstanding balance.In February 2021, we issued $500A million aggregate principal of 3.50% senior unsecured notes maturing in March 2029
(our 2029 Notes). In August 2023, we issued $400A million aggregate principal of 7.125% senior unsecured notes maturing in August 2031 (our 2031 Notes). Interest payments on the
2031 Notes are due semi-annually in arrears on February 15 and August 15, beginning on February 15, 2024. We used the net proceeds to fund an equity tender offer and a private
share repurchase, each of which were executed in the third quarter of 2023 (including the related fees and expenses). We may voluntarily redeem all or a part of the 2031 Notes on or
after August 15, 2026, on any one or more occasions, at the redemption prices set forth in the indenture governing the 2031 Notes, plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest
thereon, if any, to, but excluding, the applicable redemption date. In addition, at any time prior to August 15, 2026, we may on any one or more occasions redeem up to 40% of the
aggregate principal amount of the 2031 Notes outstanding under the indenture governing the 2031 Notes with the net cash proceeds of one or more equity offerings at a redemption
price equal to 107.125% of the principal amount of the 2031 Notes then outstanding, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if any, to, but excluding the applicable redemption
date. At any time prior to August 15, 2026, we may also redeem all or a part of the 2031 Notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2031 Notes
redeemed plus a 4€emake-wholed€ premium as of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to, but excluding, the applicable redemption date.In February 2021, concurrently with the
closing of the 2029 Notes offering, we entered into a new $500A million revolving facility (our 2021 Revolver) under a new credit agreement (our 2021 Credit Agreement) and our
2018 Credit Agreement was terminated. Letters of credit issued pursuant to the revolving facility reduce the amount available for borrowing under the 2021 Revolver.In August 2023,
concurrently with the issuance of the 2031 Notes, we amended certain provisions of our credit agreement, dated February 26, 2021, as amended, to, among other things (1) increasing
the aggregate capacity under our 2021 Revolver from $500A million to $700A million and (2) extending the maturity date of our 2021 Revolver to August 16, 2028. The annual interest
rate for borrowings under our 2021 Revolver was previously calculated based on an applicable LIBOR tenor of our choosing, plus a margin of 1.25% to 2.00%, or, at our option, the
alternative base rate (ABR), plus a margin of 0.25% to 1.00%. In the second quarter of 2023, we replaced the interest rate based on LIBOR and related LIBOR-based mechanics with an
interest rate based on the forward-looking Secured Overnight Financing Rate (Term SOFR). Term SOFR loans will be charged interest at the Term SOFR rate (subject to a 0.00%
floor), plus a margin between 1.25% and 2.00%, depending on the Companya€™s total net leverage ratio, plus a credit adjustment spread of 10 basis points for all tenors (such Term
SOFR rate plus the credit adjustment spread, the "Adjusted Term SOFR Rate"). The applicable Term SOFR or ABR margin is based on our Total Leverage Ratio, as defined in the 2021
Credit Agreement. The ABR is the highest of (a) the applicable Federal Reserve Bank of New York rate in effect on such day (which rate is the greater of the Federal funds Effective
Rate in effect on such day and the Overnight Bank Funding Rate in effect on such day), as defined in our 2021 Credit Agreement plus 0.50% (b) the prime rate in effect on such day,
and (c) the Adjusted Term SOFR Rate for a one month interest period, as published by two U.S. Government Securities Business Days prior to such day daily plus 1.00%. The interest
rate TRINET822024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of Contentsfor 2024 borrowings under our 2021 Revolver was 5.669% - 6.398%. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, we had
remaining capacity of $606A million under our 2021 Revolver. In the event TriNet Group, Inc. receives a Corporate Issuer Credit Rating that is one level below investment grade rating
or higher from at least two Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations, then rating based pricing applies and, for so long as rating-based pricing applies, irrespective of the
Total Leverage Ratio, the Term SOFR margin will be 1.125% and the ABR margin will be 0.125%.The indenture governing our 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes each includes restrictive
covenants limiting our ability to: (i) create liens on certain assets to secure debt; (ii) grant a subsidiary guarantee of certain debt without also providing a guarantee of the 2029 Notes
or 2031 Notes, as applicable; and (iii) consolidate or merge with or into, or sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our assets to, another person, subject, in each case, to
certain customary exceptions.The 2021 Credit Agreement includes negative covenants that limit our ability to incur indebtedness and liens, sell assets and make restricted payments,
including dividends and investments, subject to certain exceptions. In addition, the 2021 Credit Agreement also contains other customary affirmative and negative covenants and
customary events of default. The 2021 Credit Agreement also contains a financial covenant that requires the Company to maintain certain maximum total net leverage ratios. We were
in compliance with all financial covenants under the 2021 Credit Agreement, 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes at DecemberA 31, 2024.NOTE 9. COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIESContingencies We are and, from time to time, have been and may in the future become involved in various litigation matters, legal proceedings, regulatory
investigations and claims arising in the ordinary course of our business, including disputes with our clients or various class action, collective action, representative action, and other



proceedings arising from the nature of our co-employment relationship with our clients and WSEs in which we are named as a defendant. In addition, due to the nature of our co-
employment relationship with our clients and WSEs, we could be subject to liability for federal and state law violations, even if we do not participate in such violations. While our
agreements with our clients contain indemnification provisions related to the conduct of our clients, we may not be able to avail ourselves of such provisions in every instance. We have
accrued our current best estimates of probable losses with respect to these matters, which are individually and in aggregate immaterial to our consolidated financial statements.While
the outcome of the matters described above cannot be predicted with certainty, management currently does not believe that any such claims or proceedings will have a materially
adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows. However, the unfavorable resolution of any particular matter or our reassessment of our
exposure for any of the above matters based on additional information obtained in the future could have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations,
or cash flows.NOTE 10. STOCK BASED COMPENSATIONEquity Based Incentive PlansOur 2019 Equity Incentive Plan and as amended and restated (the 2019 Plan), approved in May
2019, provides for the grant of stock awards, including stock options, RSUs, RSAs, and other stock awards. There were approximately 5 million shares available for grant under the
2019 Plan as of DecemberA 31, 2024.The 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2009 Plan), was replaced by the 2019 Plan, except that any outstanding awards granted under the 2009 Plan
remain in effect pursuant to their terms.Restricted Stock Units (RSUs)Time-based RSUs generally vest over a four-year term. Performance-based RSUs are subject to vesting
requirements and are earned, in part, based on certain financial performance metrics as defined in the grant notice. Actual number of shares earned may range from 0% to 200% of
the target award. Performance-based awards granted in 2024, 2023 and 2022 are earned based on a single-year performance period subject to subsequent multi-year time-based
vesting with 50% of the shares earned vesting in one year after the performance period and the remaining shares in the year after. RSUs are generally forfeited if the participant
terminates service prior to vesting. TRINET832024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsThe following tables summarize RSU activity for the year ended
DecemberA 31, 2024:Time-based RSUsTotal Numberof RSUsWeighted-AverageGrant DateFair ValueNonvested at December 31, R R

20231,229,202A $80.88A Granted591,514A 121.65A Vested(625,117)86.72A Forfeited(95,598)94.66A Nonvested at December 31, 20241,100,001A $97.21A Year Ended December
31,Additional Disclosures for equity-based plans 202420232022Total grant date fair value of shares granted (in millions)$72A $60A $85A Total grant date fair value of shares vested
(in millions)$54A $47A $42A Shares withheld to settle payroll tax liabilities related to vesting of shares held by employees216,523A 213,569A 204,191A Performance-based RSUs Total
Number SharesWeighted-AverageGrant DateFair ValueNonvested at December 31, R . .

2023223,011A $81.08A Granted138,882A 124.48A Vested(133,620)81.98A Forfeited(48,366)97.18A Nonvested at December 31, 2024179,907A $106.50A Year Ended December
31,Additional Disclosures for equity-based plans 202420232022Total grant date fair value of shares granted (in millions) (1)$17A $14A $20A Total grant date fair value of shares
vested (in millions)$11A $14A $17A Shares withheld to settle payroll tax liabilities related to vesting of shares held by employees64, 290A 74,923A 119,901A (1)A A A A Amount
includes fair value of finalized additional grant related to the most recently ended performance period.Employee Stock Purchase PlanOur 2014 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP)
offers eligible employees an option to purchase shares of our common stock through payroll deductions. The purchase price is equal to the lesser of 85% of the fair market value of our
common stock on the offering date or 85% of the fair market value of our common stock on the applicable purchase date.A Offering periods are approximately six months in duration
and will end on or about May 15 and November 15 of each year. The plan is considered to be a compensatory plan. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, approximately 5 million shares were
reserved for future issuances under the ESPP.In applying the Black Scholes option valuation model for the ESPP options, we use the following assumptions:TRINET842024 FORM 10-K
FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsYear Ended December 31,(in millions)202420232022Expected Term (in Years)0.50.50.5Expected Volatility28-37%29-35%21-39%Risk-Free
Interest Rate4.4-5.4%5.3-5.4%0.7-4.5%Expected Dividend Yield1A %0A %0A %Shares Issued under ESPP148,157A 175,446A 158,134A Stock Based CompensationStock based
compensation expense is measured based on the fair value of the stock award on the grant date and recognized over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of
the stock award. Stock based compensation expense and other disclosures for stock based awards made to our employees pursuant to the equity plans were as follows:A A Year Ended
December 31,(in millions)202420232022Cost of providing services$16A $14A $13A Sales and marketing12A 8A 7A General and administrative31A 33A 38A Systems development and
programming costs6A 4A 4A Total stock based compensation expense$65A $59A $62A Total stock based compensation capitalized$3A $3A $1A Income tax benefit related to stock
based compensation expense$14A $13A $13A Tax benefit realized$15A $19A $14A The table below summarizes unrecognized compensation expense for the year ended

DecemberA 31, 2024 associated with the following:Amount(in millions)Weighted-Average Period (in Years)Nonvested time based RSUs$96A 2.31Nonvested performance based
RSUs3A 1.67NOTE 11. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITYCommon StockThe following table shows the beginning and ending balances of our issued and outstanding common stock for the
years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022:Year EndedDecember 31,202420232022Shares issued and outstanding, beginning

balance50,664,471A 60,555,661A 65,968,224A Issuance of common stock from vested restricted stock units758,737A 774,579A 841,861A Issuance of common stock from exercise of
stock options8,208A 182,067A 116,592A Issuance of common stock for employee stock purchase plan148,157A 175,446A 158,134A Issuance of common stock for the acquisition of
Zenefitsa€”A &€”A 193,221A Repurchase of common stock(1,771,254)(10,734,790)(6,398,279)Awards effectively repurchased for required employee withholding taxes(280,813)
(288,492)(324,092)Shares issued and outstanding, ending balance49,527,506A 50,664,471A 60,555,661A TRINET852024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of
ContentsStock Repurchases In February 2020, our board of directors authorized a $300 million incremental increase to our ongoing stock repurchase program. In February 2022 and
November 2022, our board of directors authorized a further $300A million and $200A million, respectively, incremental increase to this stock repurchase program. In February 2023
and July 2023, our board of directors authorized a further $300A million and $1A billion, respectively, incremental increase to this stock repurchase program. This repurchase
authorization has no expiration. On March 17, 2022, we completed a tender offer through which we repurchased 3,653,690 shares of common stock at a price of $86.50 per share, for
total consideration of approximately $319A million, which includes costs directly attributable to the purchase. On December 6, 2022. we completed a second tender offer and
purchased 1,515,258 shares of common stock at a price of $72.00 per share, for total consideration of approximately $111A million, which includes costs directly attributable to the
purchase.In August 2023, we completed a tender offer through which we repurchased 5,981,308 shares of common stock at a price of $107.00 per share, for total consideration of
approximately $640A million. In September 2023, we repurchased 3,364,486 shares of common stock at a price of $107.00 per share, for total consideration of approximately

$360A million, through a purchase agreement with our largest stockholder, Atairos Group, Inc. Atairos Group, Inc. agreed to proportionally sell additional shares so as to continue to
beneficially own approximately 36% of the outstanding Shares immediately following the completion of the Closing.We retire shares in the period they are acquired and account for the
payment as a reduction to stockholders' equity (retained deficit).The following table summarizes the share repurchases under this program for the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024,
2023 and 2022:Year EndedDecember 31,202420232022Total cost (in millions)$182A $1,112A $519A Total shares1,771,254A 10,734,790A 6,398,279A Average price per
share$102.84A $103.59A $81.07A As of DecemberA 31, 2024, $251 million remains available for repurchase under all authorizations approved by the board of directors.DividendsIn
February 2024, our board of directors authorized a dividend of $0.25 per share for an aggregate amount of approximately $13A million, which was paid in April 2024. In June 2024,
our board of directors authorized a dividend of $0.25 per share for an aggregate amount of approximately $12A million, which was paid in July 2024. In September 2024, our board of
directors authorized a dividend of $0.25 per share for an aggregate amount of approximately $12A million, which was paid in October 2024. In December 2024, our board of directors
authorized a dividend of $0.25 per share for an aggregate amount of $12 million, which will be paid in the first quarter of 2025. TRINET862024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL
STATEMENTSTable of ContentsNOTE 12. INCOME TAXES Provision for Income TaxesWe are subject to tax in U.S. federal and various state and local jurisdictions, as well as Canada
and India. We are open to federal and significant state income tax examinations for tax year 2019 and subsequent years. The provision for income taxes consists of the following: Year
Ended December 31,(in millions)202420232022Current: Federa1$50A $96A $1 12A State4A 24A 36A A A A Foreigna€” "A 2A a€”A A Total

Current54A 122A 148A Deferred:Federal(2)1A (17)State1A 3A (6)Foreigna€”A a€”A 2A Total Deferred(1)4A (21)Total$53A $126A $127A The U.S. federal statutory income tax rate
reconciled to our effective tax rate is as follows: Year Ended December 31,202420232022(in millions, except percent)Pre-Tax IncomeTax Expense/(Benefit)Percent of Pre-Tax Income
(Loss)Pre-Tax IncomeTax Expense/(Benefit)Percent of Pre-Tax Income (Loss)Pre-Tax IncomeTax Expense/(Benefit)Percent of Pre-Tax Income (Loss)$226A $501A $482A U.S. federal
statutory tax rate$48A 21A %$105A 21A %$101A 21A %State income taxes, net of federal benefit14A 6A 34A 7A 34A 7A Tax rate changea€”A 4€”A 1A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A Nondeductible
meals, entertainment and penalties2A 1A 2A 4€”A 3A 1A Stock based compensation3A 2A (2)a€”A 3A 1A Uncertain tax positions1A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A a€”A Tax credits(7)(3)(6)(1)(8)
(2)State and tax return to provision adjustments(8)(4)(11)(2)(9)(2)Othera€”A 4€”A 3A 4€”A 3A a€”A Total$53A 23A %$126A 25A %$127A 26A %Our effective income tax rate
decreased by 2% to 23% in 2024 from 25% in 2023. The decrease in the rate was primarily attributable to an increase in tax benefits related to excludable income for state tax
purposes and tax credits, offset by a decrease in tax benefits for stock based compensation.Global tax developments from the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development
proposes implementation of a global minimum tax under the Pillar Two model rules. Management has determined this development applicable to multinational businesses does not
have a material impact to our business, cash flows, or financial results. TRINET872024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsDeferred Income TaxesSignificant
components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows: Year Ended December 31,(in millions)20242023Deferred tax assets:Net operating losses (federal and
state)$5A $6A Accrued expenses15A 18A Accrued workers' compensation costs9A 9A Recovery creditd€”A 2A Operating lease liabilities9A 11A Stock based compensation2A 2A Tax
benefits relating to uncertain positions1A 1A Tax credits (federal, state and foreign)8A 7A Section 174 Capitalized R&D18A 21A Other3A 2Total70A 79A Valuation allowance(8)(8)Total
deferred tax assets62A 71A Deferred tax liabilities:Depreciation and amortization(35)(48)Prepaid commission expenses(28)(26)Operating lease right-of-use assets(5)(5)Total deferred
tax liabilities(68)(79)Net deferred tax liabilities$(6)$(8)As of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, we have federal net operating loss of $1A million which can be carried forward
indefinitely. We have capital loss carryforwards of $3A million which will expire in 2027. As of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, we have various gross state net operating loss
carryforwards of $82 million and $91 million, respectively, most of which, if unused, will expire in years 2025 through 2044. As of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, we have state tax
credit carryforwards (net of federal benefit) of $5 million that will begin expiring in 2026. In addition, Canada tax credit carryforwards of $2A million will begin expiring in 2037.
Valuation AllowanceWe have recorded a valuation allowance to reflect the estimated amount of deferred tax assets that may not be realized, related to state tax credits, state net
operating loss and capital loss carryforwards. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of the valuation allowance is presented in the table below:Year Ended December 31,
(in millions)202420232022Valuation allowance at January 1$8A $8A $5A Charged to net incomea€”A a€”A 3A Valuation allowance at December 318A 8A 8A TRINET882024 FORM 10-
K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsUncertain Tax PositionsA reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits (excluding interest and
penalties) related to uncertain income tax provisions, which would affect the effective tax rate if recognized, is presented in the table below: Year Ended December 31,(in
millions)202420232022Unrecognized tax benefits at JanuaryA 1$7A $7A $7A Additions for tax positions of prior periods1A 4€”A a€”A Additions for tax positions of current

period2A 2A 2A Reductions for tax positions of prior period:Lapse of applicable statute of limitations(2)(2)(2)Unrecognized tax benefits at DecemberA 31$8A $7A $7A As of
DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, the total amount of gross interest and penalties accrued were immaterial. The unrecognized tax benefit, including accrued interest and penalties, is
included in other non-current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. It is reasonably possible the amount of the unrecognized benefit could increase or decrease within the next
twelve months, which would have an impact on net income.NOTE 13. EARNINGS PER SHAREBasic EPS is computed based on the weighted average shares of common stock
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed based on those shares used in the basic EPS computation, plus potentially dilutive shares issuable under our equity-based
compensation plans using the treasury stock method. Shares that are potentially anti-dilutive are excluded.The following table presents the computation of our basic and diluted EPS
attributable to our common stock:A Year Ended December 31,(in millions, except per share data)202420232022Net income$173A $375A $355A Weighted average shares of common
stock outstanding50A 57A 63A Basic EPS$3.47A $6.61A $5.66A Net income$173A $375A $355A Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding50A 57A 63A Dilutive effect of
stock options and restricted stock unitsa€”A 4€”A 1A Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding50A 57A 64A Diluted EPS$3.43A $6.56A $5.61A Common stock
equivalents excluded from income perdiluted share because of their anti-dilutive effect1A 1A 2A NOTE 14. 401 (k) PLAN The Company maintains a defined contribution 401 (k) plan for
the benefit of corporate employees. Under our 401(k) plan, eligible employees may elect to contribute based on their eligible compensation. The Company matches a portion of
employee contributions, which amounted to $17 million, $17 million, and $14 million for the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. We also maintain multiple
employer defined contribution plans, which cover WSEs for client companies electing to participate in the plan and for their internal staff employees. We contribute, on behalf of each
participating client, varying amounts based on the clientsd€™ policies and serviced employee elections. TRINET892024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsNOTE
15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONSWe have service agreements with certain stockholders that we process their employees' payrolls and payroll taxes. From time to time, we also
enter into sales and purchases agreements with various companies that have a relationship with our executive officers or members of our board of directors. The relationships are
typically equity investment firm clients on which a board member serves in an executive role, an equity investment by those firms in a client/vendor company, or other clients/vendors
on which our executive officer or board member serves as a member of the client/vendor company's board of directors. We have received $13 million, $12 million, and $16 million in
total revenues from such related parties during the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.We have also entered into various software license agreements with
software service providers who have board members in common with us. We paid the software service providersA $5 million, $3 million, and $2 millionA during the years ended
DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, for services we received, respectively. TRINET902024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsNOTE 16.
RESTRUCTURINGDuring the fourth quarter of 2024, we completed a detailed review of our strategy and made several decisions that will narrow and intensify our focus on our U.S.
PEO business. This will include winding down the software-only HRIS product as well as other immaterial products not directly related to our U.S. PEO business. In place of our
software-only HRIS product, we will focus our ASO services to include both the software component, but also a significant service component similar to the types of services we
provide to PEO clients. In conjunction with this adjustment to our product offerings, we have implemented changes to our operating expense structure, including our staffing and office
footprint.As part of the restructuring initiatives, the Company incurred the charges show in the following table. These expenses are classified in G&A in our Consolidated statement of
income and comprehensive income.A Year Ended December 31,(in millions)2024Cash restructuring costs:Severance costs$14A Professional fees3A Total cash restructuring

costs17A Non-cash restructuring costs:Intangible asset and goodwill impairments25A Fixed asset and ROU impairments7A Total non-cash restructuring costs32A Total restructuring



costs$49A Severance costs include payments to colleagues, estimated reimbursements for COBRA payments and outplacement services. The following table is a summary of changes
in accrued severance and exit and disposal costs included within accounts payable and other current liabilities and accrued wages:Year Ended December 31,(in millions)2024Accounts
payable and other current liabilities1A Accrued wages14A Balance at DecemberA 31, 2024$15A We expect to make payments for these liabilities during 2025. We expect the
restructuring efforts to continue through 2026 and may recognize additional expenses as they are incurred.NOTE 17. SEGMENT INFORMATIONWe operate in one reportable
segment. Our chief operating decision maker for segment reporting purposes is our CEO, who uses the profitability and significant expense detail to allocate resources and assess
performance based on key functions such as customer acquisition, customer service, and indirect costs.The primary measure of profit or loss that the CEO uses is net income. The
significant expenses used in these profit or loss reports align with the primary functions of the corresponding teams, with the exception of non-cash expenses such as depreciation,
amortization and stock based compensation as these expenses are not necessarily indicative of our ongoing operations. In this expense reporting methodology, overhead-type
expenses, such as facilities and technology support for colleagues, are classified consistent with the primary function of the corresponding teams and not allocated to other significant
expenses. TRINET912024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTable of ContentsThe table below provides the primary measure of profitability and detail regarding the significant
expenses reviewed by our CEO.A Year Ended December 31, (in millions)202420232022Professional service revenues$765A $756A $754A Insurance service

revenues4,224A 4,166A 4,131A Interest income64A 72A 22A Total revenues5,053A 4,994A 4,907A Workers' compensation costs61A 68A 81A Health insurance

costs3,736A 3,445A 3,382A Sales & marketing259A 254A 226A Client support costs184A 186A 192A Corporate administration146A 165A 191A System support &

development190A 187A 151A Depreciation and amortization of intangible assets75A 72A 64A Stock based compensation65A 59A 62A Other49A 17A 37A Interest expense, bank fees
and other62A 40A 39A Income Taxes53A 126A 127A Net Income173A 375A 355A Other includes certain costs that are considered non-recurring such as restructuring costs and
transaction and integration costs related to acquisitions in previous years. TRINET922024 FORM 10-K DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURESTable of ContentsItemA 9.
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure. None.IltemA 9A. Controls and Procedures Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and
ProceduresWe have, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of
DecemberA 31, 2024, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act).Based on the evaluation of our disclosure
controls and procedures as of December 31, 2024, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Companya€™s disclosure controls and procedures
were effective as of December 31, 2024 in ensuring that i.information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to the Companya€™s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure andii.such information is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and
forms.Managementa€™s Report on Internal Control Over Financial ReportingWe are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) promulgated under the Exchange Act to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
the financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP.Due to inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting is not intended to provide absolute
assurance that a misstatement of our financial statements would be prevented or detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate. We have performed an
assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024 based upon criteria set forth in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013)
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.Based on this assessment, we determined that our internal control over financial reporting was
effective as of December 31, 2024.Deloitte & Touche LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an audit report on the effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting as of DecemberA 31, 2024. This audit report appears in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10-K.Changes in Internal
Control Over Financial ReportingThere were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. ItemA 9B. Other Information. OnA November 26, 2024,A Paul
Chamberlain, a member of the Board of Directors,A adoptedA a new written trading plan intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5- 1(c) under the Exchange
Act (the &€ceChamberlain Plan&€). The first possible trade date under the Chamberlain Plan is February 25, 2025, and the end date of the Chamberlain Plan isA November 26,

2025A (subject to customary exceptions), for a duration of one year. The aggregate number of shares currently expected to be sold pursuant to the Chamberlain Plan

isA 2,400.TRINET932024 FORM 10-K DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURESTable of ContentsItemA 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent
Inspections.Not applicable. TRINET942024 FORM 10-K MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITY HOLDERSTable of ContentsPART IIIltemA 10. Directors, Executive Officers and
Corporate Governance. Code of Business Conduct and EthicsOur board of directors has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (the "Code") that applies to all of our
employees, executive officers and directors, including those executive officers responsible for financial reporting. Our Code is available on our website: investor.trinet.com/investor-
relations. We intend to disclose any amendments to this Code or any waivers of its requirements on our website to the extent permitted or required by applicable SEC rules or stock
exchange requirements.Other information required by this item is incorporated by reference to TriNet Group Inc.&€™s Proxy Statement for its 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024.I1temA 11. Executive Compensation. Information required by this item is incorporated by
reference to TriNet Group Inc.4€™s Proxy Statement for its 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the year ended
DecemberA 31, 2024.ItemA 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters. Information required by this item is incorporated
by reference to TriNet Group Inc.4€™s Proxy Statement for its 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the year ended
DecemberA 31, 2024.1temA 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence. Information required by this item is incorporated by reference to TriNet
Group Inc.4€™s Proxy Statement for its 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024.ItemA 14.
Principal Accountant Fees and Services.Information required by this item is incorporated by reference to TriNet Group Inc.8€™s Proxy Statement for its 2025 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024.TRINET952024 FORM 10-K FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULESTable of
ContentsPART IV ItemA 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.(a) The following documents are filed as a part of the report: (1) The financial statements filed as part of this
report are listed in the &€celndex to Financial Statementsa€ under Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. (2) Financial statement schedules have been omitted,
since the required information is not applicable or is not present in amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedule, or because the information required is included in the
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included in this Form 10-K. ItemA 16. Form 10-K Summary.None. TRINET962024 FORM 10-K EXHIBITSTable of
ContentsEXHIBIT INDEXIncorporated by ReferenceA ExhibitNo.Description of ExhibitFormA File No.A ExhibitA FilingA FiledHerewith3.1Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of TriNet Group, Inc.8-K001-363733.15/30/2023A 3.2Amended and Restated Bylaws of TriNet Group, Inc.8-K001-363733. 1A 6/24/2024A 4.1Registration Rights
Agreement, by and between TriNet Group, Inc. and AGI-T, L.P., dated as of February 1, 2017.8-K001-363734.1A 2/2/20174.2Description of the Registranta€™s Securities Registered
Pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.10-K001-363734.2A 2/13/20204.3Indenture, dated February 26, 2021, among the Company, the guarantors listed
therein and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee.8-K001-363734.1A 2/26/20214.4Indenture, dated August 16, 2023, among the Company, the guarantors listed therein and U.S.
Bank Trust company, National Association, as trustee.8-K001-363734.18/16/20234.5Form of 3.500% Senior Notes due 2029 (included in exhibit 4.3).8-K001-
363734.22/26/20214.6Form of 7.125% Senior Notes due 2031 (included in exhibit 4.1)8-K001-363734.28/16/20234.7Credit Agreement dated as of February 26, 2021, among TriNet
USA, Inc. as Holdings, the lenders from time-to-time party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent.8-K001-3637310.12/26/20214.8Third Amendment, dated
as of May 22, 2023, to the 2021 Credit Agreement among the Borrower, the Company, the other loan parties thereto, the lenders party thereto and the Administrative Agent.8-K001-
363734.15/26/20234.9Fourth Amendment, dated as of August 16, 2023, to the 2021 Credit Agreement among the Borrower, the Company, the other loan parties thereto, the lenders
party thereto and the Administrative Agent.8-K001-3637310.18/16/20234.10First Supplemental Indenture, dated August 16, 2023, to Indenture dated February 26, 2021, among the
guarantors listed therein and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association as trustee10-Q001-363734.310/25/202310.1*Amended and Restated 2009 Equity Incentive Plan.S-
1/A333-19246510.33/14/201410.2*Form of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notice under the Amended and Restated 2009 Equity Incentive Plan.S-1/A333-

19246510.4A 3/4/201410.3*Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement and Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice under the Amended and Restated 2009 Equity Incentive Plan.10-
Q001-3637310. 1A 4/30/2018TRINET972024 FORM 10-K EXHIBITSTable of ContentsIncorporated by ReferenceA ExhibitNo.Description of ExhibitFormA File

No.A ExhibitA FilingA FiledHerewith10.4*¥Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement and Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice under the Amended and Restated 2009 Equity
Incentive Plan.10-Q001-3637310.2A 4/29/201910.5*TriNet Group, Inc. Amended and Restated 2019 Equity Incentive Plan.DEF-14A001-36373Appendix A4/12/202210.6*Form of Non-
Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice and Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the TriNet Group, Inc. 2019 Equity Incentive Plan
effective as of January 15, 2020.10-Q001-3637310.4A 4/28/202010.7*Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice under the TriNet Group, Inc. 2019 Equity Incentive Plan effective as
of March 4, 2021.10-Q001-3637310.44/26/202110.8*Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice and Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement
under the TriNet Group, Inc. 2019 Equity Incentive Plan effective as of March 4, 2020.10-Q001-3637310.54/26/202110.9*2014 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.S-1/A333-
19246510.73/14/2014A 10.10%2015 Executive Bonus Plan.8-K001-36373N/A3/11/201510.11*Amended and Restated Non-Employee Director Compensation Policy.10-Q001-
3637310.27/26/202310.12*TriNet Group Inc. Amended and Restated Executive Severance Benefit Plan10-Q001-3637310.54/30/201810.13Form of Indemnification Agreement made by
and between TriNet Group, Inc. and each of its directors and executive officers.S-1/A333-19246510.83/4/201410.14*Employment Agreement, dated November 9, 2009, between
Burton M. Goldfield and TriNet Group, Inc.S-1/A333-19246510.92/13/201410.15*Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated March 28, 2022, by between Samantha
Wellington and TriNet USA, Inc. 8-K001-3637310.13/29/202210.16*Transition Agreement, dated February 13, 2024, between TriNet Group, Inc. and Burton M. Goldfield8-K001-
3637310.22/15/202410.17*Employment Agreement dated August 13, 2020, between TriNet Group, Inc. and Kelly Lee Tuminelli.10-Q001-3637310.110/26/202010.18*Executive
Employment Agreement, dated June 14, 2022, by and between Jay Venkat and TriNet USA, Inc.8-K001-3637310.16/15/202210.19*Amended and Restated Employment Agreement,
dated November 15, 2022, by and between Alex Warren and TriNet USA, Inc. 10-K001-3637310.202/15/202310.20*Employment Agreement, dated February 12, 2024 between TriNet
Group, Inc. and Michael Q. Simonds8-K001-3637310.12/15/2024TRINET982024 FORM 10-K EXHIBITSTable of ContentsIncorporated by ReferenceA ExhibitNo.Description of
ExhibitFormA File No.A ExhibitA FilingA FiledHerewith10.21*Employment Agreement, dated July 1, 2024, between TriNet USA, Inc. and Anthony Shea Treadway10-Q001-
3637310.110/25/202410.22*Employment Agreement, dated September 4, 2024 between TriNet USA, Inc. and Sidney Majalya10-Q001-3637310.210/25/202410.23*Employment
Agreement, dated June 6, 2022, between TriNet USA, Inc. and Jeffery Hayward10-Q001-3637310.310/25/202410.24*TriNet Group, Inc. Amended and Restated Executive
Compensation Clawback Policy10-Q001-3637310.17/26/202310.25Stockholder Agreement, by and between TriNet Group, Inc. and AGI-T, L.P., dated as of December 21, 20168-

KA 001-3637310.112/22/201610.26Amendment No. 1 to the Stockholder Agreement, by and between TriNet Group, Inc. and AGI-T, L.P., dated as of February 13, 202310-K001-
3637310.222/15/202310.27Repurchase Agreement by and between TriNet Group, Inc. and AGI-T, L.P., dated as of July 30, 20238-K001-3637310.17/31/202310.28*Transition
Agreement dated June 3, 2024, between TnNet Group, Inc and Alexander WarrenXlO 29*Employment Agreement dated June 24, 2024, between TriNet USA Inc. and Tlmothy

Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 ofhthe Sarpanes-Oxley Act of 2002X32.1**Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002X101.INSA InlineA XBRL Instance Docurnent the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are

(embedded with the Inline XBRL document).X*Constitutes a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.**Document has been furnished, is deemed not filed and is
not to be incorporated by reference into any of the Companya€™s filings under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in any such filing. TRINET1002024 FORM 10-K SIGNATURESTable of ContentsSIGNATURESPursuant to the
requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, in the City of Dublin, State of California, on the day of FebruaryA 13, 2025. A A TRINET GROUP, INC.A A Date: February 13, 2025A By:/s/ Michael Q.

SimondsA A A Michael Q. SimondsA A A Chief Executive OfficerA A A A Date: February 13, 2025A By:/s/ Kelly TuminelliA A A Kelly TuminelliA A A Chief Financial OfficerKNOW ALL
PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Michael Q. Simonds and Kelly Tuminelli, as his or her true and lawful
attorneys-in-fact and agents, each with the full power of substitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place or stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this
report and to file the same, with exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that
any of said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or their or his or her substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. TRINET1012024 FORM 10-K
SIGNATURESTable of ContentsPursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.SignatureTitleDate/s/ Michael Q. SimondsChief Executive Officer (principal executive officer)February 13, 2025Michael Q. Simonds/s/
Kelly TuminelliChief Financial Officer (principal financial officer and principal accounting officer) February 13, 2025Kelly Tuminelli/s/ Michael J. AngelakisDirectorFebruary 13,



2025Michael J. Angelakis/s/ Paul ChamberlainDirectorFebruary 13, 2025Paul Chamberlain/s/ Ralph ClarkDirectorFebruary 13, 2025Ralph Clark/s/ Maria Contreras-
SweetDirectorFebruary 13, 2025Maria Contreras-Sweet/s/ David C. HodgsonDirectorFebruary 13, 2025David C. Hodgson/s/ Dr. Jacqueline KosecoffDirectorFebruary 13, 2025Dr.
Jacqueline Kosecoff/s/ Wayne B. LowellDirectorFebruary 13, 2025Wayne B. Lowell/s/ Myrna SotoDirectorFebruary 13, 2025Myrna Soto/s/ Brian EvankoDirectorFebruary 13,
2025Brian EvankoTRINET1022024 FORM 10-K DocumentTRANSITION AGREEMENTTHIS TRANSITION AGREEMENT (the 4€ceAgreementa€) is entered into as of]uneA 3, 2024 (the
a€mEffective Datea€), by and between TriNet Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation (together with its successors and assigns, the &€ceCompanya€), and Alexander Warren (the
&€ceExecutivea€). RECITALSWHEREAS, the Executive is currently serving as the Senior Vice President, Chief Revenue Officer of the Company pursuant to the employment agreement
entered into by the Company and the Executive on MayA 1, 2020 and as amended on November 16, 2022 (the &4€ceEmployment Agreementa€); WHEREAS, the Executive signed a
Restrictive Covenants and Invention Disclosure Agreement with the Company dated NovemberA 15, 2022 (the &€ceRestrictive Covenant Agreementa€) (a copy which is attached
hereto as AppendixA A); WHEREAS, the Executive previously was granted awards of restricted stock units and performance stock units in each case, that are outstanding as of the date
hereof (each, an &€ceEquity Awarda€) subject to the terms and conditions of the applicable Company equity plan under which the Equity Award was granted and an award agreement
memorializing the Equity Award (the plan and award agreement together, the 4€ceStock Agreementsa€); WHEREAS, the Executive has indicated to the Company his desire to
transition from his employment with the Company on or about SeptemberA 1, 2024;WHEREAS, the Executive and the Company have agreed to provide for an orderly transition of the
Executivea€™s duties and responsibilities and the Executive desires to assist the Company in realizing such an orderly transition;WHEREAS, the Executive and the Company mutually
desire that the Executivea€™ s employment with the Company will end no later than SeptemberA 1, 2024 (the &€ceSeparation Dated€); WHEREAS, in furtherance of the foregoing, the
Executive and the Company have negotiated and reached an agreement with respect to all rights, duties and obligations arising between them, including, but in no way limited to, any
rights, duties and obligations that have arisen or might arise out of, or are in any way related to the Executived€™ s continued employment with the Company and the conclusion of
that employment.NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and mutual promises recited below, the parties agree as follows:1.Transition of Duties. During the period
beginning on June 3, 2024 and ending on the Separation Date (such period, the 4€ceTransition Perioda€), the Executive shall continue to serve as the Senior Vice President, Chief
Revenue Officer of the Company or, at the election of the Company, as special advisor to the Company, in either case reporting to the Companya€™s Chief Executive Officer, and the
Executive shall provide transitional assistance to the Company, including by assisting the Company in developing a transition plan, executing such plan, being available to answer the
Companya€™s questions and assisting with any and all other matters reasonably requested by the Company (the &€ceTransition Dutiesa€). During the Transition Period, the Executive
shall devote his best efforts and business time and attention to the performance of the Transition Duties; provided, however, that the Executive shall not be required to report to the
Companya€™s offices to perform the Transition Duties or otherwise attend business meetings, unless requested by the Company with reasonable advance notice. Notwithstanding
anything herein to the contrary, the Company may at any time prior to the Separation Date, terminate the employment or services of the Executive for Cause and in the event the
Executive is so terminated, the Companya€™s obligations to provide any additional compensation or benefits under SectionsA 2 and 3 of this Agreement or otherwise shall
immediately cease, except as required by applicable law.2.Compensation. As compensation for the Executivea€™ s continuing employment and service during the Transition Period, as
consideration for the Releases, the Executivea€™s agreement to the Transition Period, if applicable, and the respective terms and conditions thereof, and the other promises of the
Executive contained in this Agreement, which shall be deemed to include the Executived€™s agreement to (i)A remain employed with the Company through the Transition Date and
(ii)A perform the Transition Duties, the Executive will continue to receive the Executived€™s base salary as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Date hereof at the annualized
rate of $550,000 per year, less all applicable withholdings, paid in accordance with the Companya€™s standard payroll practices and procedures, continue to participate in the
Companya€™s retirement and health and welfare benefit plans, perquisite programs, expense reimbursement and vacation policies available to senior executives of the Company
generally, as such plans, programs and policies may be in effect, and vest in his Equity Awards in accordance with the Stock Agreements.3.Separation Benefits. Provided that the
Executive remains in employment with the Company through the end of the Transition Period (and is not otherwise terminated by the Company for Cause prior to the end of the
Transition Period), and remains in compliance through the end of the Transition Period with (i)A the Companya€™s Business Ethics and Code of Conduct Policy and other policies
relating to conduct, as in effect from time to time and applicable to its senior management colleagues, (ii)A subject to SectionA 10(a) below, all covenants to which the Executive has
agreed as part of his employment with the Company and which survive the cessation of such employment, including, but not limited to, the restrictive covenants in the Stock
Agreements, and the Restrictive Covenant Agreement and (iii)A the provisions set forth in SectionsA 8, 11, 12, and 13 below (the covenants described in the immediately preceding
clausesA (i) through (iii) of this SectionA 3 are collectively referred to herein as the 4€ceCovenantsa€); provided in each case that the Executive will not be considered non-compliant
unless Executive has received written notice of such non-compliance and, in the case of non-compliance capable of cure, at least ten (10) days to cure; and provided, that the Executive
timely signs and returns this Agreement, and delivers to the Company a general release of claims in the form attached as AppendixA B (the &€ceReleaseéd€) and does not revoke the
Release within the seven (7)-day period following execution of such Release, the Company will provide the Executive with the following benefits (the 4€eSeverance Benefitsa€):a.Cash
Severance. The Company will make a lump sum severance payment to the Executive on the 60th day after the Separation Date in an amount equal to $550,000, which represents
twelve (12) months of the Executivea€™s base salary as in effect on the Effective Date, subject to any applicable withholdings and deductions.b.COBRA Benefits. Upon the Separation
Date, if the Executive timely elects continued health insurance coverage pursuant to the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act, SectionA 4980B of the Internal Revenue
Code and any state law of similar effect (4€ceCOBRA&€), the Company will pay the COBRA premiums for the Executive and his eligible dependents for up to the first twelve (12)
months of such coverage, or until such earlier date as (A)A he or his dependents are no longer eligible for such coverage or (B)A he or his dependents become eligible for health
insurance coverage from another source; provided that, if payment of such premiums would result in excise tax or other penalties imposed on the Company, a dollar amount equal to
such premiums that the Company would have paid under this SectionA 3(b) during the applicable payment period shall be paid to the Executive, instead of such premium, as additional
cash severance pay. Any payments under this SectionA 3(b) are payable in equal installments in accordance with the Company&€™s payroll practices no less frequently than
semimonthly. The Executive must promptly inform the Company, in writing, if he or his dependents become eligible for health insurance coverage from another source during this
period of coverage.c.Equity Awards. On the Separation Date, the vesting of each then-outstanding, unvested time-based Equity Award held by the Executive will accelerate as to 100%
of any then unvested shares that would have otherwise vested during the twelve (12)-month period following such date. For clarity, Equity Awards that contain vesting criteria based
wholly or in part on the achievement of business or individual performance criteria or milestones will not be eligible for accelerated vesting and will be forfeited on the Separation
Date.d.For purposes of this Agreement, 4€ceCause&€ means the occurrence of any of the following events that has a material negative impact on the business or reputation of the
Company: (i)A the Executivea€™s 2commission of any felony or any crime involving fraud, dishonesty or moral turpitude under the laws of the United States or any state thereof;

(ii)A the Executivea€™s attempted commission of, or participation in, a fraud or act of dishonesty against the Company; (iii)A the Executived€™ s intentional, material violation of any
contract or agreement between the Executive and the Company or of any statutory duty owed to the Company; (iv)A the Executivea€™s unauthorized use or disclosure of the
Companya€™s confidential information or trade secrets; or (v)A the Executived€™ s gross misconduct. Whether or not Cause exists with regard to the Executive shall be determined by
the Companya€™s board of directors (the &€ceBoarda€) in good faith.4.Final Paycheck. As soon as administratively practicable on or after the Separation Date, the Company will pay
the Executive all salary accrued through the Separation Date, all accrued and unused vacation earned through the Separation Date (if any) and any unreimbursed business expenses
incurred by the Executive in accordance with the Company policy prior to the Separation Date (the &€ceAccrued Obligationsa€).5.Consideration. With receipt of the Accrued
Obligations above, the Executive acknowledges he will have received all payments and benefits earned by, or owed to him in connection with his employment with the Company, and
the Executive will not be entitled to any additional compensation or benefits, except as provided below, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Executive
acknowledges that the compensation and benefits provided below are good and valid consideration for the Release (as defined below) and the covenants set forth below.6.No
Additional Entitlements. The Executive understands and acknowledges that he will have no further entitlements, other than those recited in this Agreement. The Executive hereby
acknowledges that the Executive has no interest in or claim of right to reinstatement, reemployment or employment with the Company, and the Executive forever waives any interest
in or claim of right to any future employment by the Company.7.Executived€™s Release of the Company. In consideration of the compensation payable to the Executive under
SectionA 3 of this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged:a.Subject to SectionA 10(a), the Executive, for himself and for
his heirs, executors, administrators, trustees and legal representatives, and their respective successors and assigns (collectively, the &€ceReleasorsa€) hereby releases, remises, and
acquits the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates and all of their respective past, present and future parent entities, subsidiaries, divisions, affiliates and related business entities,
any of their respective assets, employee benefit plans or funds, or past, present or future directors, officers, fiduciaries, agents, trustees, administrators, managers, supervisors,
shareholders, investors, employees, legal representatives, agents or counsel, and their respective successors and assigns, whether acting on behalf of the Company or its subsidiaries
or affiliates or, in their individual capacities (the &€ceReleased Partya€ or &€ceReleased Partiesa€), from any and all claims, known or unknown, which the Releasors have or may have
against any Released Parties arising on or prior to the date that the Executive executes this Agreement, and any and all liability which any such Released Party may have to the
Releasors, whether denominated in claims, demands, causes of action, obligations, damages or liabilities arising from any and all bases, including but not limited to (i)A the Family and
Medical Leave Act of 1993, the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, SectionA 1981 of the Civil Rights Act of 1866, the Equal Pay Act, the Lilly Ledbetter Fair Pay Act,
the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, (excluding claims for accrued, vested benefits under any employee benefit or
pension plan of the Company, subject to the terms and conditions of such plan and applicable law), the Uniform Trade Secrets Act, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Fair Labor
Standards Act, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, the Unruh Civil Rights Act, the California Family Rights Act, and the California Labor, Government, and Business and
Professions Codes, all as amended; (ii)A any and all claims arising from or relating to, as applicable, the Executived€™s service as an officer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or affiliates and the termination or resignation of such officer positions, or the Executivea€™s employment with the Company or the termination of such employment; (iii)A all claims
related to the Executived€™ s compensation or benefits from the Company or the Released Parties, including salary, bonuses, commissions, vacation pay, leave pay, expense
reimbursements, severance pay, fringe benefits, stock, equity awards, or any other ownership interests in the Company or the Released Parties; (iv)A all claims for breach of contract,
wrongful termination and breach of the 3implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing; (v)A all tort claims, including claims for fraud, defamation, privacy rights, emotional distress,
and discharge in violation of public policy and all other claims under common law; and (vi)A all federal, state and local statutory or constitutional claims, including claims for
compensation, discrimination, harassment, whistleblower protection, retaliation, attorneysa€™ fees, costs, disbursements, or other claims (other than claims related to the Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 or the Older Workers Benefit Protection Act) (referred to collectively as the &€ceReleased Claimsa€).b.The Executive expressly waives all
rights afforded by SectionA 1542 of the Civil Code of the State of California, which states as follows: 4€ceA general release does not extend to claims that the creditor or releasing
party does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, and that if known by him or her would have materially affected his or her settlement
with the debtor or released party.&€ The Executive understands the significance of the Executived€™ s release of unknown claims and waiver of statutory protection against a release
of unknown claims. The Executive expressly assumes the risk of such unknown and unanticipated claims and agrees that this Release applies to all Released Claims, whether known,
unknown or unanticipated.c.Notwithstanding the foregoing in this SectionA 7, and subject to SectionA 10(a), the Released Claims shall not apply to, or include (i)A the Executivea€™s
rights, if any, to be covered under any applicable insurance policy with respect to any liability the Executive incurred or might incur as an employee, officer or director of the
Company, or the Executivea€™s rights, if any, to indemnification under the by-laws or articles of incorporation of the Company; (ii)A any right the Executive may have to obtain
contribution as permitted by law in the event of entry of judgment against the Executive as a result of any act or failure to act for which the Executive, on the one hand, and Company
or any other Released Party, on the other hand, are jointly liable; or (iii)A the Executived€™s right to enforce this Agreement.8.No Actions or Claims. Subject to SectionA 10(a), the
Executive represents that he has not filed any charges, complaints, grievances, arbitrations, lawsuits, or claims against the Company, with any local, state or federal agency, union or
court from the beginning of time to the date of execution of this Agreement and that the Executive will not do so at any time hereafter, based upon events occurring prior to the date of
execution of this Agreement. In the event any agency, union, or court ever assumes jurisdiction of any lawsuit, claim, charge, grievance, arbitration, or complaint, or purports to bring
any legal proceeding on behalf of the Executive, the Executive will ask any such agency, union, or court to withdraw from and/or dismiss any such action, grievance, or arbitration,
with prejudice.9.Acknowledgments and Representations. The Executive acknowledges and represents that he has not suffered any discrimination or harassment by any of the Released
Parties on account of the Executived€™s race, gender, national origin, religion, marital or registered domestic partner status, sexual orientation, age, disability, medical condition or
any other characteristic protected by law. The Executive acknowledges and represents that he has not been denied any leave, benefits or rights to which the Executive may have been
entitled under the Family Medical Leave Act or any other federal or state law, and that the Executive has not suffered any job-related wrongs or injuries for which the Executive might
still be entitled to compensation or relief.10.Executive Protections; Defend Trade Secrets Act.a.The release in SectionA 7 does not release claims that cannot be released as a matter of
law, including (i)A any right to file a civil action or complaint with, or otherwise notify, a state agency, other public prosecutor, law enforcement agency, or any court or other
governmental entity alleging claims or a violation of rights under the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, as well as any right to file a charge with or participate in a charge
by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the Department of Labor, or any other local, state, or federal administrative body or government agency that is authorized to
enforce or administer laws related to employment, against the Company and (ii)A any right to communicate directly with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, the U.S.
Commodity Futures Trading Commission, the U.S. Department of Justice or similar agency, or to cooperate with or participate in any investigation conducted by such agency, or

(iii)A otherwise to make other disclosures that are protected under the whistleblower provisions of applicable law. However, by 4executing this Agreement, the Executive hereby
waives the right to monetary recovery of damages from the Company in any such proceeding brought by the Executive or on behalf of the Executive.b.Pursuant to the Defend Trade
Secrets Act of 2016, the Executive and the Company acknowledge and agree that the Executive shall not have criminal or civil liability under any federal or state trade secret law for
the disclosure of a trade secret that (i)A is made (A)A in confidence to a federal, state, or local government official, either directly or indirectly, or to an attorney and (B)A solely for the



purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; or (ii)A is made in a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under
seal. In addition and without limiting the preceding sentence, if the Executive files a lawsuit for retaliation by the Company for reporting a suspected violation of law, the Executive
may disclose the trade secret to the Executived€™s attorney and may use the trade secret information in the court proceeding, if the Executive (X)A files any document containing the
trade secret under seal and (Y)A does not disclose the trade secret, except pursuant to court order.11.Return of Property. Subject to SectionA 10(a) hereof, on or prior to the
Separation Date, the Executive will return all of the Companya€™s property. Such property includes, but is not limited to, the original and any copies of any confidential information or
trade secrets, keys, pass cards, building identity cards, mobile telephones, tablet devices, laptop computers, corporate credit cards, customer lists, files, brochures, documents or
computer disks or printouts, equipment and any other item relating to the Company and its business, provided that it would not be a violation of this SectionA 11 for the Executive to
retain copies of publicly-filed documents. Further, other than in the performance of the Executivea€™s duties and subject to SectionA 10(a) hereof, the Executive will not take,
procure, or copy any property of the Company before, on, after or in anticipation of the Separation Date.12.Cooperation. Subject to SectionA 10(a) hereof, in consideration for the
promises and payments by the Company pursuant to this Agreement, at the request of the Company, the Executive agrees to assist and cooperate with the Company (i)A concerning
reasonable requests for information about the business of the Company or its affiliates or the Executivea€™s involvement or participation therein; (ii)A in connection with the defense,
prosecution or investigation of any claims or actions now in existence or which may be brought in the future against or on behalf of the Company, including any proceeding before any
arbitral, administrative, judicial, legislative, or other body or agency, including testifying in any proceeding to the extent such claims, actions, investigations or proceedings related to
services performed or required to be performed by the Executive, pertinent knowledge possessed by the Executive, or any act or omission by the Executive; and (iii)A in connection
with any investigation or review by any federal, state or local regulatory, quasi- or self-regulatory or self-governing authority or organization (including without limitation, the SEC and
FINRA) as any such investigation or review relates to services performed or required to be performed by the Executive, pertinent knowledge possessed by the Executive, or any act or
omission by the Executive. The Executivea€™s full cooperation will include, but not be limited to, being available to meet and speak with board members, officers or employees of the
Company and/or their counsel at reasonable times and locations, executing accurate and truthful documents, appearing at the Companya€™s request at depositions, trials or other
proceedings without the necessity of a subpoena, and taking such other actions as may be reasonably requested by the Company and/or its counsel to effectuate the foregoing. In
requesting such services, the Company shall reimburse the Executive for any out-of-pocket expenses reasonably related to such requests that are approved by the Company in
advance; provided, further, that, if the incurrence of such expenses is necessary for the Executive to comply with the terms of this SectionA 12, the Executive shall not be required to
comply with this SectionA 12 until such approval is granted.13.Confidentiality, Intellectual Property, Non-Solicitation and Non-Disparagement. Subject to SectionA 10(a) hereof, the
Company and the Executive acknowledge and agree that the provisions of the Restrictive Covenant Agreement, and all other Covenants shall continue to apply to the Executive prior
to and after the Separation Date as if fully set forth in this Agreement. In addition, and in consideration of the compensation described in SectionA 3 hereof, and the Companya€™s
commitments hereunder, the Company and the Executive also agree, subject to SectionA 10(a) hereof, as follows:5a.Non-Solicitation. The Executive acknowledges that the provisions
of the Restrictive Covenant Agreement relating to non-solicitation of employees shall apply for a period of twelve (12) months following the Separation Date.b.Non-Disparagement. At
all times on and after the Effective Date, the Executive will not disparage, place in a false or negative light or criticize, or make any false statements that may damage the reputation
of, orally or in writing, the business, products, policies, decisions, directors, officers or employees of the Company to any person; provided, however, that (i)A this provision shall not
apply to any truthful statements made by the Executive to the Board (or a committee or subcommittee of the Board) if such statements are provided at the request of the Board (or a
committee or subcommittee thereof) in the course of carrying out its duties and responsibilities and (ii)A that the Executive may respond accurately and fully to any question, inquiry,
or request for information when required by legal process or in response to a governmental inquiry. At all times on and after the Effective Date, the Company will direct the members
of its Board and its executive officers not to disparage, place in a false or negative light or criticize, or make any knowingly false statements that are intended to damage the reputation
of the Executive, orally or in writing, to any person, except as required by law and provided, however, that they may respond accurately and fully to any question, inquiry, or request
for information when required by legal process or in response to a governmental inquiry.c.Injunctive Relief. It is recognized and acknowledged by the Executive that a breach of the
covenants contained in this SectionA 13 will cause irreparable damage to the Company, its subsidiaries and affiliates and their respective goodwill, the exact amount of which will be
difficult or impossible to ascertain, and that the remedies at law for any such breach will be inadequate. Accordingly, the Executive agrees that in the event of a breach of any of the
covenants contained in this SectionA 13, in addition to any other remedy which may be available at law or in equity, the Company will be entitled to specific performance and
injunctive relief. The Executive agrees not to raise as a defense or objection to the request or granting of such relief that any breach of this Agreement is or would be compensable by
an award of money damages, and the Executive agrees to waive any requirements for the securing or posting of any bond in connection with such remedy.14.Non-Reliance. The
Executive represents to the Company that in executing this Agreement the Executive has not relied upon any representation or statement not set forth herein made by the Company or
its agents, representatives or attorneys with regard to the subject matter, basis or effect of this Agreement, or otherwise. The Executive (i)A has reviewed with his own advisors the tax
and legal consequences of entering into and the payments under this Agreement, (ii)A is relying solely on such advisors and not on any statements or representations of the Company,
its agents or advisors, and (iii)A understands that he (and not the Company) shall be responsible for his own tax liability that may arise as a result of entering into and the payments
under this Agreement.15.Withholding. All payments required to be made by the Company hereunder to the Executive during the Transition Period shall be subject to withholding of
such amounts relating to taxes as the Company may reasonably determine it should withhold pursuant to any applicable law or regulation.16.SectionA 409A Compliance. It is intended
that any amounts payable under this Agreement and the Companya€™s and the Executivea€™s exercise of authority or discretion hereunder shall be exempt from or otherwise comply
with the provisions of Internal Revenue Code SectionA 409A and the treasury regulations and guidance thereunder (4€ceSectionA 409A&€), in either case, so as not to subject the
Executive to the payment of interest and tax penalty which may be imposed under SectionA 409A. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, if, at the Executivea€™s
separation from service, (i)A the Executive is a specified employee as defined in SectionA 409A and (ii)A any of the payments or benefits provided hereunder constitute deferred
compensation under SectionA 4094, then, and only to the extent required by such provisions, the date of payment of such payments or benefits otherwise provided shall be delayed for
a period of six (6) months following the separation from service, and any amounts so delayed shall be paid during the seventh (7th) month following separation from service. Any
reimbursement amounts payable under this Agreement shall be paid promptly after receipt of a properly documented request for reimbursement from the Executive, provided no
amount shall be paid later than DecemberA 31 of the year following the year during which the reimbursable amounts were incurred by the Executive.617.Assignability. The rights and
benefits under this Agreement are personal to the Executive and such rights and benefits shall not be subject to assignment, alienation or transfer, except to the extent such rights and
benefits are lawfully available to the estate or beneficiaries of the Executive upon death. The Company may assign this Agreement to any parent, affiliate or subsidiary and shall
require any entity which at any time becomes a successor whether by merger, purchase, or otherwise acquires all or substantially all of the assets, stock or business of the Company,
to expressly assume this Agreement.18.Entire Agreement. The Executive acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement, together with the Appendices hereto constitute the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties and supersedes any prior agreements, written or oral, with respect to the subject matter hereof, including the termination of the
Executived€™s employment after the Effective Date and all amounts to which the Executive shall be entitled, other than as specifically provided in this Agreement; provided further
and for the avoidance of doubt, that the Executive remains subject to the Companya€™s Executive Compensation Clawback Policy, as it may hereinafter be amended in accordance
with its terms. The Executive acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement supersedes the terms regarding the Executived€™ s termination of employment set forth in the
Employment Agreement, including without limitation the severance benefits set forth therein.19.Severability / Reasonable Alteration. In the event that any part or provision of this
Agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions thereof shall nevertheless continue to be valid and enforceable as
though the invalid or unenforceable part or provision had not been included therein. Further, in the event that any part or provision hereof shall be declared by a court of competent
jurisdiction to exceed the maximum time period, scope or activity restriction that such court deems reasonable and enforceable, then the parties expressly authorize the court to
modify such part or provision so that it may be enforced to the maximum extent permitted by law.20.No Strict Construction. The language used in this Agreement will be deemed to be
the language chosen by the Executive and the Company to express their mutual intent, and no rule of strict construction will be applied against the Executive or the
Company.21.Insurance. The Company presently maintains general liability insurance on an occurrence basis which covers the professional activities of professionals of the Company.
The Company will continue to provide such coverage for the past activities of the Executive to the same extent as such coverage is provided with respect to the past activities of other
former professionals of the Company.22.Applicable Law, Venue and Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
California, without regard to conflicts of laws principles, rules or statutes of any jurisdiction. The parties irrevocably agree that all actions to enforce an arbitratora€™s decision
pursuant to SectionA 24 of this Agreement may be instituted and litigated in federal, state or local courts sitting in Santa Clara County, California and each of such parties hereby
consents to the jurisdiction and venue of such court, waives any objection based on forum non conveniens and any right to a jury trial as set forth in SectionA 23 of this
Agreement.23.Waiver of Jury Trial. EACH OF THE EXECUTIVE AND THE COMPANY HEREBY WAIVES, RELEASES AND RELINQUISHES ANY AND ALL RIGHTS HE/IT MAY HAVE
TO A TRIAL BY JURY WITH RESPECT TO ANY ACTIONS ARISING DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY AS A RESULT OR IN CONSEQUENCE OF THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING, WITHOUT
LIMITATION, ANY CLAIM OR ACTION TO REMEDY ANY BREACH OR ALLEGED BREACH HEREOF, TO ENFORCE ANY TERM HEREOF, OR IN CONNECTION WITH ANY RIGHT,
BENEFIT OR OBLIGATION ACCORDED OR IMPOSED BY THIS AGREEMENT.24.Arbitration. To provide a mechanism for rapid and economical dispute resolution, the Executive and
the Company agree that any and all disputes, claims, or causes of action, in law or equity, arising from or relating to this Agreement (including the Release) or its enforcement,
performance, breach, or interpretation, or arising from or relating to the Executived€™s employment with the Company or the termination of the Executived€™s employment with the
Company, will be resolved, to the fullest extent permitted by law, by final, binding, and 7confidential arbitration held in Santa Clara County, California and conducted by JAMS, Inc.
(&€®JAMSA€), under its then applicable JAMS Employment Arbitration Rules and Procedures. By agreeing to this arbitration procedure, both the Executive and the Company waive the
right to resolve any such dispute through a trial by jury or judge or by administrative proceeding. The Executive will have the right to be represented by legal counsel at any
arbitration proceeding at his expense. The arbitrator will: (a)A have the authority to compel adequate discovery for the resolution of the dispute and to award such relief as would
otherwise be available under applicable law in a court proceeding; and (b)A issue a written statement signed by the arbitrator regarding the disposition of each claim and the relief, if
any, awarded as to each claim, the reasons for the award, and the arbitratora€™s essential findings and conclusions on which the award is based. The Company will bear all fees for
the arbitration, except for any attorneysa€™ fees or costs associated with the Executived€™s personal representation. The arbitrator, and not a court, will also be authorized to
determine whether the provisions of this paragraph apply to a dispute, controversy or claim sought to be resolved in accordance with these arbitration procedures. Notwithstanding
the provisions of this paragraph, the parties are not prohibited from seeking injunctive relief in a court of appropriate jurisdiction to prevent irreparable harm on any basis, pending
the outcome of arbitration. Any awards or orders in such arbitrations may be entered and enforced as judgments in the federal and the state courts of any competent jurisdiction.The
parties agree that the arbitration shall be kept confidential. The existence of the arbitration, any nonApublic information provided in the arbitration, and any submissions, orders or
awards made in the arbitration (together, the &€ceConfidential Arbitration Informationé€) shall not be disclosed to any non-party except the tribunal, JAMS, the parties, their counsel,
experts, witnesses, accountants and auditors, insurers and reinsurers, and any other person necessary to the conduct of the arbitration. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a party may
disclose Confidential Arbitration Information to the extent that disclosure may be required to fulfill a legal duty, protect or pursue a legal right, or enforce or challenge an award in
bona fide legal proceedings. This confidentiality provision survives termination of the contract and of any arbitration brought pursuant to the contract.25.Counterparts and Facsimiles.
This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed as an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Signed
copies of this Agreement may be delivered by .pdf, .jpeg or fax and will be accepted as an original.26.Expenses. Each of the Company and the Executive shall bear its/his own costs and
expenses in connection with the negotiation and documentation of this Agreement.27.No Reliance Upon Other Statements. This Agreement is entered into without reliance upon any
statement or representation of any party hereto or parties hereby released other than the statements and representations contained in writing in this Agreement.28.Amendment /
Waiver. This Agreement may not be modified without the express written consent of the parties hereto. Any failure by any party to enforce any of its rights and privileges under this
Agreement shall not be deemed to constitute waiver of any rights and privileges contained herein.29.Notice. Any notice to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed
given when mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows:To the Executive at:The most recent address provided by the Executive to the CompanyTo the
Company at:TriNet Group, Inc.One Park Plaza6th FloorDublin, California 94568Attn: Samantha Wellington, EVP & Chief Legal Officer830.Company Subsidiaries, Affiliates and
Divisions. For purposes of this Agreement, references to the &€ceCompanya€ in SectionsA 2, 3, 4, 5, 11, 12, 13, and 15, shall include the Company, its subsidiaries and affiliates.
References to a€mesubsidiaries,a€ d€ceaffiliatesa€ or 4€cedivisionsa€ of the Company shall mean and include those entities or persons publicly identified by the Company to a
subsidiary, affiliate or division of the Company and such other entities or persons actually known by the Executive to be a subsidiary, affiliate or division of the Company.[Signature
Page Follows]QIN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the partles hereto has duly executed this Transition Agreement as of the date and year first set forth above. TRINET GROUP, INC.By:
Warren(Signature Page to Transition Agreement)Appendle ARESTRICTIVE COVENANT AGREEMENT1213141516 17 1819 2021AppendixA BRELEASE AGREEMENTThis Release
Agreement (this &€ceAgreement€) is entered into by Alexander Warren (the 4€eExecutivea€), on the one hand, and TriNet Group, Inc. (the &€ceCompanya€), on the other hand (the
Executive and the Company are referred to collectively as the 4€cePartiesa€).1.Release. In consideration of the compensation payable to the Executive under the terms and conditions
of the Transition Agreement dated September _ , 2024, by and between the Executive and the Company (the &€ceTransition Agreementa€), and for other good and valuable
consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Executive, for himself and for his heirs, executors, administrators, trustees and legal representatives, and their respective
successors and assigns (collectively, the &€ceReleasorsa€), hereby releases, remises, and acquits the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates and all of their respective past, present
and future parent entities, subsidiaries, divisions, affiliates and related business entities, any of their respective assets, employee benefit plans or funds, or past, present or future



directors, officers, fiduciaries, agents, trustees, administrators, managers, supervisors, shareholders, investors, employees, legal representatives, agents or counsel, and their
respective successors and assigns, whether acting on behalf of the Company or its subsidiaries or affiliates or, in their individual capacities (the &€ceReleased Partya€ or a&€ceReleased
Partiesa€), from any and all claims, known or unknown, which the Releasors have or may have against any Released Parties arising on or prior to the date that the Executive executes
this Release, and any and all liability which any such Released Party may have to the Releasors, whether denominated in claims, demands, causes of action, obligations, damages or
liabilities arising from any and all bases, including but not limited to (a)A any claim under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (including the Older Workers Benefit
Protection Act) (the 4€ceADEA4€), the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Act of 1991,
Section 1981 of the Civil Rights Act of 1866, the Equal Pay Act, the Lilly Ledbetter Fair Pay Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974, (excluding claims for accrued, vested benefits under any employee benefit or pension plan of the Company, subject to the terms and conditions of such plan and
applicable law), the Uniform Trade Secrets Act, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Fair Labor Standards Act, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, the Unruh Civil Rights
Act, the California Family Rights Act, and the California Labor, Government, and Business and Professions Codes, all as amended; (b)A any and all claims arising from or relating to, as
applicable, the Executivea€™s service as an officer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates and the termination or resignation of such officer positions, or the
Executived€™s employment with the Company or the termination of such employment; (c)A all claims related to the Executived€™s compensation or benefits from the Company or the
Released Parties, including salary, bonuses, commissions, vacation pay, leave pay, expense reimbursements, severance pay, fringe benefits, stock, stock options, or any other
ownership interests in the Company or the Released Parties; (d)A all claims for breach of contract, wrongful termination and breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair
dealing; (e)A all tort claims, including claims for fraud, defamation, privacy rights, emotional distress, and discharge in violation of public policy and all other claims under common
law; and (f)A all federal, state and local statutory or constitutional claims, including claims for compensation, discrimination, harassment, whistleblower protection, retaliation,
attorneysa€™ fees, costs, disbursements, or other claims (referred to collectively as the &€ceReleased Claimsa€).The Executive expressly waives all rights afforded by SectionA 1542 of
the Civil Code of the State of California, which states as follows: 4&€aeA general release does not extend to claims that the creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist
in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, and that if known by him or her would have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor or released party.4€ The
Executive understands the significance of the Executivea€™ s release of unknown claims and waiver of statutory protection against a release of unknown claims. The Executive
expressly assumes the risk of such unknown and unanticipated claims and agrees that this Release applies to all Released Claims, whether known, unknown or
unanticipated.Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Release does not release claims that cannot be released as a matter of law, including (i)A any right to file a civil action or complaint
with, or otherwise notify, a state agency, other public prosecutor, law enforcement agency, or any court or other governmental entity alleging claims or a violation of rights under the
California Fair Employment and Housing Act, as well as any right to file a charge with or participate in a charge by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the Department of
Labor, or any other local, state, or federal administrative body or government agency that is authorized to enforce or administer laws related to employment, against the Company and
(i))A any right to communicate directly with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission, the U.S. Department of Justice or similar
agency, or to cooperate with or participate in any investigation conducted by such agency, or (iii)A otherwise to make other disclosures that are protected under the whistleblower
provisions of applicable law. However, by executing this Release, the Executive hereby waives the right to monetary recovery of damages from the Company in any such proceeding
brought by the Executive or on behalf of the Executive.In addition, this Release shall not apply to (a)A the Executivea€™s rights, if any, to be covered under any applicable insurance
policy with respect to any liability the Executive incurred or might incur as an employee, officer or director of the Company, or the Executived€™s rights, if any, to indemnification
under the by-laws or articles of incorporation of the Company; (b)A any right the Executive may have to obtain contribution as permitted by law in the event of entry of judgment
against the Executive as a result of any act or failure to act for which the Executive, on the one hand, and Company or any other Released Party, on the other hand, are jointly liable; or
(c)A the Executivea€™s right to enforce the Transition Agreement.2. ADEA Waiver. The Executive acknowledges that he is knowingly and voluntarily waiving and releasing any rights
the Executive may have under the ADEA, as amended. The Executive also acknowledges that the consideration given for the waiver and release herein is in addition to anything of
value to which the Executive was already entitled. The Executive further acknowledges that he has been advised by this writing, as required by the ADEA, that: (a)A the Executivea€™s
waiver and release do not apply to any rights or claims that may arise after the execution date of this Agreement; (b)A the Executive has been advised hereby that he has the right to
consult with an attorney prior to executing this Agreement; (c)A the Executive has had at least twenty-one (21) days from the date of the Transition Agreement to execute it (although
he may choose to voluntarily execute this Agreement earlier); (d)A the Executive has seven (7) days following the execution of this Agreement by the parties to revoke the Agreement;
and (e)A this Agreement will not be effective until the date upon which the revocation period has expired, which will be the eighth (8th) day after this Agreement is executed by the
Executive, provided that the Company has also executed this Agreement by that date (&€ceEffective Datea€). In the event of any changes to this Agreement, whether or not material,
the Executive waives the restarting of the twenty-one (21) day period indicated in the immediately preceding sentence.3.No Actions or Claims. Subject to SectionA 10(a) of the
Transition Agreement, the Executive represents that he has not filed any charges, complaints, grievances, arbitrations, lawsuits, or claims against the Company, with any local, state or
federal agency, union or court from the beginning of time to the date of execution of this Agreement and that the Executive will not do so at any time hereafter, based upon events
occurring prior to the date of execution of this Agreement. In the event any agency, union, or court ever assumes jurisdiction of any lawsuit, claim, charge, grievance, arbitration, or
complaint, or purports to bring any legal proceeding on behalf of the Executive, the Executive will ask any such agency, union, or court to withdraw from and/or dismiss any such
action, grievance, or arbitration, with prejudice.4.Acknowledgements and Representations. The Executive acknowledges and represents that he has not suffered any discrimination or
harassment by any of the Released Parties on account of the Executived€™s race, gender, national origin, religion, marital or registered domestic partner status, sexual orientation,
age, disability, medical condition or any other characteristic protected by law. The Executive acknowledges and represents that he has not been denied any leave, benefits or rights to
which the Executive may have been entitled under the Family Medical Leave Act or any other federal or state law, and that the Executive has not suffered any job-related wrongs or
injuries for which the Executive might still be entitled to compensation or relief.25.Miscellaneous.a.Assigns. The terms of this Agreement are binding upon and inure to the benefit of
the Parties named herein and their respective successors and permitted assigns.b.Governing Law. This Agreement is, and disputes arising under it are, governed by the laws of the
State of California without regard to the principles of conflicts of law that would apply the laws of another jurisdiction. All disputes regarding this Agreement shall be resolved
pursuant to the dispute resolution procedures set forth in the Transition Agreement.c.Severability. Each provision in this Agreement shall be interpreted in such a manner as to be
effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this Agreement is held to be prohibited by or invalid under applicable law, such provision is ineffective to the extent of
such prohibition or invalidity, without prohibiting or invalidating the remainder of such provision or the remainder of this Agreement.d.Entire Agreement; Each Party the Drafter. This
Agreement, together with the Transition Agreement, constitutes the entire agreement and complete understanding of the Parties with regard to the matters set forth herein and,
except as otherwise specifically set forth in this Agreement and the Transition Agreement, supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, and
discussions, whether written or oral, between the parties with regard to such matters. No other promises or agreements are binding unless in writing and signed by each of the parties
after the date hereof. Should any provision of this Agreement require interpretation or construction, the entity interpreting or construing this Agreement should not apply a
presumption against one party by reason of the rule of construction that a document is to be construed more strictly against the party who prepared the document.e.Counterparts. This
Agreement may be signed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. Any executed counterpart returned by facsimile or electronic transmission shall be
deemed an original executed counterpart.[Signature Page Follows]3TO BE EXECUTED NO EARLIER THAN THE SEPARATION DATE AND NO LATER THAN SEPTEMBERA 6,

Legal OfficerEXECUTIVEAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAADate: AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Alexander Warren(Signature Page to Release
Agreement)DocumentTRINET GROUP, INC.EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTTHIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this "Agreementa€) is entered into by and between Timothy (Tim) N.
Nimmer (the 4€eExecutive,a€ "you" or &€meyourd€) and TriNet USA, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Companya€) (each a &€cePartya€ and collectively the 4€cePartiesa€), as of June
24, 2024 (the 4€mEffective Dated€). NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties hereby agree as
follows:1.EMPLOYMENT BY THE COMPANY1.1 Title and Responsibilities. Subject to the terms set forth herein, and effective on the date on which you commence your employment
with the Company, which shall be no later than June 24, 2024 (the 4€eEffective Datea€), you will be an employee of the Company, and, among other things, you shall serve as the
Senior Vice President, Risk Products and Operations of TriNet Group, Inc. (4€ceTriNet,a€ which is the parent of the Company), and you will report to the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. During your employment with the Company, you will devote your best efforts and substantially all of your business time and attention (except for vacation periods and
reasonable periods of illness or other incapacity permitted by the Company's general employment policies) to the business of TriNet and its subsidiaries including the Company (the
a€m@TriNet Groupa€). Within this relationship, you shall be expected to perform those duties the Company requires, within the bounds of its policies and the law, to the highest
professional and ethical standards. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is acknowledged and agreed that you may engage in civic and not-for-profit activities and/or serve on the boards
of directors of nonAcompetitive private or public companies; provided, however, in each case that such activities do not materially interfere with the performance of your duties
hereunder and, for service on any board of directors, prior approval shall be obtained from the Chief Legal Officer of the Company.1.2 At-Will Employment. Your relationship with the
Company is at-will, which means that you and the Company both have the right to terminate your employment with the Company at any time with or without cause, reason, or advance
notice, subject to any notice requirement provided in any other agreement with the Company. In addition, the Company retains the discretion to modify the terms of your employment,
including but not limited to position, duties, reporting relationship, office location, compensation, and benefits, at any time; provided, however, that any such modification will not
affect your rights under the Severance Plan in accordance with its terms (as defined below). You also may be removed from any position you hold in the manner specified by the
Bylaws of the Company and applicable law.1.3 Company Employment Policies. The employment relationship between the Parties will be governed by this Agreement and the standard
employment terms and conditions as set forth in in the Companya€™s Colleague Guidebook, the Terms and Conditions Agreement (TCA) and other form agreements, policies and
procedures of the Company, including those relating to the mandatory arbitration provisions relating to employment-related disputes, the protection of confidential information and the
assignment of inventions, except that when the terms of this Agreement differ from or are in conflict with the Company's general employment policies or procedures, this Agreement
will control. Your failure or refusal to complete any of the Companya€™s aforementioned standard form agreements or acknowledgement of the Company&a€™s standard employment
policies and procedures will result in the automatic termination of your employment without triggering any severance benefits, notwithstanding section 2.4(b) below or the Severance
Plan (as defined below).2. COMPENSATION.2.1 Salary. You will earn a base salary that is established in accordance with Company policy and subject to review and approval by the
Compensation and Human Capital Management Committee (the 4€ceCommittee&€) of the Board of Directors of TriNet (the &€ceBoarda€) and that is payable semi-monthly on the
Companya€™s standard payroll dates, less any payroll deductions and all required taxes and withholdings. Your annualized base salary starting on the Effective Date is Five Hundred
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($550,000.00). You will be considered for annual adjustments in base salary in accordance with Company policy and subject to review and approval by the
Committee. This is a full-time, exempt position and you are expected to work the Companya€™s normal business hours and such additional time as may be required by the nature of
your work assignments (for which you will not be eligible for overtime compensation). 2.2 Equity Award. The parties agree that, in exchange for acceptance of the offer of employment
and the execution of this Agreement, after the Effective Date, the Chief Executive Officer will recommend to the Committee an equity grant with a grant date value of One Million
Dollars ($1,000,000) (the "RSU Award') comprised of time-vested restricted stock units to be settled in shares of TriNet common stock ("RSUs"') and an equity grant with a grant date
value of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) (the "PSU Award') comprised of performance-based restricted stock units to be settled in shares of TriNet common stock ("PSUs"'). The RSU
and PSU Awards shall be made pursuant to TriNet's 2019 Equity Incentive Plan and shall be subject to the terms and conditions set forth in TriNet's forms of grant notice and award
agreements. Approval of the recommendation of each Equity Award is in the sole and unreviewable discretion of the Committee. The number of RSUs and PSUs actually awarded
under the RSU Award and the PSU Award, respectively, shall be determined based on the closing market price on the Grant Date, as defined under the Committee's standard award
resolution language, following approval by the Committee. The RSUs under the RSU Award shall, if and when granted by the Committee, be subject to a four-year vesting schedule for
new hires, with one-fourth of the total shares subject to the RSU Award (rounded down to the nearest whole share) vesting on the first anniversary of the Grant Date, and thereafter
one-sixteenth of the total shares vesting on the 15th day of the second month of each calendar quarter after the first anniversary of the Grant Date (rounded down to the nearest whole
share, except for the last vesting installment which will be rounded up or down, as necessary, to account for any prior fractional shares), in each case provided that you are an
Employee, Non-Employee Director or Consultant (each as defined in TriNet's 2019 Equity Incentive Plan) of the Company or TriNet on such vesting date. The PSUs under the PSU
Award shall, if and when granted by the Committee, be determined based on the Committeed€™s evaluation of the Performance Criteria for the pertinent performance period (in this
case, the 2024 calendar year) set forth in the PSU Award, and shall be subject to a two-year vesting schedule with one-half vesting on December 31, 2025 and one-half vesting on
December 31, 2026, in each case provided that you are an Employee, Non-Employee Director or Consultant (each as defined in TriNet's 2019 Equity Incentive Plan) of the Company or
TriNet on such vesting date.You will be considered for annual or periodic 4€cerefreshd€ equity awards at the same time as the other executives, which will be subject to the terms and
conditions of the Companya€™s equity incentive plan and the grant agreements. Approval of the recommendation of any equity award is in the sole and unreviewable discretion of the
Committee or its subcommittee, the Equity Award Committee (the &4€eEAC4€).2.3 Target Variable Compensation. Each year, you will be eligible to earn an annual performance-based
variable compensation amount based on the achievement of corporate performance goals established by the Company and subject to approval by the Committee and individual
performance goals and objectives, with the target amount for such variable compensation established in the Company's annual executive bonus plan (the &€ceTarget Variable
Compensation"). For 2024, your Target Variable Compensation shall be 100% of your annual base salary prorated from the Effective Date, subject to the achievement of the corporate
and individual performance goals and objectives. Achievement against goals and the actual amount of the Target Variable Compensation earned will be determined by the Company, in
its sole discretion, and will be subject to the approval of the Committee. In order to earn and be paid such variable compensation, you must remain an active employee throughout the



full-time period for which the Target Variable Compensation is paid, and for which time period the Company and the Committee assesses performance and the related compensation
amounts, and you must be employed and in good standing on the date of Target Variable Compensation distribution. Any earned Target Variable Compensation shall be paid within
thirty (30) days following its determination and approval by the Committee.2.4 Sign-On Bonus. You will be eligible for a cash bonus in the amount of Two Hundred Seventy Five
Thousand Dollars ($275,000.00) less applicable taxes, deductions and withholdings, to be paid in one lump sum on or before July 31, 2024 (the "Sign-On Bonus"), provided you remain
employed with the Company on that date and have not indicated intent to terminate your employment. In the event you voluntarily terminate your employment within two years of the
Effective Date, you will be responsible for immediate repayment of a pro-rated amount of the Sign-On Bonus to the Company.2.5 Company Benefits.(a) Standard Company Benefits.
You will be eligible to participate in the Company's standard employee benefits plans that are available to employees generally in the U.S., as in effect from time to time, subject to the
terms and conditions of such plans.(b) Severance Benefits. The Committee has designated you as a Participant in the TriNet Group, Inc. Amended and Restated Executive Severance
Benefit Plan (the &€ceSeverance Plana€), a copy of which is attached hereto as Annex A, which shall be the only severance benefits from the Company to which you shall be entitled.
2.6 Expense Reimbursements. You will be eligible for reimbursement of eligible business expenses in accordance with the Companya€™s expense reimbursement program. For the
avoidance of doubt, to the extent that any reimbursements payable by the Company to you under this Agreement or otherwise are subject to the provisions of Section 409A of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), any such reimbursements will be paid no later than December 31 of the year following the year in which the expense was
incurred, the amount of expenses reimbursed in one year will not affect the amount eligible for reimbursement in any subsequent year, and the right to reimbursement will not be
subject to liquidation or exchange for another benefit.3. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION/RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS. As a condition of your continued employment, you must sign
and comply with the Restrictive Covenants and Invention Disclosure Agreement (the &€eRCAIDA&€) attached hereto as Annex B. 4. GENERAL PROVISIONS.4.1 Notices. Any notices
provided hereunder must be in writing and will be deemed effective upon the earlier of personal delivery (including, personal delivery, email and facsimile transmission), delivery by
express delivery service (e.g. Federal Express), or the third day after mailing by first class mail, to the Company at its primary office location and to Executive at their address as listed
on the Company payroll (which address may be changed by either Party by written notice).4.2 Severability. Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement will be interpreted in
such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect under any applicable
law or rule in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability will not affect any other provision or any other jurisdiction, and such invalid, illegal or unenforceable
provision will be reformed, construed and enforced in such jurisdiction so as to render it valid, legal, and enforceable consistent with the intent of the Parties insofar as possible.4.3
Waiver. If either Party should waive any breach of any provisions of this Agreement, they or it will not thereby be deemed to have waived any preceding or succeeding breach of the
same or any other provision of this Agreement.4.4 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including its annexes and exhibits, constitutes the entire agreement between Executive and the
Company regarding the subject matter hereof. As of the Effective Date, this Agreement supersedes and replaces any and all other agreements, promises, or representations, written or
otherwise, between Executive and the Company with regard to this subject matter. This Agreement is entered into without reliance on any agreement, promise, or representation,
other than those expressly contained or incorporated herein, and, except for those changes expressly reserved to the Companya€™s or Boardd€™ s discretion in this Agreement, the
terms of this Agreement cannot be modified or amended except in a writing signed by Executive and a duly authorized officer of the Company which is approved by the Board.4.5
Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in separate counterparts, any one of which need not contain signatures of more than one Party, but all of which taken together will
constitute one and the same Agreement. Signatures transmitted via facsimile will be deemed the equivalent of originals.4.6 Headings and Construction. The headings of the sections
hereof are inserted for convenience only and will not be deemed to constitute a part hereof or to affect the meaning thereof. For purposes of construction of this Agreement, any
ambiguities will not be construed against either Party as the drafter.4.7 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement is intended to bind and inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by
Executive, the Company, and their respective successors, assigns, heirs, executors and administrators, except that Executive may not assign any of their duties hereunder and they
may not assign any of their rights hereunder without the written consent of the Company.4.8 Informing Subsequent Employers. If Executived€™ s employment is terminated, the
Company has the right to inform any subsequent employer of Executivea€™s obligations under this Agreement, and may send a copy of these terms of employment to that
employer.4.9 Attorney Fees. If either Party hereto brings any action to enforce their or its rights hereunder, the prevailing Party in any such action will be entitled to recover their or
its reasonable attorneysa€™ fees and costs incurred in connection with such action.4.10 Arbitration. To provide a mechanism for rapid and economical dispute resolution, Executive
and the Company agree that any and all disputes, claims, or causes of action, in law or equity, arising from or relating to this Agreement (including the Release) or its enforcement,
performance, breach, or interpretation, or arising from or relating to Executived€™s employment with the Company or the termination of Executived€™s employment with the
Company, will be resolved, to the fullest extent permitted by law, by final, binding, and confidential arbitration held in Alameda County, California and conducted by JAMS, Inc. (&€ce
JAMS &€), under its then applicable JAMS Employment Arbitration Rules and Procedures. By agreeing to this arbitration procedure, both Executive and the Company waive the right to
resolve any such dispute through a trial by jury or judge or by administrative proceeding. Executive will have the right to be represented by legal counsel at any arbitration proceeding
at their expense. The arbitrator will: (a) have the authority to compel adequate discovery for the resolution of the dispute and to award such relief as would otherwise be available
under applicable law in a court proceeding; and (b) issue a written statement signed by the arbitrator regarding the disposition of each claim and the relief, if any, awarded as to each
claim, the reasons for the award, and the arbitratora€™s essential findings and conclusions on which the award is based. The Company will bear all fees for the arbitration, except for
any attorneysa€™ fees or costs associated with Executived€™s personal representation. The arbitrator, and not a court, will also be authorized to determine whether the provisions of
this paragraph apply to a dispute, controversy or claim sought to be resolved in accordance with these arbitration procedures. Notwithstanding the provisions of this paragraph, the
Parties are not prohibited from seeking injunctive relief in a court of appropriate jurisdiction to prevent irreparable harm on any basis, pending the outcome of arbitration. Any awards
or orders in such arbitrations may be entered and enforced as judgments in the federal and the state courts of any competent jurisdiction.4.11 Governing Law. All questions
concerning the construction, validity and interpretation of this Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of California without regard to conflicts of laws principles.IN
WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this first amended and restated employment agreement effective as of the Effective Date. TRINET USA, INC._/s/ Michael Q.

Simonds Michael Q. SimondsPresident & Chief Executive OfficerEXECUTIVE /s/ Timothy N. Nimmer Timothy N. NimmerANNEX ATRINET GROUP,
INC. AMENDED AND RESTATED EXECUTIVE SEVERANCE BENEFIT PLAN|[Separately filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as Exhibit 10.5 to the Form 10-Q, filed on
April 30, 2018.]TriNet Group, Inc.Amended and Restated Severance Benefit PlanParticipation NoticeTo: Timothy N. NimmerDate: May 6, 2024TriNet Group, Inc. (the &€ceCompanya<€)
has adopted the TriNet Group, Inc. Amended and Restated Executive Severance Benefit Plan (the 4€cePlana€). The Company is providing you this Participation Notice to inform you
that you have been designated as a &€ceParticipanta€ under, the Plan. A copy of the Plan document is attached to this Participation Notice. The terms and conditions of your
participation in the Plan are as set forth in the Plan and this Participation Notice, which together constitute the Summary Plan Description for the Plan.You understand that by
accepting your status as a Participant in the Plan, you are waiving your rights to receive any severance benefits on any type of termination of employment under any other contract or
agreement with the Company.By accepting participation, you represent that you have either consulted your personal tax or financial planning advisor about the tax consequences of
your participation in the Plan, or you have knowingly declined to do so.Please return a signed copy of this Participation Notice to Catherine Wragg at catherine.wragg@trinet.com and
retain a copy of this Participation Notice, along with the Plan document, for your records. TriNet Group, Inc.Signature:Printed Name:Title:ParticipantSignature:Printed Name: Timothy
N. NimmerANNEX BRESTRICTIVE COVENANTS AND INVENTION DISCLOSURE AGREEMENTRESTRICTIVE COVENANTS AND INVENTION DISCLOSURE AGREEMENTAs
consideration for, among other things, my employment or continued employment after the date of this Agreement, all compensation now or hereafter paid to me, including but not
limited to salary, commissions, bonus awards, insurance and other benefits, and all other forms and types of compensation and benefits, I agree to the terms and conditions of this
Restrictive Covenants and Invention Disclosure Agreement (3€eRCAIDA&E or 4€eAgreementd€) as follows: 1. Maintaining Confidential Company Information. A.I acknowledge and
agree that during my employment with TriNet USA, Inc. or any of its successors, subsidiaries, assigns, and related companies, including TriNet Group, Inc. (collectively, the
a€ceCompanyéa€), I will have access to, receive and/or will review the Companya€™s confidential or proprietary information or trade secrets (collectively, a&€ceConfidential
Informationa€). &€ceConfidential Informationa€ shall include, but not be limited to, the following types of non-public information in any form:Trade secrets; research and development
plans or projects; marketing, sales, financial, product and customer data and reports; computer materials such as software programs, instructions, source and object code, and
printouts; information regarding the Companya€™s products, prospective products, inventions, developments, and discoveries; data compilations; development databases; business
improvements; business plans (whether pursued or not); budgets; unpublished financial statements; licenses, including the terms thereof; fee agreements and vendor contracts;
pricing models, formulas, and strategy; cost data and analyses; information relating to the skills and compensation of other employees of the Company; the personal information and
protected health information of other employees of the Company which I would not have obtained absent my employment with the Company, including worksite employees brought to
TriNet by its customers; lists of former, current and potential customers of TriNet and all non-public information about them such as contact person(s), pricing, product and/or service
needs or requirements, profitability, cost to service, and other terms; marketing strategies, forecasts and other marketing information and techniques; employment and recruiting
strategies and processes; sales practices, strategies, methods, forecasts, compensation plans, and other sales information; investor information; and the identities of the Companya€™s
suppliers, vendors, and contractors, and all information about the Companya€ ™ s relationships with its suppliers, vendors and contractors such as contact person(s), pricing and other
terms. For clarity, &€ceConfidential Information&€ is limited to information that is known only to the Company and its customers, vendors and/or suppliers and that is not otherwise
readily ascertainable to the public. To the extent that I have any question as to whether any information constitutes Confidential Information, or whether any email, spreadsheet,
PowerPoint, file, or other document contains Confidential Information, I agree to obtain the express written permission of my manager before transmitting, using or disclosing the
information for any purpose that is, in whole or in part, outside of my assigned job duties or responsibilities. In no event shall I transmit, use, or disclose Confidential Information for
any purpose other than a purpose that is designed to be in the best interest of the Company. Expressly excluded from the definition of 4€ceConfidential Informationa€ is any
information that (a) through no fault of mine is or becomes readily ascertainable to the public and/or is readily and lawfully available to the public through a public media source such
as television, radio or a publicly-available magazine or newspaper; (b) I lawfully obtained and possessed prior to my employment with the Company; (c) I lawfully obtained after
termination of my employment with the Company from a third party who was lawfully in possession of the information and permitted to disclose it to me; (d) arises from my general
training, knowledge, skill, or experience, whether gained on the job or otherwise; or (e) I otherwise have a right to disclose as legally protected conduct. I understand and acknowledge
that this definition and description of Confidential Information includes information in any and all forms, whether original, duplicated, compiled, aggregated, segregated, or
summarized; and whether on paper, electronically stored, conveyed verbally, residing in my memory, or reproduced from my memory. I agree that if information qualifies as
Confidential Information, it does not lose its confidentiality simply because I am able to remember it. B. During my employment with the Company, I shall not directly or indirectly
transmit, disclose, furnish, or use any Confidential Information other than as reasonably needed to perform my job duties and responsibilities for the Company. I acknowledge and
agree that I am only permitted to transmit, disclose, furnish, and use Confidential Information if, in so doing, I am acting in good faith and in the best interests of the Company. Once
my employment with the Company ends, I shall not directly or indirectly transmit, use, furnish, or disclose any Confidential Information to any person or entity for any reason. C. I
acknowledge and agree that all Confidential Information is proprietary and shall remain the exclusive property of the Company. Accordingly, within ten calendar days of the earlier of
(1) my providing notice of resignation to the Company; (2) the Companya€™s notice to me of the separation of my employment; or (3) the end of my employment with the Company for
any other reason or under any other circumstance, I shall return to the Company any and all Confidential Information in my possession, custody or control, including, but not limited
to, all Confidential Information contained in any email, word processing document, PowerPoint presentation, spreadsheet, text, instant message or other electronically-stored
document or electronic data storage media, without exception. This covenant to return Confidential Information includes all Confidential Information in my possession, custody, or
control regardless of where it may reside or be stored. I acknowledge and agree that after my employment with the Company terminates, I shall not be permitted to retain in my
possession, custody or control any documents or materials containing Confidential Information, whether such documents or materials are originals, copies, compilations, summaries,
analyses, or otherwise.D. My obligations under this Paragraph 1 are in addition to, and not in limitation or preemption of, all other obligations of confidentiality I may have, including
any obligations under the common law, statutory law or under general legal or equitable principles, or under any other Agreement [ may have with the Company.E. I agree that the
terms of this Paragraph 1 are reasonable and essential for the protection of the goodwill, trade secrets, proprietary data and confidential information of the Company; that the
Companya€™s Confidential Information provides the Company with a competitive advantage in the marketplace; that activity in violation of this Paragraph 1 is likely to cause
substantial and irreparable harm to the Company; and that the Company has legitimate business reasons to seek protection against improper and unauthorized disclosures of
Confidential Information. I further agree that the terms of this Paragraph 1 are reasonably narrow to protect the Companya€™ s interests and will not impair, hinder, hamper, or
otherwise impact my ability to obtain other gainful employment after my employment with the Company terminates.F. In the event I receive a subpoena, deposition notice, interview
request, or other process or order to testify regarding or to disclose Confidential Information, I shall within five (5) business days of receiving such subpoena, deposition notice, or
request: (i) notify the Companya€™s Legal Department in writing of the item, document, or information sought by such subpoena, deposition notice, interview request, or other
process or order; (ii) furnish the Companya€™s Legal Department with a copy of said subpoena, deposition notice, interview request, or other process or order; and (iii) provide
reasonable cooperation with respect to any procedure that the Company may initiate to protect Confidential Information or other interests. If the Company objects to the subpoena,
deposition notice, interview request, process, or order, I shall cooperate to ensure that there shall be no disclosure until the court or other applicable entity has ruled upon the
objection, and then only in accordance with the ruling so made. If no such objection is made despite a reasonable opportunity to do so, I shall be entitled to comply with the subpoena,
deposition, notice, interview request, or other process or order provided that I have fulfilled the above obligations.G. Pursuant to the Defend Trade Secrets Act, I understand that an
individual shall not be held criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state trade secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret that: (a) is made (i) in confidence to a federal, state
or local government official, either directly or indirectly, or to an attorney, and (ii) solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; or (b) is made in a



complaint or other document that is filed under seal in a lawsuit or other proceeding. Further, I understand that an individual who files a lawsuit for retaliation by an employer for
reporting a suspected violation of law may disclose the employera€™s trade secret to the attorney of the individual and use the trade secret information in the court proceeding, if the
individual (a) files any document containing the trade secret under seal and (b) does not disclose the trade secret, except pursuant to court order.H. Notwithstanding anything in this
Agreement or otherwise, I understand that:(1) I have the right under federal law to certain protections for cooperating with or reporting legal violations to the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the a€ceSECa€) and/or its Office of the Whistleblower, as well as certain other governmental authorities and self-regulatory organizations, and as such, nothing in this
Agreement or otherwise is intended to prohibit me from disclosing this Agreement to, or from cooperating with or reporting violations to, the SEC or any other such governmental
authority or self-regulatory organization, and I may do so without notifying the Company. The Company may not retaliate against me for any of these activities, and nothing in this
Agreement or otherwise would require me to inform the Company of any of these activities or waive any monetary award or other payment that I might become entitled to from the
SEC or any other governmental authority.(2) Nothing in this Paragraph 1 or this Agreement shall limit in any way any statutory right I may have to disclose or use information under
Section 7 of the United States National Labor Relations Act or any other applicable law. I further understand and acknowledge that nothing in this Paragraph 1 or this Agreement
prohibits me from disclosing information about my wages or terms and conditions of employment or from disclosing unlawful acts in the workplace such as sexual harassment,
discrimination, or retaliation. I understand and acknowledge that the Company will not take any disciplinary action or other adverse employment action against me for properly
exercising my legal rights.(3) Nothing in this Paragraph 1 or this Agreement shall preclude me from maintaining, possessing, or disclosing at any time my own personal information,
including without limitation my pay history, wage statements, and tax-related documents and materials, even after my employment with the Company terminates.(4) If I am unsure or
uncertain as to whether information constitutes a trade secret, I will contact the Companya€™s Legal Department to discuss the issue and I agree that I will not transmit, disclose, or
use the information in question without first obtaining express written consent from the Companya€ ™s authorized legal representative.2. Third-Party Information.A. I acknowledge
and agree that the Company has in the past received, and in the future will receive, information from customers, vendors and other third parties that is confidential, proprietary, or
that the third party does not want disclosed outside of the Company (&€0eThird-Party Informationa€). I understand that the Company typically receives such information under a legal
duty to maintain its confidence, and that the Company has a legitimate business interest in ensuring that it does not disclose Third-Party Information to persons outside of the
Company, to persons within the Company who are not authorized to access or use it, or to any party who seeks to use or disclose it for an improper or unauthorized purpose. B. During
my employment with the Company, I shall not directly or indirectly transmit, disclose, furnish, or use any Third-Party Information other than as I am expressly authorized and as
reasonably needed to perform my job duties and responsibilities for the Company. I acknowledge and agree that I am only permitted to transmit, disclose, furnish, and use Third-Party
Information if, in so doing, I am authorized to do so, act in good faith, and do so in the best interests of the Company. Once my employment with the Company ends, I shall not directly
or indirectly transmit, use, furnish, or disclose any Third-Party Information to any person or entity for any reason. C. Within ten calendar days of the earlier of (1) my providing notice
of resignation to the Company; (2) the Companya€™s notice to me of the separation of my employment; or (3) the end of my employment with the Company for any other reason or
under any other circumstance, I shall return to the Company any and all Third-Party Information in my possession, custody or control, including, but not limited to, all Third-Party
Information contained in any email, word processing document, PowerPoint presentation, spreadsheet, text, instant message, any hard copy or other electronically-stored document,
without exception. This covenant to return Confidential Information includes all Confidential Information in my possession, custody, or control regardless of where it may reside or be
stored. I further acknowledge and agree that I shall not be permitted to retain in my possession, custody or control any documents or materials containing Third-Party Information,
whether such documents or materials are original, copies, compilations, summaries, analyses, or otherwise.D. My obligations under this Paragraph 2 are in addition to, and not in
limitation or preemption of, all other obligations of confidentiality I may have, including any obligations under the common law, statutory law or under general legal or equitable
principles, or under any other Agreement I may have with the Company.E. I agree that the terms of this Paragraph 2 are reasonable and essential for the protection of Third-Party
Information; that activity in violation of this Paragraph 2 may cause substantial and irreparable harm to the Company and/or its customers, vendors and other third parties; and that
the Company has legitimate business reasons to seek protection against improper disclosures of Third-Party Information entrusted to the Company. I further agree that the terms of
this Paragraph 2 are reasonably narrow to protect the Companya€™s interests and will not impair, hinder, hamper, or otherwise impact my ability to obtain other gainful employment
after my employment with the Company terminates.3. No Improper Use of Information of Prior Employers and Others. During my employment with the Company, I will not improperly
use or disclose any confidential information or trade secrets of any former employer or any other person to whom I have an obligation of confidentiality, and I will not bring on to
Company premises or place on any Company hardware, software, or equipment any proprietary or confidential information or property belonging to any former employer or any other
person to whom I have an obligation of confidentiality (unless consented to in writing by that former employer or person). I will use in the performance of my duties only information
which is generally known and used by persons with training and experience comparable to my own, which is common knowledge in the industry or otherwise legally in the public
domain, or which is otherwise provided or developed by the Company. I represent and warrant that my employment with the Company will not violate or breach any agreement I have
entered with any other person or entity. I further represent and warrant that I have disclosed to the Company, in writing, any restrictive covenants I may be bound to, including any
non-disclosure, non-solicitation, and non-competition covenants.4. Return of Company Property. In addition to the obligations in Paragraphs 1 and 2 above, when I leave the employ of
the Company, I will deliver to the Company (and will not keep in my possession, copy, recreate or deliver to anyone else in whole or in part) any and all items I received from the
Company including but not limited to files, drawings, notes, notebooks, memoranda, specifications, records, business plans and forecasts, financial information, sales materials,
customer and prospective customer lists, reports, programs, proposals, specifications computer-recorded information (including emails), tangible property (including but not limited to
laptop/desktop computers, flash drives, CD-ROMs, cell phones, smartphones, tablets and other PDA devices), building entry/access cards, corporate credit cards, identification badges
and keys, devices, and documents, together with all copies thereof (in whatever medium recorded) and any other property or material containing, summarizing, characterizing or
disclosing Confidential Information or Third-Party Information. I further agree that any property owned by the Company, wherever located, including laptops, cellular telephones,
iPads, thumb drives, CDs, disks and any other storage media, computers, filing cabinets, desks/desk drawers, or lockers, is subject to inspection by Company personnel at any time
during and after my employment, with or without notice.5. No Conflicting Employment; Solicitation Restrictions. A. While employed by the Company, I will not, without the
Companya€™s prior written consent, directly or indirectly engage in any employment, consulting, contracting, soliciting, sales, marketing or other activity wherein I may use or
disclose the Companya€™s Confidential Information or conflict with any of my obligations under this Agreement. I agree that while employed by the Company I owe the Company a
duty of loyalty and a duty to act in good faith, whether such duty is assumed or implied in law. Thus, during my employment with the Company, I will not directly or indirectly,
individually or in combination with any other employee, individual or competitor of the Company, compete against the Company. B. During any period in which I am employed by the
Company and for a period of one year thereafter, I shall not, directly or indirectly, take any action or engage in any conduct intended or reasonably calculated to solicit, approach,
recruit, induce or urge any employee, independent contractor, or agent of the Company to discontinue, in whole or in part, his/her employment relationship with the Company. The
restrictions in this paragraph apply only to those employees, independent contractors, or agents of the Company who at any time during the twelve months preceding termination of
my employment with the Company: (a) I worked with in my department, (b) I had material contact with, or (c) I supervised. C. During the period of my employment with the Company,
and for a period of one year after my termination for any reason, I shall not directly or indirectly, for myself or on behalf of any other person or entity, solicit any entity that, at the
time, has a contractual relationship with the Company for the purpose of (i) providing or selling services, goods or products that are the same as or similar to the kinds or types of
services, goods or products being provided or sold by the Company, or (ii) entering into or seeking to enter into any contract or other arrangement with any such entity for the
performance or sale of services or goods and products of a nature being provided or sold by the Company. I understand that my agreement &€cenot to solicita€ as set forth in this
paragraph means that I will not, directly or indirectly, initiate any contact or communication with any entity that, at the time, has a contractual relationship with the Company for the
purpose of soliciting, inviting, encouraging, recommending or requesting any such entity to do business with me and/or any other person or entity. This Paragraph 5(C) shall be limited
to (i) entities which I directly solicited, assisted, or otherwise provided services to or for at any time during the last twelve months of my employment with the Company and/or (ii)
entities for which I received commissions or retention compensation from the Company at any time during the last twelve months of my employment with the Company.D. I
acknowledge and agree that, due to nature of the Companya€™ s business, the restrictive covenants contained in Paragraphs 1, 2 and 5 are essential for the reasonable, proper and
adequate protection of the Companya€™s business, goodwill, trade secrets, proprietary data and confidential information. I further acknowledge and agree that the covenants in
Paragraphs 1, 2 and 5 are narrowly tailored, are not overly broad or unduly burdensome, and will not prevent me from earning a livelihood following the termination of my employment
with the Company. 6. Ownership of Discoveries & Results and Proceeds. Any inventions (whether or not patentable), discoveries, designs, business methods, improvements or works of
authorship made by me, alone or jointly with others, and all results and proceeds of my services to the Company (&€ceResults and Proceedsé€) at any time during my employment by
the Company which are made, conceived, reduced to practice or learned by me in the course and scope of my employment or with the use of the Companya€™s time, property
(whether tangible or intangible), materials or facilities, or relating to any subject matter with which my work for the Company is concerned, are hereby irrevocably and unconditionally
assigned to the Company for its benefit and shall be the exclusive property of the Company. Any copyrightable subject matter included in the Results and Proceeds shall be &€ceworks
made for hirea€ as that phrase is defined in the Copyright Act of 1976 (17 U.S.C. 101 et seq.). If it is ever determined that any Results and Proceeds cannot be considered a€ceworks
made for hirea€ or otherwise cannot be fully assigned to the Company under applicable law, I hereby grant to the Company in perpetuity and on an exclusive and irrevocable basis all
worldwide rights of every kind and nature, whether now known or hereafter recognized, in and to such Results and Proceeds to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law.
Without limitation of the foregoing, the Company has the exclusive right to obtain and own all patents and copyright registrations with respect to such Results and Proceeds. Neither
the expiration nor the termination of this Agreement shall affect the Companya€™s ownership of or rights in the Results and Proceeds or any intellectual property rights therein. To
facilitate the determination of whether any invention, discovery, designs, business methods, improvement or work of authorship is properly transferable to the Company, I will
promptly advise it of all inventions, discoveries, improvements or works of authorship made, conceived, reduced to practice or learned by me during the term of my employment and
for six months after termination of my employment. I understand that my obligations under this Paragraph 6 do not apply to any invention that qualifies fully as a non-assignable
invention under any law of any jurisdiction, in each case, to the extent applicable to my inventions. I have completed Exhibit A, which lists all inventions, improvements and other
works (&€cePre-existing Worka€) that I have alone or jointly with others, conceived, developed, reduced to practice prior to the commencement of my employment with the Company,
that I consider to be my property or the property of third parties.I hereby represent and warrant that there is no Pre-existing Work other than as set forth in the attached Exhibit A. If
Exhibit A is not completed in full, and included herein, there is no Pre-existing Work for which I claim ownership. I agree that I will not incorporate any Pre-existing Work into any
Company works without first obtaining the express, written approval of the Company in each case. To the extent that I incorporate any Pre-existing Work into any Company works, I
hereby represent and warrant that I have all necessary rights and authority to do so and hereby grant to Company the perpetual, irrevocable, non-exclusive, worldwide, royalty-free
and sublicensable right to use and exploit such Pre-existing Work for any and all purposes in connection with the Company's and its affiliates' and their respective successors' and
assigns' current and future businesses.7. Perfection and Enforcement of Proprietary Rights. I will assist the Company in every proper way at the Company's request and direction to
obtain, perfect and enforce United States, Canadian and foreign patent, copyright, mask work and other intellectual property rights (4€ceProprietary Rightsa€) relating to Company
information and/or Results and Proceeds in any and all countries. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, I will execute, verify and deliver such documents and perform such
other acts (including appearances as a witness) as the Company may reasonably request for use in applying for, obtaining, perfecting, evidencing, sustaining and enforcing such
Proprietary Rights and the assignment thereof. My obligation to assist the Company pursuant to this Paragraph 7 shall continue following the termination of my employment, but the
Company shall compensate me at a reasonable rate to be determined by the Company consistent with its ordinary practices after my termination for the time actually spent by me at
the Companya€™s request for such assistance. If the Company or its designee is unable because of my mental or physical incapacity or unavailability or for any other reason to obtain
my signature for any document required by this Paragraph 7, then I hereby irrevocably designate and appoint the Company and its duly authorized officers and agents as my agent and
attorney in fact, to act for and in my behalf and stead to execute and file any such documents with the same legal force and effect as if originally executed by me, and I declare that this
power of attorney shall be deemed to be coupled with an interest and irrevocable, and may be exercised during any subsequent legal incapacity.8. No Continued Employment; Exit
Interview. I understand that my employment with the Company is at-will and that this Agreement does not confer any right of continued employment by the Company and does not
limit in any way the Companya€™s right or my right to terminate my employment at any time and for any reason or no reason, with or without cause in accordance with applicable law.
In the event my employment with the Company terminates for any reason, I will, if requested, participate in an exit interview with the Company and reaffirm in writing my obligations
as set forth in this Agreement (though such re-affirmance is not required in order for the terms of this Agreement to remain valid and enforceable). I agree to provide the Company
with the name and address of my new employer, and consent to the Companya€™s notification to my new employer of my rights and obligations under this Agreement, including that I
agree the Company may provide a copy of this Agreement to any such new employer.9. Legal and Equitable Remedies. A. In the event I breach or threaten to breach, or the Company
reasonably believes I am about to breach, any of the terms, conditions or restrictive covenants in Paragraphs 1, 2 or 5 of this Agreement, I agree that the Company will be entitled to
injunctive relief as well as an equitable accounting of all earnings, profits and other benefits relating to or arising from a violation of this Agreement, which rights shall be cumulative
and in addition to any other rights or remedies to which the Company may be entitled at law or in equity. I acknowledge and agree that a breach of Paragraphs 1, 2 or 5 will cause the
Company to suffer immediate and irreparable harm and that money damages will not be adequate to compensate the Company or to preserve the status quo. Therefore, I consent to
the issuance of a temporary restraining order, preliminary injunction, and other injunctive relief necessary to enforce this Agreement. B. In the event of a breach of Paragraph 5, the
Company shall be entitled to an injunction, judgment, or other order that requires me to comply with the breached term, condition or covenant for a time period equal to the period of
the breach. The relief provided for in this Paragraph 9(B) shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, all other rights and remedies available at law and equity.C. I agree that any
application for temporary restraining order and/or temporary or preliminary injunctive relief shall be adjudicated exclusively in a court of competent jurisdiction, even if the Company



and I are parties to an arbitration agreement that otherwise includes disputes under this Agreement. I agree that the injunctive relief to which I consented above, under the
circumstances addressed in this Section 9(C), shall be granted by a court of competent jurisdiction pending arbitration on the merits to preserve the status quo pending completion of
such arbitration.D. I agree that in any proceeding alleging breach of this Agreement (whether in court or in arbitration), the Company and I each shall have the right to engage in
deposition and document discovery, and the Company shall have the right to conduct forensic examination(s) of any computers and/or electronic devices in my possession, custody or
control, if the Company reasonably believes such devices contain Confidential Information or other Company property. I further agree that in connection with any application for
injunctive relief to enforce this Agreement (including without limitation any application for temporary and/or preliminary injunctive relief), the foregoing discovery shall be conducted
on an expedited basis, including expedited document and deposition discovery.E. If any dispute under this Agreement is subject to resolution by arbitration under an agreement or
program agreed to by me with the Company, I understand and agree that my agreement to engage in expedited discovery as outlined in Section 9(D) is an essential term of the
partiesa€™ arbitration agreement, and these provisions are intended to supplement and modify any applicable arbitration rules which may be incorporated into any arbitration
agreement that is applicable to the dispute. Accordingly, both I and the Company request that any court of competent jurisdiction order such expedited discovery in order to enforce
the partiesa€™ arbitration agreement as written and in accordance with its terms.F. I understand and agree that: all of the foregoing remedies are expressly without prejudice to any
other rights and remedies that the Company may have for a breach of this Agreement (including recovery of monetary damages, which may include clawback or disgorgement of any
compensation paid during any period of disloyalty or breach of this Agreement).G. If a lawsuit is brought that relates to or arises out of this Agreement or my employment with or
termination from the Company, the prevailing party in that lawsuit shall be awarded its reasonable attorneysa€™ fees and expenses. 10. Modification & Severability; Other Restrictive
Covenants. If any section, provision, paragraph, phrase, word, and/or line (collectively 4€ceProvisiona€) of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable, then I agree that this Agreement
will be deemed amended to the extent necessary to render the otherwise unenforceable Provision, and the rest of the Agreement, valid and enforceable. If a court declines to amend
this Agreement as provided herein, the invalidity or unenforceability of any Provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining Provisions, which
shall be enforced as if the offending Provision had not been included in this Agreement.I further agree that if one or more post-employment restrictive covenants in this Agreement are
found unenforceable (despite, and after application of, any applicable right to reformation that could add or renew enforceability), then, and only then, any provision(s) of any prior
agreement between the parties that would provide for restriction(s) on the same or substantially similar post-employment conduct shall not be considered superseded and shall remain
in effect so as to afford the Company the broadest protections allowed under applicable law.11. Binding Effect and Assignability. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors, assigns, affiliated entities, and any party-in-interest. I agree that, should the Company be
acquired by, merge with, or otherwise combine with another corporation or business entity, the surviving entity will have all rights to enforce the terms of this Agreement as if it were
the Company itself enforcing the Agreement. I understand and agree that this Agreement applies no matter which company or affiliate within the Company I may be employed with at
any given time. I expressly agree that this Agreement may be enforced against me by any Company affiliate, without the need for any formal assignment of this Agreement, but in the
event such an assignment is made, I hereby consent to such assignment without any further assent from me required to make such assignment binding and effective. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, I understand and agree that I may not assign this Agreement. 12. Survival. The provisions of this Agreement shall survive the termination of my employment, regardless
of the reason for the termination, and shall also survive the assignment of this Agreement by the Company to any successor in interest or other assignee.13. Waiver & Amendment. I
agree and understand that a waiver by the Company of the breach of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach, nor shall
recourse to any remedy hereunder be deemed a waiver of any other or further relief or remedy provided for herein. No waiver shall be effective unless made in writing and signed by
an officer of the Company. The Company shall not be required to give notice to enforce strict adherence to all terms of this Agreement. This Agreement can only be amended or
changed in a writing signed by both parties. 14. Change in Employment. I agree that any subsequent change in my duties or title will not affect in any respect the validity,
enforceability, or scope of this Agreement.15. Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Venue. I understand and agree that in the event of any disputes under this Agreement, then the
following applies:A. The Agreement will be governed by, construed, interpreted, and its validity determined under the laws of the State of Colorado. B. The parties hereby consent to
jurisdiction in such court for such purpose, and I consent to service of process by mail in respect of any such suit, action or proceeding. The parties further agree not to file any action
relating in any way to this Agreement in any court other than as specified in this Section. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, if any dispute under this Agreement is subject to
resolution by arbitration under an agreement or program agreed to by me and the Company, then such arbitration shall be the sole and exclusive venue for adjudicating such disputes,
other than any requests for a temporary restraining order and/or a temporary or preliminary injunction pending arbitration, which are reserved exclusively for adjudication in court
pursuant to Section 9 above even in otherwise arbitrable disputes. I ACKNOWLEDGE THAT I HAVE CAREFULLY READ AND UNDERSTAND THIS AGREEMENT AND ALL OF ITS
TERMS. I FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGE THAT I HAVE RECEIVED A COLORADO NOTICE REGARDING COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE PERTAINING TO THIS AGREEMENT AND ITS
PROVISIONS. I ACKNOWLEDGE THAT I HAVE BEEN PROVIDED AN ADEQUATE OPPORTUNITY TO REVIEW THIS AGREEMENT, TO ASK QUESTIONS ABOUT THIS AGREEMENT
AND TO HAVE A LAWYER OF MY CHOOSING REVIEW THIS AGREEMENT. I AM SIGNING THIS AGREEMENT VOLUNTARILY, AND I VOLUNTARILY CONSENT TO ALL OF THE
TERMS AND CONDITIONS CONTAINED HEREIN. I STIPULATE, ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT THE BENEFITS AND CONSIDERATION THE COMPANY IS PROVIDING TO ME
IN CONNECTION WITH MY EMPLOYMENT ARE SUFFICIENT CONSIDERATION FOR ALL OF THE TERMS IN THIS AGREEMENT.Signature: Timothy N.
NimmerDate: EXHIBIT AINVENTION DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT (IDA)TO: TriNet USA, Inc. and its Subsidiaries, Related Companies, and Divisions
SUBJECT: Previous Inventions, Improvements, Creations or Works I have no inventions to disclose I disclose inventions as described below1.Except as listed in Section 2 below,
the following is a complete list of all inventions, improvements, creations or works that have been made or conceived or first reduced to practice by me alone or jointly with others
prior to my engagement by the Company.

Note- if you require additional
space to list your previous inventions or need to attach additional relevant paperwork, please contact MYHR@trinet.com. 2. Due to a prior confidentiality agreement, I cannot complete
the disclosure in Section 1 above. Instead, I list the inventions, improvements or works generally, and the party(ies) to whom I owe proprietary rights and a duty of confidentiality.
Inventions, Improvements, Creations or WorksPartiesRelationship1234Note- if you require additional space to list your previous inventions or need to attach additional relevant
paperwork, please contact MYHR@trinet.com.I HEREBY REPRESENT AND WARRANT that the contents of this Exhibit A are truthful, accurate and complete. I have carefully read this
Exhibit A and have no disclosures to make other than those included above.Signature: Date: DocumentTRINET GROUP,
INC.INSIDER TRADING ANDMATERIAL NONPUBLIC INFORMATION POLICYPurpose and ScopeAs a public company, TriNet Group, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, &€ceTriNeta€
or the 4€eCompanya€) is subject to various federal and state laws and regulations governing trading in its securities. It is the policy of TriNet to fully comply with these laws and
regulations.This Insider Trading and Material Nonpublic Information Policy (this 4€cePolicya€) provides a general overview of insider trading, the need for confidentiality and
TriNeta€™s prohibition against insider trading and other restrictions with respect to the trading of securities and handling of material nonpublic information. This Policy is divided into
five parts:a€¢Part I is intended to provide a general overview of what constitutes insider trading and material nonpublic information and who is subject to this Policy; &€¢Part II
contains TriNeta€™ s prohibition on insider trading, open and closed trading windows, as well as certain exceptions; a4€¢Part I1I imposes special pre-clearance requirements and
acknowledgement and certification requirements on (i) all members of the Board of Directors of the Company, (ii) all of the Companya€™ s executive officers and Senior Vice
Presidents who report directly to the Companya€™s Chief Executive Officer, and (iii) certain employees or groups of employees of the Company designated in writing by the Chief
Legal Officer of the Company from time to time whose duties may expose them to material nonpublic information (collectively, &€aCovered Personsa€). The Chief Legal Officer of the
Company shall deem who is a necessary and appropriate Covered Person, provided that the Companya€™s a€ceofficersa€ as defined under Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the 4€Exchange Acta€) and members of the Board of Directors of the Company must remain Covered Persons; &€¢Part IV sets out requirements pertaining
to a written plan, contract, instruction, or arrangement under Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act (a &€ceRule 10b5-1 Plana€); and a€¢Part V provides the Companya€™s policies
regarding the use, disclosure and protection of material nonpublic information.TriNet Group, Inc.Insider Trading
PolicyAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAIAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAALastRevised: December 18, 2024Part
I: Overview of Insider Trading &€ceInsider tradinga€ is illegal under federal securities laws, a violation of this Policy and is a top priority for state and federal prosecutors. Criminal
prosecutions for insider trading are commonplace and may result in both fines and imprisonment. a.What is Insider Trading? Insider Trading is generally understood to include (1)
purchasing, selling, donating or otherwise trading in a companya€™s securities while in possession of material nonpublic information; (2) disclosing or 4€cetippingd€ material
nonpublic information to others or recommending the purchase or sale of securities on the basis of such information; or (3) assisting someone who is engaged in any of the above.
There is no 4€cede minimisa€ test. Use of material nonpublic information to gain personal benefit and tipping are as illegal with respect to a few shares of stock as they are with
respect to a large number of shares. You can be held liable both for your own transactions and for transactions effected by others who receive any material nonpublic information from
you or were advised by you to trade when you were in possession of material nonpublic information. b. What is &€ceMaterial Nonpublic Information&€? Information is generally
regarded as &€cemateriala€ if it has market significance. In other words, if public dissemination of information is likely to affect the market price of securities, or if it is otherwise
information that a reasonable investor would want to know before making an investment decision, that information is likely 4&€cematerial.&€ Certainly, if the information makes you
want to trade, it will probably have the same effect on others. Both positive and negative information can be material and, typically, the materiality is judged in hindsight, i.e., only
after someone has traded on the information, the information becomes public and the effect on the market is seemingly apparent. Although by no means an all-inclusive list, and while
highly dependent on facts and circumstances, examples of information that is generally regarded as material include: &€¢financial performance and results, key metrics, financial
condition, earnings pre-announcements, forecasts, projections or guidance, particularly if inconsistent with the Companya€™s guidance or the expectations of the investment
community;&€¢changes in independent auditors, or notification that the Company may no longer rely on an audit report;a€¢business plans or budgets;a€¢events that may result in
restatements of financial results, material impairments, the creation of a significant reserve or write-off, restructurings or other adjustments to the financial statements;a€¢impending
bankruptcy or financial liquidity problems;&€ ¢analyst upgrades or downgrades of a company or one or more of its securities;a€¢proposals, plans or agreements, even if preliminary in
nature, involving mergers, acquisitions or dispositions; 4€¢significant changes to, or introduction of, products or services; a4€¢significant events affecting a company's operations,
including the breach of information systems that compromises the functioning of a company's information or other systems or results in the exposure or loss of customer, employee or
worksite employee information;2&€¢significant business developments involving business relationships, including the gain or loss of or the execution, modification, renewal or
termination of an important contract or order with a substantial customer, partner, supplier or other business partner;a€¢significant information relating to the Companya€™s
products or services, such as new products or services, major modifications, significant pricing changes or other announcements of a significant nature;4€¢changes in key personnel,
such as changes in senior management, board of director changes or material reductions in force; &€ ¢major events involving securities of the Company, including calls of securities for
redemption, changes in dividend policy, stock splits or stock repurchase programs, modification to the rights of security holders or notice of delisting;&€¢new public or private equity
or debt offerings or significant borrowings; a€¢significant legal or regulatory developments, whether positive or negative, actual or threatened, including litigation or investigation or
inquiry by governmental agencies or positive or negative developments in existing litigation or investigations or resolutions thereto; 4€¢updates regarding any prior material
disclosure that has materially changed;a€¢the existence of a special closed trading window; anda€¢any other facts or circumstances which might cause a companya€™s financial
results to be substantially affected. When in doubt about whether particular information is material, you should either (a) consult the Chief Legal Officer before making any decision to
disclose such information (other than to persons who need to know it in order to fulfill their job responsibilities) or to trade in securities to which that information relates or (b)
presume that the information is material. c. What is &€ceNonpublica€? Information is generally regarded as &€cenonpublica€ if it has not been disseminated in a manner designed to
reach investors generally, and the investors have not been given the time to absorb the information. Filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") and press
releases are generally regarded as public information. However, information obtained in the normal course of employment or through a rumor, tip or workplace gossip is not public
information. As a general rule, information should be considered nonpublic until market open on the second trading day after the information was disseminated to the general public
(i.e., outside TriNet) through SEC filings or press releases. As with questions of materiality, when in doubt about whether particular information is nonpublic, you should either (a)
consult the Chief Legal Officer before making any decision to disclose such information (other than to persons who need to know it in order to fulfill their job responsibilities) or to
trade in securities to which that information relates or (b) presume that the information is nonpublic and treat it as confidential. d. What are &€ceSecuritiesa€? a€ceSecuritiesa€
include stocks (common and preferred), debt securities (including bonds, notes and debentures), options, restricted stock units, warrants and other convertible securities, as well as
derivative instruments. The definition of securities also includes securities in which you or your Related Persons (as defined below) have any beneficial or other interest, or over which
you exercise investment control, including:34€¢Securities held in joint accounts or accounts of persons or entities controlled directly or indirectly by you or your Related Persons;a€
¢Securities for which you or your Related Persons act as trustee, executor or custodian; anda€¢Any other securities over which you or your Related Persons exercise any direct or
indirect control. e. What is 4€ceTippinga€? a€ceTippingad€ occurs when you share nonpublic information with others (commonly referred to as a &€cetippeed€), who trade on the basis
of this information. &€¢ Tipping may include conversations at social or business gatherings. It does not matter if you share the material nonpublic information inadvertently. 4€¢
Tippees may not do anything with material nonpublic information that the original person from whom they received the material nonpublic information is prohibited from doing.
Tippees who share or trade on the basis of material nonpublic information are violating securities laws. f. What is &€ceTrade,a€ &€ceTrading,a€ or a &€ Transactiona€? a€mTradea€ or
a€cetransactiona€ includes a purchase, sale, loan, donation, gift or any other transfer or disposition of securities or any offer to engage in the transactions above. This includes
contracts to purchase/sell or otherwise acquire or dispose of a security. This also includes any other arrangement that generates gains or losses from or based on changes in the prices
of securities including derivative securities (for example, exchange-traded put or call options, swaps, caps and collars), hedging and pledging transactions, short sales and certain




arrangements regarding participation in benefit plans. g. Who is subject to this Policy?This Policy applies to all members of TriNeta€™s Board of Directors, all officers and other
employees (including temporary workers or consultants of TriNet and its subsidiaries), as well as members of such personsa€™ immediate family members, other non-family members
of the same household of any of the foregoing individuals, and any other entity that trades in securities of the Company which are beneficially owned by any of the foregoing
individuals (collectively, a&€ceRelated Personsa€). Further, this Policy applies to: 1) any account over which directors, officers or employees (and their Related Persons) have or share
the power, directly or indirectly, to make investment decisions (whether or not such persons have a financial interest in the account) and 2) those accounts established or maintained
by such persons with their consent or knowledge and in which such persons have a direct or indirect financial interest. It is the obligation and responsibility of each director, officer
and employee to act in a manner consistent with this Policy. The Company, in accordance with this Policy, will not engage in transactions in Company securities or securities of any
other company while aware of material nonpublic information relating to the Company or its securities or such other company and its securities, as applicable.During the course of
your employment with the Company or service as a director, you may receive material information that is not yet publicly available (i.e., not disclosed to the public in a press release or
SEC filing) about the Company or about other publicly traded companies with which the Company has business dealings. Because of your access to this information, you are
4prohibited from buying, selling, donating, transferring or otherwise dealing in the Companya€ ™s securities or the securities of such other publicly traded company, or disclosing such
information to a third party who does so, or causes someone else to do so, until such information has been disclosed to the general public. Further, even when you are not in
possession of material nonpublic information, this Policy may restrict you from trading in or transferring the Companya€™s stock during a closed trading window period as defined
below under Parts II and III (as applicable).Part II: Prohibitions on Trading for All Employees, Officers and Directors and Related Personsa.Prohibitions on Insider TradingSubject to
the exceptions expressly set forth in Section (e) below of this Part II, all employees, officers and directors of the Company (including all of their respective Related Persons), who are in
possession of any material nonpublic information are prohibited from: &€¢trading or otherwise engaging in any transaction involving any Company security, whether or not issued by
the Company during any period commencing on the date they become aware of material nonpublic information concerning the Company and ending on the date the information is no
longer material or no longer deemed nonpublic;a€¢recommending, either directly or indirectly, or expressing opinions on the basis of material nonpublic information as to trading in
the Companya€™s securities; a€¢tipping, either directly or indirectly, material nonpublic information to any other person (including to Related Persons) on the basis of which such
other person may engage in transactions involving the Companya€ ™s securities; In addition, subject to the exceptions expressly set forth in Section (e) below of this Part II, no
employee, officer or director of the Company (nor any of their respective Related Persons), who is in possession of any material nonpublic information may:a€¢purchase or sell any
security of any other company while in possession of material nonpublic information about that company that was obtained in the course of their involvement with the Company; 4€
¢communicate any such material nonpublic information with respect to such other company that is in their possession to any other person, including family members and friends, or
otherwise disclose such information without the Companya€™s authorization; anda€¢advise any other person, including family members and friends, to purchase or sell any security of
such other company while in possession of any material nonpublic information about such other company. Each of the above would be considered &€ceinsider tradinga€ for purposes of
this Policy, regardless of how any securities are held (e.g., in a brokerage account, 401(k) or other retirement account, or otherwise), is prohibited under this Policy and, in addition to
any potential criminal or civil sanction, would subject any director, officer or employee in violation of this Policy to Company-imposed discipline, including dismissal. Other than as
expressly set forth in Section 5 below, there are no exceptions to this Policy, even for hardship to the employee, officer or director or based on the use of proceeds (such as making a
mortgage payment or for an emergency expenditure). Gifts of securities are treated under this Policy in the same way as other transfers of securities.The prohibitions in this Section
(a) continue to apply to you even after you have separated from the Company. If you are in possession of material nonpublic information when you separate from 5the Company, you
(and your Related Persons) may not trade, or advise any other person to trade, in the Companya€™s securities or the securities of such other relevant company or share such
information with any other person until the information has become public or is no longer material. In addition, if there is a closed trading window (as described in Section (b) below)
in effect at the time you separate from the Company, you are subject to the applicable trading restrictions until at least the end of the relevant closed trading window following your
departure. b. Open and Closed Trading WindowsIn addition to the prohibition in Section (a), above: Quarterly Closed Trading Windows. Trading in the Companya€™s securities is
prohibited for all individuals subject to this Policy during the period commencing at the close of trading (1:00 p.m. California time) on the 14th day of the third month of each fiscal
quarter (i.e., March 14, June 14, September 14, and December 14) and ending at the end of the first full trading day following the date that the Companya€™ s financial results are first
fully disclosed to the public. If the 14th calendar day falls on a weekend or U.S. federal holiday, the quarterly closed trading window will begin after the close of trading on the
immediately preceding business day.Special Closed Trading Windows. From time to time, an event may occur that is material to the Company but known by a select few (such as
negotiation of mergers, acquisitions or dispositions) that may not be publicly disclosed. In connection with such event, the Chief Legal Officer of the Company may impose special
closed trading windows during which employees, officers or directors (and their Related Persons) may be prohibited from trading in the Companya€™s securities. The Chief Legal
Officer is not required to provide reasons for the imposition of any closed trading window and the imposition of the special closed trading window itself may constitute material
nonpublic information that should not be communicated. If the Company imposes a special closed trading window, it will notify the employees, officers or directors affected and those
employees, officers or directors (and their Related Persons) must comply with the prohibitions set forth in Section (a) of this Part II until they are notified that the closed trading
window is lifted. Open Trading Window and Insider Trading. Subject to the additional restrictions for Covered Persons in Part III below, directors, officers and employees of the
Company are generally permitted to trade in the Companya€™s securities when no closed trading window is in effect. However, even during an open trading window, any director,
officer or employee who is in possession of any material nonpublic information should not trade in the Companya€™s securities until the information has been made publicly available
or is no longer material. Brokers are prohibited from making trades or fulfilling limit orders during closed trading windows. Notwithstanding the above, closed trading windows do not
prohibit trading in Company securities pursuant to a Rule 10b5-1 Plan (discussed in Part IV). c. Other Prohibited TransactionsIn addition to the above restrictions, all employees,
officers and directors of the Company (and their respective Related Persons) must refrain from holding Company securities in a margin account, pledging Company securities as
collateral for a loan, engaging in short sales, 6transactions in put or call options (or other derivative securities), hedging transactions, standing limit orders (except (i) standing and
limit orders under Approved Rule 10b5-1 Plans and (ii) standing orders entered into during an open trading window and that terminated before the same open trading window closes)
or similar inherently speculative transactions with respect to the Companya€ ™s securities at any time, regardless of whether such individual is in possession of material nonpublic
information or whether the trading window is open. These transactions often evidence an expectation that the Companya€™s securities will decline in value and that such directors,
officers or employees do not have the same objectives as other Company securityholders. In addition, these transactions may reduce such individualsa€™ incentive to improve the
Companya€™s performance or otherwise introduce at least the potential for a conflict of interest. d. Section 16 Reporting PersonsAny of the Companya€™s securities purchased on
the open market by members of the Companya€ ™ sBoard of Directors and its officers who are subject to the reporting requirements of Section 16 ofExchange Act (Section 16
Reporting Personsa€) or their Related Persons must be held for a minimum of six (6) months and are subject to short-swing profit liability under the provisions. Approved Rule 10b5-1
Plans do not exempt individuals from complying with Section 16 short-swing profit rules or liability.In addition, Section 16(c) of the Exchange Act absolutely prohibits Section 16
Reporting Persons from making short sales of the Companya€™s equity securities. e. Exceptions Notwithstanding the foregoing, the trading restrictions in Part II, Sections (a) and (b)
of this Policy do not apply to the following: &4€¢ESPP. Purchasing Company stock through the Companya€™s Employee Stock Purchase Plan (4€eESPPa€). However, any changes in
your election percentage under the ESPP and the sale of any Company stock acquired under the ESPP are subject to trading restrictions under this Policy. &€¢Option Exercises;
Certain Transactions Involving Equity Awards.a€¢Exercising stock options granted under the Companya€™s Equity Incentive Plan with cash or the delivery of previously owned
Company stock. However, the sale of any shares issued upon the exercise of Company-granted stock options and any cashless exercise of Company-granted stock options are subject to
trading restrictions under this Policy;a€¢the surrender of shares directly to the Company in payment of the exercise price or in satisfaction of tax withholding obligations in a manner
permitted by the applicable equity award agreement; ora€¢vesting or settlement of equity-based awards, that in each case do not involve a discretionary market sale of the
Companya€™s securities (e.g., a broker-assisted cashless exercise or similar sale transaction). This Policy also does not apply to any non-discretionary market sales (including broker-
assisted sales) of the Companya€™s securities in satisfaction of tax withholding obligations arising from any Company equity award 7(other than from the exercise of stock options or
similar awards) and occurring automatically pursuant to and in compliance with a non-discretionary a€cesell-to-covera€ policy or similar arrangement approved by the Company as
then in effect.[1]4€¢Rule 10b5-1 Plans. These trading restrictions do not apply to transactions under a Rule 10b5-1 Plan. &€¢Trusts. In addition, transfers into trusts (where the
director, officer or employee has an interest and serves as a trustee) may be made regardless of whether a quarterly or other closed trading window is in effect or whether you are in
possession of material nonpublic information. However.a€¢Transfers Between Accounts with the Same Owner. This Policy does not apply to transactions that involve merely a change
in the form in which you or your Related Persons own securities (e.g., the transfer of shares to an inter vivos trust of which you are the sole beneficiary during your lifetime), provided
however that transfers between accounts by Covered Persons require the prior approval of the Chief Legal Officer. Notwithstanding the foregoing, because trusts remain subject to
this Policy, transfers out of the trust must comply with the other terms of this Policy.a€¢Mutual Funds. Transactions in mutual funds that are invested in Company securities are not
transactions subject to this Policy.&€¢Dividend Reinvestment Plans. A dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP) is an arrangement by which dividends paid on a companya€™s stock are
automatically reinvested into whole and fractional shares of that stock. Your election to participate in a DRIP, or to increase or decrease your level of participation in the DRIP, is
subject to the same restrictions as other trading activities referenced in this Policy. The Policy also applies to the sale of company stock purchased pursuant to the DRIP. However, this
Policy does not apply to purchases of Company stock that result from reinvestment of dividends pursuant to a DRIP.4€¢Changes due to Stock Splits or Dividends. This Policy does not
apply to changes in the number of Company securities you or your Related Persons hold due to a stock split or a stock dividend that applies equally to all securities of a class, or similar
transactions.a€¢Bona Fide Gifts. This Policy does not restrict you or your Related Persona€™ s ability to make a bona fide gift during an open trading window, provided however that
any gifts of Company securities by Covered Persons require the prior approval of the Chief Legal Officer. This means you may not make bona fide gifts during closed trading
windows.&€¢Special Exceptions. In addition, the Companya€™s Chief Legal Officer may waive trading restrictions for certain employees, officers or directors under this Part II when
and to the extent the Chief Legal Officer believes that such waiver is consistent with the objectives of this Policy. Such individuals will be notified by the Chief Legal Officer of an
applicable waiver and its conditions. However, even if an individual is eligible for a waiver, any director, officer or employee who is in possession of any material nonpublic information
should not trade in the Companya€™s securities until the information has been made publicly available or is no longer material. 8 f. Violations of Insider Trading LawAnyone who
effects transactions in the Companya€™s securities, or the securities of other public companies engaged in business transactions with the Company (or provides information to enable
others to do so) on the basis of material nonpublic information is subject to both civil liability and criminal penalties, as well as disciplinary action by the Company. Officers and
employees who violate this Policy may be subject to disciplinary action by the Company, including dismissal for cause. Directors who violate this Policy may be removed from the
board. The SEC, prosecutors, stock exchanges and plaintiffs' lawyers focus on uncovering insider trading. A breach of the insider trading laws could expose the individual or anyone
who trades on information provided by an individual to criminal fines up to $5 million and imprisonment up to 20 years, in addition to civil penalties (up to three times of the profits
earned), and injunctive actions. The U.S. securities laws may be applicable to trades in the Company's securities executed outside the U.S. g. QuestionsAny director, officer or
employee who has questions about these matters should speak with their own attorney or the Companya€™s Chief Legal Officer. Any exceptions to the Policy, if permitted, may only be
granted by the Chief Legal Officer and must be provided before any activity contrary to the above requirements takes place.Part III: Additional Trading Restrictions for Covered
PersonsSubject to the exceptions expressly set forth in Section (d) below, in addition to the restrictions imposed in Part II above, all Covered Persons (as defined above) shall be
subject to the following additional restrictions:a.Pre-clearance of Securities TransactionsOther than pursuant to a Rule 10b5-1 Plan, no Covered Persons, or their Related Persons, may,
directly or indirectly, purchase or sell (or otherwise make any transfer, gift, pledge or loan of, or establish a trading plan other than a Rule 10b5-1 Plan with respect to) any Company
security at any time without first obtaining prior approval from the Chief Legal Officer or, if the Chief Legal Officer is unavailable, their designee, even during an open trading
window.In addition, for purposes of this Section (a), Covered Persons must obtain pre-clearance and follow the procedures described below prior to the exercise of options that involve
a broker-assisted cashless exercise or similar sale transaction, making any gifts of securities or transferring securities between their accounts or those of their Related Persons. Each
Covered Person should contact the Chief Legal Officer prior to commencing any transaction in the Companya€™s securities. The Chief Legal Officer is not required to grant a pre-
clearance request. The Companya€™s pre-clearance of any particular transaction does not constitute legal advice and does not insulate any Covered Person from liability under
applicable securities laws. Even after a Covered Persond€™s transaction is approved for pre-clearance, they may not transact in Company securities if: 94€¢ The transaction occurs
during a closed trading window (except for transfers between accounts of the same owner as set forth in the exception outlined in Part II(e) hereto), ord€¢ They become aware of
material nonpublic information before the transaction is executed.The Chief Legal Officer or their designee shall record, or cause to be recorded, the date each pre-clearance request
is received and the date and time each request is approved or disapproved. Unless revoked, a grant of permission will normally remain valid until the close of trading four (4) trading
days following the day on which it was granted, or for such shorter or longer period prescribed by the Chief Legal Officer. If the Covered Person becomes aware of any material
nonpublic information before the transaction has been affected, they cannot proceed with the transaction. If the transaction does not occur during the permitted period, pre-clearance
of the transaction must be re-requested.Pre-clearance is not required for purchases and sales of securities under a Rule 10b5-1 Plan. b. Designation as a Covered Person;
Acknowledgment and CertificationThe Chief Legal Officer (or designee) within the Legal Department shall notify any Covered Persons in writing that they are Covered Persons under
this Policy and the Legal Department shall maintain a list of such Covered Persons, which will be reviewed with the executive leadership team from time to time, as determined by the
Chief Legal Officer. All Covered Persons are required to acknowledge and certify (in a form determined to be reasonable by the Chief Legal Officer) that they have read and
understand this Policy, including the additional restrictions imposed on Covered Persons, and that they agree to be bound by such restrictions until their separation from the Company
or until they are other otherwise informed in writing by the Chief Legal Officer (or designee) that they are no longer designated as a Covered Person under this Policy. c. Trades by
Chief Legal OfficerWith respect to any pre-clearance, approval, interpretation or special exception under this Policy that is sought by the Chief Legal Officer with respect to trading by



the Chief Legal Officer or their Related Persons, the Chief Legal Officer shall seek approval thereof from the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer may consult with the
Companya€™s outside securities counsel and shall have the authority to pre-clear, approve, interpret or grant a special exception to the Chief Legal Officer. d.
ExceptionsNotwithstanding the foregoing, the trading restrictions in Part III, Section (a) of this Policy are subject to the exceptions set forth in Part II, Section (e). Part IV: Rule 10b5-1
PlansA Rule 10b5-1 Plan is a written trading plan adopted in advance of any transactions in Company securities. Rule 10b5-1 Plans reduce the risk of trading on the basis of material
nonpublic information. If you adopt a Rule 10b5-1 Plan, you may not trade outside that plan.[2]a.Who Needs a Rule 10b5-1 Plan?10Not everyone needs to adopt a Rule 10b5-1 Plan.
The Company strongly recommends that Section 16 Reporting Persons, and certain other designated personnel notified by the Chief Legal Officer, adopt and trade strictly under a
Rule 10b5-1 Plan. The Chief Legal Officer, in their sole discretion, can also permit other individuals to adopt a Rule 10b5-1 plan. b. What are the Requirements for a Rule 10b5-1 plan?
A Rule 10b5-1 Plan must meet the following minimum requirements:a€¢Pre-Approval. Each Rule 10b5-1 Plan (and any modifications to a Rule 10b5-1 Plan) must be pre-approved by
the Chief Legal Officer. Approval by the Chief Legal Officer of a Rule 10b5-1 plan is not a determination by the Company or the Chief Legal Officer that any specific Rule 10b5-1 Plan is
sufficient to satisfy the requirements of Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act.&€¢Timing and modifications. You can only adopt or modify a Rule 10b5-1 Plan when (a) you are not
aware of any material nonpublic information and (b) when there is not a closed trading window in effect, as described in this Policy. & ¢Duration. A Rule 10b5-1 Plan must have a
minimum term length of one year from adoption. If your Rule 10b5-1 Plan terminates according to its terms prior to one year, then you may adopt a new Rule 10b5-1 Plan subject to
satisfaction of the &€cecooling-offa€ period defined below and the other requirements described in this Policy. 4€¢a€ceCooling offa€ periods. You cannot immediately trade after
entering or modifying a Rule 10b5-1 Plan. The SEC requires there to be a &€cecooling offa€ period between adoption or modification of a plan and trading. The length of the
a€ecooling offa€ period depends on who you are: &—|For all Section 16 Reporting Persons, the first trade under the Rule 10b5-1 Plan may not occur until after the later of (a) 90-days
after the adoption, or modification, of the Rule 10b5-1 Plan or (b) two business days following disclosure in Form 10-K or 10-Q of the Companya€™s financial results for the fiscal
quarter in which the Rule 10b5-1 Plan was adopted or modified (but not to exceed 120 days after adoption or modification of the Rule 10b5-1 Plan). &—|For all others, the first trade
under the Rule 10b5-1 Plan may not occur until 30-days following the Rule 10b5-1 Plan adoption or modification. &—}Upon termination of a Rule 10b5-1 Plan entered into on or after
the date of this Policy, Section 16 Reporting Persons and other persons covered by such Rule 10b5-1 Plan are prohibited from trading in the Companya€™s securities during the period
commencing on the date of the termination and ending on the date that falls 60 days following termination of the plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in extraordinary circumstances,
the relevant person terminating their plan may request the Chief Legal Officer to reduce this period from 60 days to 30 days, which the Chief Legal Officer may approve in their sole
discretion.a—|For the avoidance of doubt, these cooling-off periods do not apply to a Company adopted Rule 10b5-1 Plan.&€¢No overlapping plans. You may not adopt more than one
Rule 10b5-1 Plan at a time except in the following circumstances:114a-2You may adopt multiple Rule 10b5-1 Plans with separate brokers, but they will be taken together to constitute a
single Rule 10b5-1 Plan. 4-2You may simultaneously maintain two Rule 10b5-1 Plans, so long as the later-commencing Rule 10b5-1 Plan is not authorized to begin trading until after all
trades under the first Rule 10b5-1 Plan are completed or expire based on the terms of the Rule 10b5-1 Plan. a-2Non-discretionary arrangements which authorize an agent to sell only
enough shares as are necessary to satisfy tax withholding obligations arising exclusively from the vesting and settlement of Company equity awards (such as RSUs) will not be
considered a€ceoverlappinga€ plans for this purpose. &€¢Single-trade Rule 10b5-1 Plans. Rule 10b5-1 Plans designed to effect an open-market purchase or sale of the total amount of
securities as a single transaction are permitted, but you may only have one such single-trade Rule 10b5-1 Plan over the course of a 12-month period. 4€¢Certifications. The Rule 10b5-
1 Plan must include a representation in the Rule 10b5-1 Plan certifying that at the time of adoption or modification of a Rule 10b5-1 Plan, the individual (i) is not aware of material
nonpublic information about the issuer or its securities and (ii) the individual is adopting the contract, instruction or plan in good faith and not as part of a plan or scheme to evade the
prohibitions of Rule 10b5-1.4—|In addition, you must enter into to the Rule 10b5-1 Plan in good faith and not as part of a plan or scheme to evade the prohibitions of Rule 10b5-1 under
the Exchange Act and you must have acted in good faith with respect to the Rule 10b5-1 Plan. &€¢Reporting. All Section 16 Reporting Persons must report on their Forms 4 or 5 in
connection with any trades, as applicable, that their Rule 10b5-1 Plan was adopted to satisfy Rule 10b5-1(c). The Company reserves the right to publicly disclose, announce, or respond
to inquiries from the media regarding the adoption, modification, or termination of a Rule 10b5-1 Plan.Part V: Policies Regarding the Use, Disclosure and Protection of Material
Nonpublic InformationAll employees, officers and directors of the Company have ethical and legal responsibilities to maintain the confidentiality of material nonpublic
information.a.Use or Disclosure of Material Nonpublic InformationAs discussed above, no employee, officer or director shall use material nonpublic information about the Company for
their personal benefit. In addition, except as specifically authorized or in the performance of an individuala€™s designated corporate responsibilities, under no circumstances may an
employee, officer or director release to others information that might affect the Companya€™s securities. Therefore, no employee, officer or director of the Company is permitted to
disclose material nonpublic information to anyone, including other employees, officers or directors of the Company, unless the other employee, officer or director needs to know such
information in order to fulfill their job responsibilities. Under no other circumstances should such information be 12disclosed to anyone, including family, relatives or business or social
acquaintances. No employee, officer or director should discuss material nonpublic information in public places or in common areas on Company property. In maintaining the
confidentiality of the information, the individual in possession of such information shall not affirm or deny statements made by others, either directly or through electronic means, if
such affirmation or denial would result in the disclosure of material nonpublic information.If an employee, officer or director has any doubt about whether certain information is
nonpublic or material, such doubt should be resolved in favor of not communicating such information or trading. Questions concerning what is or is not material nonpublic information
should be directed to the Companya€™s Chief Legal Officer. b. Unauthorized Disclosure of Internal InformationUnauthorized disclosure of internal information about the Company
may create serious problems for the Company whether or not the information is used to facilitate improper trading in securities of the Company. Therefore, it shall be the duty of each
person employed or affiliated with the Company to maintain the confidentiality of information relating to the Company or obtained through a relationship of confidence. Company
personnel, officers or directors should not discuss internal Company matters or developments with anyone outside the Company, except as necessary in the performance of regular
corporate duties. c. Social MediaAny written or verbal statement that would be prohibited under the law or under this Policy is equally prohibited if made on the Internet or by social
media. All employees, officers and directors should periodically review TriNeta€™s Social Media Policy and ensure their social media activities comply with the policy. d. Inadvertent
Disclosure of Material Nonpublic InformationIf material nonpublic information regarding the Company is inadvertently disclosed, no matter what the circumstances, by any employee,
officer or director, the person making or discovering that disclosure should immediately report the facts to the Chief Legal Officer. e. Inquiries Regarding Material Nonpublic
InformationWhen an inquiry is received regarding information that may be material, it should be referred, without comment, to the Companya€™s Investor Relations Department via
investorrelations@trinet.com. f. Reporting of ViolationsAny person who believes that a violation of this Policy has taken place shall report such violation promptly to the Chief Legal
Officer. g. QuestionsAny questions concerning this Policy should be directed to the Chief Legal Officer.13[1] Exercise of options that involve a broker-assisted cashless exercise or
similar sale transaction by Covered Persons require the prior approval of the Chief Legal Officer.[2] For Rule 10b5-1 Plans entered into prior to the date of this Policy, open market
trading is not encouraged outside of the relevant plan and may cause your 10b5-1 Plan to be cancelled.14DocumentExhibit 21.1SUBSIDIARIES OF TRINET GROUP, INC.Company
NameA IncorporationJurisdictionAmbrose Advisory Services, LLCA New YorkApp7, Inc.A DelawareArchimedes Risk Solutions, Ltd.A BermudaClarus R&D Solutions,
LLCOhiolnsureYourPeople, LLCDelawareManageYourPeople, LLCDelawarePayYourPeople, LLCDelawareTriNet Commercial Services, Inc.DelawareTriNet Employer Group Canada,
Inc.A OntarioTriNet Enrich Administration, Inc.DelawareTriNet HR I, Inc.A OklahomaTriNet HR II, Inc.A DelawareTriNet HR II Holdings, Inc.A DelawareTriNet HR II-A,

Inc.A FloridaTriNet HR I1I, Inc.A CaliforniaTriNet HR III-A, Inc.A DelawareTriNet HR III-B, Inc.A DelawareTriNet HR IV, LLCA New YorkTriNet HR X, Inc.DelawareTriNet HR XI,

Inc.A DelawareTriNet Insurance Brokerage, Inc.A DelawareTriNet MSB, Inc.DelawareTriNet Professional Employer Services, Inc.A DelawareTriNet SMB Services, Inc.DelawareTriNet
TCR Operations S.R.L.Costa RicaTriNet TrustDelawareTriNet USA, Inc. A DelawareYourPeople, Inc.DelawareZenefits Development, Inc.British ColumbiaZenefits Technologies India
Private LimitedKarnatakaDocumentExhibitA 31.1CERTIFICATION BY PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 20021,
Michael Q. Simonds, certify that:1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of TriNet Group, Inc.;2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;4. The registrant's other
certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:(a)designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused
such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;(b)designed such internal control over financial reporting, or
caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;(c)evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure
controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and(d)disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting; and5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):(a)all significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and(b)any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.A Date: February 13, 2025/s/ Michael Q. SimondsMichael Q. SimondsPresident and Chief Executive OfficerDocumentExhibit 31.2CERTIFICATION BY
PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 20021, Kelly Tuminelli, certify that:1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on
Form 10-K of TriNet Group, Inc.;2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;3. Based on my knowledge,
the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:(a)designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;(b)designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;(c)evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and(d)disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have
disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):(a)all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and(b)any fraud, whether or not material, that involves
management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.Date:A A FebruaryA 13, 2025 /s/ Kelly TuminelliKelly
TuminelliChief Financial OfficerDocumentExhibitA 32.1CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTIONA 1350,AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTIONA 9060F THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002In connection with the Annual Report of TriNet Group,A Inc., a Delaware corporation (the &€ceCompanya€), on FormA 10-K for the year ending DecemberA 31,
2024 as filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the 4€ceReporta€), each of the undersigned officers of the Company does hereby certify, pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. A§ 1350 (section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002), that: (1)A A A A The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a)A or 15(d)A of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and(2)A A A A The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.The foregoing certification (i)A is given to such officersa€™ knowledge, based upon such officersa€™ investigation as such officers reasonably deem appropriate; and (ii)A is
being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. A§ 1350 (section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002) and is not being filed as part of the Report or as a separate disclosure document
and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (whether
made before or after the date of the Report), irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.A Date:FebruaryA 13, 2025/s/ Michael Q. SimondsMichael Q.
SimondsChief Executive OfficerDate:FebruaryA 13, 2025/s/ Kelly TuminelliKelly TuminelliChief Financial Officer



